
If you would like help to understand this document, or would like it in 
another format or language, please call Sally Cole, Committee Manager 
Executive on (01432) 260249 or e-mail scole@herefordshire.gov.uk in 
advance of the meeting. 

 

 

 
 

AGENDA 
 

Cabinet 

 

Date: Thursday 10 September 2009 

Time: 2.00 pm 

Place: The Council Chamber, Brockington, 35 Hafod Road, 
Hereford 

Notes: Please note the time, date and venue of the meeting. 

For any further information please contact: 

Sally Cole, Committee Manager Executive 

Tel: (01432) 260249 

Email: scole@herefordshire.gov.uk 

 
 

 
 



 

GUIDANCE ON DECLARING PERSONAL AND PREJUDICIAL INTERESTS AT MEETINGS 
 

The Council’s Members’ Code of Conduct requires Councillors to declare against an Agenda item(s) 
the nature of an interest and whether the interest is personal or prejudicial.  Councillors have to 
decide first whether or not they have a personal interest in the matter under discussion.  They will 
then have to decide whether that personal interest is also prejudicial. 

  
A personal interest is an interest that affects the Councillor more than most other people in the area.  
People in the area include those who live, work or have property in the area of the Council.  
Councillors will also have a personal interest if their partner, relative or a close friend, or an 
organisation that they or the member works for, is affected more than other people in the area.  If they 
do have a personal interest, they must declare it but can stay and take part and vote in the meeting.   

 

Whether an interest is prejudicial is a matter of judgement for each Councillor.  What Councillors have 
to do is ask themselves whether a member of the public – if he or she knew all the facts – would think 
that the Councillor’s interest was so important that their decision would be affected by it.  If a 
Councillor has a prejudicial interest then they must declare what that interest is.  A Councillor who 
has declared a prejudicial interest at a meeting may nevertheless be able to address that meeting, 
but only in circumstances where an ordinary member of the public would be also allowed to speak.  In 
such circumstances, the Councillor concerned will have the same opportunity to address the meeting 
and on the same terms.  However, a Councillor exercising their ability to speak in these 
circumstances must leave the meeting immediately after they have spoken. 

 

Agenda for the Meeting of the Cabinet 
  

Membership  
  

Chairman Councillor RJ Phillips 
   

  

Councillor LO Barnett  
Councillor AJM Blackshaw  
Councillor H Bramer  
Councillor JP French  
Councillor JA Hyde  
Councillor JG Jarvis  
Councillor PD Price  
Councillor DB Wilcox  
  

 
  

 
 

 



 
HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL  10 SEPTEMBER 2009 

 

 

AGENDA 
 Pages 
  
   

HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL - NOTICE UNDER REGULATION 15 OF THE 
LOCAL AUTHORITIES (EXECUTIVE ARRANGEMENTS ((ACCESS TO 

INFORMATION) REGULATIONS 2000 (AS AMENDED) 
 

Notice is hereby given that the following reports contain key decisions.  When the 
decisions have been made, Members of the relevant Scrutiny Committee will be sent 
a copy of the decision notices and given the opportunity to call-in the decisions. 
 

Item 
No 

Title Portfolio 
Responsibility 

Scrutiny 
Committee 

Included in 
the Forward 

Plan 
Yes/No 

4 Connexions Transfer and 
New Delivery 
Arrangements 

Children’s 
Services 

Children’s 
Services 

Yes 

5 Joint Municipal Waste 
Management Strategy for 
Herefordshire and 
Worcestershire – First 
Review 

Environment 
and Strategic 
Housing 

Environment Yes 

 
 

 

   
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE     
   
 To receive any apologies for absence.  
   
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST     
   
 To receive any declarations of interest by Members in respect of items on 

the Agenda. 
 

   
3. MINUTES     
   
 To approve and sign the minutes of the meeting held on 30 July 2009.  

(Minutes to follow). 
 

   
4. CONNEXIONS: NEW MANAGEMENT AND DELIVERY ARRANGEMENTS   1 - 32  
   
 To approve the transfer and new delivery arrangements (Appendix 1 

and 2) for the Connexions range of services and functions from 
Herefordshire and Worcestershire Connexions Company to 
Herefordshire Council in April 2010. 
 

 

   
5. JOINT MUNICIPAL WASTE MANAGEMENT STRATEGY FOR 

HEREFORDSHIRE AND WORCESTERSHIRE   
33 - 112  

   
 The purpose is to endorse the first review of the Joint Municipal Waste 

Management Strategy for Herefordshire and Worcestershire and agree its 
adoption. 
 

 

   





The Public’s Rights to Information and Attendance at Meetings  
 
YOU HAVE A RIGHT TO: - 
 

• Attend all Council, Cabinet, Committee and Sub-Committee meetings unless the business 
to be transacted would disclose ‘confidential’ or ‘exempt’ information. 

• Inspect agenda and public reports at least five clear days before the date of the meeting. 

• Inspect minutes of the Council and all Committees and Sub-Committees and written 
statements of decisions taken by the Cabinet or individual Cabinet Members for up to six 
years following a meeting. 

• Inspect background papers used in the preparation of public reports for a period of up to 
four years from the date of the meeting.  (A list of the background papers to a report is 
given at the end of each report).  A background paper is a document on which the officer 
has relied in writing the report and which otherwise is not available to the public. 

• Access to a public Register stating the names, addresses and wards of all Councillors with 
details of the membership of Cabinet and of all Committees and Sub-Committees. 

• Have a reasonable number of copies of agenda and reports (relating to items to be 
considered in public) made available to the public attending meetings of the Council, 
Cabinet, Committees and Sub-Committees. 

• Have access to a list specifying those powers on which the Council have delegated 
decision making to their officers identifying the officers concerned by title. 

• Copy any of the documents mentioned above to which you have a right of access, subject 
to a reasonable charge (20p per sheet subject to a maximum of £5.00 per agenda plus a 
nominal fee of £1.50 for postage). 

• Access to this summary of your rights as members of the public to attend meetings of the 
Council, Cabinet, Committees and Sub-Committees and to inspect and copy documents. 

 
 
 

Public Transport Links 
 

• Public transport access can be gained to Brockington via the service runs approximately 
every 20 minutes from the City bus station at the Tesco store in Bewell Street (next to the 
roundabout junction of Blueschool Street / Victoria Street / Edgar Street). 

• The nearest bus stop to Brockington is located in Vineyard Road near to its junction with 
Old Eign Hill.  The return journey can be made from the same bus stop. 

 
 

 
 



HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL 
 
 

BROCKINGTON, 35 HAFOD ROAD, HEREFORD. 
 
 
 

FIRE AND EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE 
 
 

 

In the event of a fire or emergency the alarm bell will ring 
continuously. 

You should vacate the building in an orderly manner through the 
nearest available fire exit. 

You should then proceed to Assembly Point J which is located at the 
southern entrance to the car park.  A check will be undertaken to 
ensure that those recorded as present have vacated the building 
following which further instructions will be given. 

Please do not allow any items of clothing, etc. to obstruct any of the 
exits. 

Do not delay your vacation of the building by stopping or returning to 
collect coats or other personal belongings. 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Where possible this agenda is printed on paper made from 100% Post-Consumer 
waste. De-inked without bleaching and free from optical brightening agents (OBA). 
Awarded the Nordic Swan for low emissions during production and the Blue Angel 
environmental label 

 



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Kathy Roberts Assistant Director, Improvement and Inclusion (01432) 26 0804 

MEETING: CABINET  

DATE: 10 SEPTEMBER 2009 

TITLE OF REPORT: CONNEXIONS TRANSFER AND NEW DELIVERY 
ARRANGEMENTS

PORTFOLIO AREA: CHILDREN SERVICES 

CLASSIFICATION: Open 

Wards Affected 

County-wide  

Purpose 

To approve the transfer and new delivery arrangements (Appendix 1 and 2) for the Connexions range 
of services and functions from Herefordshire and Worcestershire Connexions Company to 
Herefordshire Council in April 2010. 

Key Decision  

This is a Key Decision because it is likely to be significant in terms of its effect on communities living 
or working in Herefordshire in an area comprising one or more wards. 

It was included in the Forward Plan.

Recommendations

 THAT: the transfer and new delivery arrangements of the range of Connexions Services 
from the Herefordshire and Worcestershire Connexions Company to 
Herefordshire Council be approved. 

Key Points Summary 

 It is proposed that the Herefordshire elements of the Connexions service are brought into the 
local authority and integrated within the reorganised Children’s and Young People’s 
Directorate;

 Connexions staff will sit across three service areas:  

 Strategic leadership and quality assurance and Information, Advice and Guidance (IAG) 
functions will come from the Improvement and Inclusion Service area with input from 
Community Operations; 

 The IAG service area will sit within Improvement and Inclusion; 

Connexions Transfer and New Delivery Arrangements 26Nov08 

AGENDA ITEM 4

1



 The targeted service will sit within Community Operations; 

 Data and performance management requirements will be integrated in to the Planning, 
Performance and Development service area. 

Alternative Options 

1 To bring the strategic lead and associated services in house and to tender for the front line 
delivery. This could have included greater delegation of elements of delivery to schools, colleges and 
work based learning providers. This option was rejected because it places us out of line with our 
regional partners and would reduce our ability to deliver creative service improvements.  

Reason for Recommendations 

2 The proposed arrangements will improve both service delivery and outcomes for young people 
within the emerging new organisation structure for Children and Young People’s Directorate 
and the current financial climate. 

3 The new arrangements further develop and deliver our practices in response to government 
expectations.

Introduction and Background 

4 Strategies emerging from national, regional and local governments indicate a requirement to 
develop an integrated youth support policy which encompasses all aspect of business aimed 
at supporting young people between the ages of 11-19.  

5 The Children’s and Young People’s Directorate is restructuring in order to address the range 
of existing, new and evolving challenges and demands placed upon it. The plans for the 
development of the Connexions service are set within that agenda and include the plans for 
the locality teams and the aims of the Herefordshire Public Services. 

6 The Connexions Service works across Herefordshire and Worcestershire currently operates 
as an independent company and provides a range of support and activity for young people 
primarily aged 14+. Such provision is purchased by the Local Authority though grant funding.  

7 In response to central government legislation regarding the Machinery of Government 
requirements for April 2010 a Task Group was established to consider the implication for 
Herefordshire Council. The significant changes for the Connexions service will be: the transfer 
of the duties and resources of the Learning and Skills Council (which currently supports and 
funds provision and placement for young people aged 16+) and is scheduled to become part 
of the Local Authority from April 2010.  

8 This decision is required now so that timely preparations can be made for Connexions to be 
efficiently transferred to the local authority on 1st April 2010.  Similar arrangements are being 
made in Worcestershire. 

Key Considerations 

9 It is proposed that the Herefordshire elements of the Connexions service are brought into the 
Local Authority and integrated within the reorganised Children and Young People’s 
Directorate. Connexions staff will sit across three service areas; strategic leadership and 
quality assurance and IAG functions will come from the Improvement and Inclusion Service 
area with input from Community Operations. The Information, Advice and Guidance (IAG) 

2



service area will sit within Improvement and Inclusion where it can maintain independence. 
The targeted service will sit within Community Operations and is an excellent example of 
where front-line locality team support should work effectively. Finally the significant data and 
performance management requirements will be integrated in to the Planning, Performance 
and Development service area, which will improve efficiency of data collection and analysis for 
the Children’s Trust. Staff will be managed and supervised by appropriately qualified staff.  

10 Responsibility for funding for Information, Advice and Guidance (IAG) provision transferred to 
Local Authorities across England in April 2008 and Connexions Herefordshire and 
Worcestershire as the local provider has continued to provide services to date as an interim 
arrangement.  

11 IAG is high profile on the government agenda, National IAG Quality Standards have been 
produced, a new bill is in place and new national guidelines are due in September 2009. Local 
Authorities need to position Connexions services within the context of: 

 The reform of 14-19 learning; 

 The 2005 Education and Skills White Paper; 

 The 2007 Children’s Plan; 

 Raising Expectations White Paper; 

 2008 Next Steps 14-19 Update Paper; 

 Post-16 funding transfer from the Learning and Skills Council (Machinery of Government); 

 The Raising of the Participation Age as set out in the Education and Skills Act 2008; 

 Building 21st Century Schools – ‘Your Child, Your Schools, Our Future’ White Paper June 
2009.

12 The Connexions service must be available for all young people 13-191 and up to 25 for young 
people with learning difficulties and disabilities including those young people placed in county 
by other Local Authorities.  In Herefordshire this is approx 15,6002 total young people. 

13 The current arrangements have ensured that Herefordshire is making good progress in many 
areas and we are proud of our current achievements: 

 The number of young people not in employment, education or training (NEET) has 
historically been low; 

 The number of young people whose current learning destination is unknown is low; 

 Participation in education post-16 is high and there are defined arrangements for those 
who drop out; 

 Targeted work is improving outcomes for more vulnerable young people. 

                                                

1
 Although in Herefordshire our strategy is for 11-19 year olds 

2
 Source: Office of National Statistics 

3



The ongoing challenges are: 

 Increased emphasis and focus on impartial Information, Advice and Guidance and the 
importance of ensuring the best outcomes for each individual; 

 Not to allow our NEET figures to ‘plateau’; 

 To ensure best use of resources and capacity to deliver the full range of Connexions 
services, through an integrated approach; 

 To implement the changes brought through the Machinery of Government Transfer of post-
16 funding, increased responsibilities around 14-19 and the Integrated Youth Support 
agenda;

 The development of school curricula (which has reformed Key Stage 4 learning, and 
placed different requirements onto Key Stage 3) has highlighted the need for impartial 
advice and guidance to assist learners in year 9 and below to negotiate the options 
process and understand the collaborative courses and alternative pathways that are 
available for them to access at institutions throughout the County in key stage 4 (year 10); 

 The continual need to demonstrate value for money, while maintaining current Personal 
Advisor time, in an arena of increasing demands on reducing funding sources. 

14 Staffing - Herefordshire Connexions staff have been identified for transfer into Herefordshire 
Council. There are a small number of Head Office staff who have not been identified to 
transfer as their work is not predominantly on the Herefordshire Connexions contract, these 
functions will be examined and allocated to local authority staff if required. Dialogue with staff 
is taking place about issues to do with transfer: job roles, terms and conditions, working hours 
and pay, and a formal consultation period will take place with Connexions HR and Unison. 

Community Impact 

15 Schools have indicated clearly that they want to keep their Personal Advisors (PA) roles, 
functions and input to remain unchanged and this should be maintained as a priority part of 
the holistic school community resource for young people. 

16 Young people have clearly indicated that the Connexions brand and city centre building should 
be maintained.  The arrangements for transfer or disposal of capital assets is being discussed 
with Worcestershire County Council and Connexions in line with DCSF advice, 

17 IAG advisors must have strong links with specialist training providers who can provide 
occupational careers advice and have a good knowledge of local employment sectors and 
links with employers. 

Financial Implications 

18 The service is currently funded through the  Area Based Grant and we know indicative 
budgets between now and April 2011, although the actual amounts are to be ratified through 
with the Children’s Trust. Detailed budget plans are being discussed with Connexions. 
Through economies of scale and reducing duplication of service delivery we intend to achieve 
the challenges, priorities and new ways of working identified at the start of the document, while 
maintaining frontline delivery within the available budget.

08/09 £1,548,216

09/10 £1,470,000

10/11 £1,394,000

4



It is clear from these figures that the funding available to the Local Authority will reduce in 
2010/11. If the funding continues to fall by -5% in future years then the Connexions service will 
have to be downsized to continue to deliver services within a reduced budget allocation. 

 Connexions current budget in 2009/10 is set out below. The final column provides an estimate 
 of the required budget for 2010/11 after adding pay inflation at 1% and adjusting for private 
 company accounting practices that differ from the council. 

2009/10

Connexions
Budget

2010/11

Herefordshire
Council indicative 

budget

Budget Assumptions

Income from Area Based Grant -1.469,703 -1,394,246 ABG income only

Other income -8,038 0

Total Income -1,477,741 -1,394,246

Personal Advisors 891,048 899,958 +1% pay inflation

Other Delivery Staff 30,684 30,991 +1% pay inflation

Other staff – managers & admin 222,300 224,523 +1% pay inflation

Premises Costs 40,964 49,277 +2.5% price inflation

Administration Costs 34,760 34,696 +2.5% price inflation 

Office equipment & other assets 38,000 Treated as capital by 
Connexions

Travel 22,200 22,755 This may reduce in future 
with less need to travel 
to/from Worcester 

Re-allocated head Office charges 251,109 77,667 Assume previous spend on 
ICT and data. 

Total Expenditure 1,493,065 1,377,868

Loss/Profit on Herefordshire 
contract

(15,324) 16,378

Capital - Office Equipment 15,731 0 Incl as revenue

Capital  - Other Assets 21,359 0 Incl as revenue

Other Connexions Contracts 
funded from income – mostly from 
Herefordshire Council 

263,587 Different arrangements for 
these contracts may apply 
in 10/11.

5



19 Liabilities 

20 The Council is still waiting for final TUPE transfer list of staff and salary costs; however an 
indicative budget has been prepared on the basis of a 1% pay increase in line with council 
staff, for all current Connexions staff that transfer. The assumption is that few, if any 
Connexions Head Office staff are eligible for TUPE transfer. It is also important to note that 
existing Connexions salaries are not comparable with Herefordshire “HC” rates as the rates of 
pay are higher within the Connexions Service. 

21 The existing and deferred pension liabilities will be transferred to Herefordshire Council and 
Worcestershire Council. The specific percentage split will be the subject of further discussion 
between the two bodies; however they are in agreement to act as guarantor for this element. 

22 Compensatory Added Years are not liabilities of the Fund, but must be met £ for £ by the 
employer concerned. Should there be any of these payments, either already in place or arising 
from actions between now and the end of March 2010 then full payment will need to be made 
by Connexions to the fund. 

23 Connexions employees are a part of the Worcestershire Local Government Pension Fund as 
are Herefordshire Council staff. Any staff moving across to the Local Authority would remain in 
the same pension fund. No pension deficit would capitalise at this time. Any identified share of 
such a deficit would transfer to Herefordshire Council and be added to any pension deficit 
already in place with Worcestershire LGPS. 

24 Current Connexions Board – the company is limited by guarantee with no share capital. The 
members of the company have each agreed to contribute £1.00 to the assets of the company 
in the likelihood of its being wound up. There is no liability on Herefordshire Council for any 
debts of the Herefordshire and Worcestershire Connexions Company.  

25 Accommodation – Herefordshire Council is committed to locality working across the Children’s 
and Young People’s Directorate and the accommodation that will be required is being 
reviewed. The Connexions Building is based in the centre of Hereford and is currently owned 
by the Herefordshire and Worcestershire Connexions company. It has a high footfall and is 
well known by learners.  The future ownership of the building is not yet clear and legal advice 
is being sought.  

Legal Implications 

26 The proposal is consistent with legislation and guidance terms. 

27 TUPE transfer into the Local Authority employment is a regulated process which will be 
implemented in all cases. 

28 Legal services are currently advising regarding the redistribution of assets of the Connexions 
Company including the lease associated with the accommodation. 

Risk Management 

a. The Connexions Service has significant data tracking, reporting and analysis 
requirements as part of its national specification, quality and performance management 
arrangements. It uses a significant amount of ICT and software to complete these 
functions. Full or partial loss of these services would significantly hamper service 
delivery, credibility and performance. Early discussion have already taken place with 
the corporate ICT department and the new ECM systems ICT manager within 
Children’s Services and has been placed on the Directorate ICT plan for quarter 3 

6



2009/10.

b. The loss of the Connexions building in St Peters Square Hereford would hamper 
service delivery in the short term as it is well known and has a high footfall; we are 
seeking clarification on the ownership of the building as part of the winding up of the 
Connexions Herefordshire and Worcestershire Company. 

Consultees

29 A consultation took place between 29th June and 19th August 2009 and was aimed at 
stakeholders who have an interest in the Connexions and associated services.  Stakeholders 
were divided into three groups: service users, professional groups, and the wider community. 
A range of different approaches have been taken to make groups aware of the proposed 
changes and are able to contribute to the consultation, these have included focus groups, 
attendance at strategic meetings, and included posting the consultation documents to all 
named key stakeholders as well as placing the consultation on Herefordshire Council 
Consultation pages of the website. (Appendix 3) 

30 Key messages from the Consultation: 

a. Maintain existing delivery and service 

b. Impartiality of advice and guidance 

c. Efficiency savings should release resources to support an extended workload as the 
Connexions remit is extended downwards to Year 7 and upwards to 19+. 

d. The need to create the distinction between the functions of commissioning and 
provision, particularly with regard to students with LLDD (Learners with Learning 
Difficulties). 

e. Maintain the current city centre building and the Connexions brand 

31 Of 13 responses 3 expressed concern with the placement of LLDD within the Additional Needs 
Service of Improvement and Inclusion. The concern related to the operational delivery of 
services for LLDD sitting within the potential commissioners of such services. However, the 
Additional Needs Service will deliver strategy and quality assurance for all services and 
provision delivery for children and young people with additional needs. The strategy aims to 
pull all such providers under the one area in order to ensure consistency, quality assurance 
and equity of access for all. With LLDD sitting outside of this framework there is a potential for 
a lack of consistency and management of these issues. The recommendation is therefore to 
retain LLDD within the Additional Needs Service. 

Appendices

32 Appendix 1 – Herefordshire is Making Connexions April 2010 Consultation Paper 

33 Appendix 2 – Herefordshire is Making Connexions April 2010 Supporting Information 

34 Appendix 3 – Connexions Consultation Summary 

Background Papers

35 Consultation responses 

36 Young People’s responses to consultation 

7



8



Children and Young People’s 
Directorate

Herefordshire is Making Connexions 
April 2010

Consultation Paper
June 2009 

‘Making a positive difference to the lives of children and young people’ 
1

9



Introduction

Herefordshire Council is reconfiguring the Children’s and Young People’s Directorate in order 
to address the range of existing, new and evolving challenges and demands placed upon us.  
The plans for the development of the Connexions service are set within that agenda and 
include the developing plans for the locality teams and the aims of the Herefordshire Public 
Services, which are: 

 Improved outcomes 

 Excellent Services 

 More focus on customer experience 

 Efficiency 

This paper sets out a proposed model for service delivery of the Connexions service from 
April 2010 onwards.

Responsibility for funding for Information, Advice and Guidance (IAG) provision transferred to 
Local Authorities across England in April 2008 and Connexions Herefordshire and 
Worcestershire as the local provider has continued to provide services to date.  In April 2010 
it is proposed that Connexions Herefordshire and Worcestershire is taken in house in both 
Herefordshire and in Worcestershire local authority areas.

IAG is high profile on the government agenda, National IAG Quality Standards have been 
produced, a new bill is in place and new national guidelines are due out. 

Local Authorities need to position Connexions services within the context of: 

 The reform of 14-19 learning 

 The 2005 Education and Skills White Paper 

 The 2007 Children’s Plan 

 Raising Expectations White Paper 

 2008 Next Steps 14-19 Update Paper 

 Post-16 funding transfer from the Learning and Skills Council (Machinery of 
Government)

 The Raising of the Participation Age as set out in the Education and Skills Act 2008 

 21st Century Schools 

A further information paper is available to accompany this document and a glossary of terms 
is provided at Appendix A 

What are we consulting on? 

Herefordshire Council is seeking to consult on: 

1. The future management and delivery arrangements for the range of services currently 
delivered by Connexions;  

2. The priorities for service delivery and outcomes for the new arrangements (within the 
constraints of the national specification and statutory duties). 

‘Making a positive difference to the lives of children and young people’ 
2

10



Who is this consultation aimed at?

This consultation is aimed at a wide stakeholder group of those who have an interest in the 
development of Information, Advice and Guidance and Targeted Services in the county.  
Stakeholders have been divided into three groups: 

1. Service users  

 All young people aged 11 -19 years 

 Those aged 20 -24 with Learning Difficulties 

 Specifically young people who are NEET 

 And, specifically young people in Transition 

2. Professional Groups 

 Connexions staff 

 Children’s and Young People’s Directorate staff 

 Secondary Schools – including governing bodies and Herefordshire Association 
of Governors 

 Colleges 

 Independent Schools 

 Learning and Skills Council 

 LSC funded work based learning providers and other training providers 

 Private care providers 

 Children’s Interest Group 

 NHS Herefordshire  

 Government Office for the West Midlands 

 Chamber of Commerce 

 Cabinet and Councillor Members 

 Children’s Trust including all 5 outcome groups 

 Targeted Youth Support Services 

 Adult Services 

3. Wider Community 

 Parents and Carers  

 Businesses and employers 

 Faith Groups 

 The Third Sector 

Young people have been consulted through the Every Child Matters Survey in February 2009 
and will also be invited to take part in specific focus groups. Connexions staff will be 
consulted through a discrete consultation that is appropriate for employees who are going 
through a TUPE process. 14-19 Consortium will be formally consulted on through this paper 
as will schools and colleges through their established meetings. Employers will be consulted 
through the Chamber of Commerce representative who sits on the 14-19 Consortium.  
Cabinet and Members briefing will be arranged prior to any decision making process that will 
be part of a key decision.

‘Making a positive difference to the lives of children and young people’ 
3

11



What is the process? 

Consultation questions form part of this document, which we would ask you to consider and 
return. The consultation period will run from Monday 29 June until Wednesday 19 August 
2009. A report will be produced within three months of the consultation closing.  A timescale 
for consultations and implementation is detailed later in this paper. 

What is the vision? 

Our Children & Young Peoples Plan 2008 – 2011 sets out our vision to improve the lives of 
children and young people by creating and implementing an integrated set of services.

 We will use the transfer of the Connexions service as an opportunity to enhance and 
improve the service currently delivered to the young people of Herefordshire.

 We want to hear from young people and other key stakeholders to help us determine the 
priorities for service delivery and how the Connexions service will work in partnership 
with other organisations to provide the right support to young people. 

 We want to develop the Connexions service as part of the wider plans for locality teams 

Two recommendations emerged from the early work of the Connexions Development Group

 Option a: to bring the service wholly in house.   

 Option b: to bring the strategic lead and associated services in house and to tender for 
the front line delivery.

The preferred and recommended option is option A. This brings us in line with our regional 
partners and allows for greater creativity and improvements in delivery. 

We need to consider the non-negotiable targets, statutory legislation and specified non-
statutory targets as we plan the service that we will deliver (see supporting information for 
detail).

Consultation Question 1: Do you agree with the vision of the proposed 
changes? 

Strongly agree / Agree / Disagree / Strongly disagree 

Comments:

‘Making a positive difference to the lives of children and young people’ 
4

12



What are the priorities and objectives for service delivery? 

The Connexions service must be available for all young people 13-191 and up to 25 for 
young people with learning difficulties and disabilities including those young people placed in 
county by other Local Authorities.  In Herefordshire this is approx 15,6002 total young people. 

The current arrangements have ensured that we are making good progress in many areas, 
and we need to build on this. We are proud of our current achievements: 

 The number of young people not in employment, education or training (NEET) has 
historically been low; 

 The number of young people whose current learning destination is unknown is low; 

 Participation in education post-16 is high and there are defined arrangements for 
those who drop out; 

 Targeted work is improving outcomes for more vulnerable young people. 

The ongoing challenges are: 

 Increased emphasis and focus on impartial Information, Advice and Guidance and the 
importance of ensuring the best outcomes for each individual; 

 To ensure best use of resources and capacity to deliver the full range of Connexions 
services, through an integrated approach; 

 To implement the changes brought through the Machinery of Government Transfer of 
post-16 funding, increased responsibilities around 14-19 and the Integrated Youth 
Support agenda; 

 The development of school curricula, which has reformed Key Stage 4 learning and 
placed different requirements onto Key Stage 3; 

 The continual need to demonstrate value for money, while maintaining current 
Personal Advisor time, in an arena of increasing demands on limited funding sources. 

In Autumn 2008 all schools, colleges and training providers were assessed against the 
National Standards for IAG. Some specific additional requirements have been identified and 
we have built up a comprehensive picture of what else needs to be done.  Such requirements 
include:

 Support and training to schools and colleges and post 16 providers in relation to 
Careers Education and IAG; 

 More work with learners at Key Stage 3 and below to ensure that learners have the 
skills they need to make their own decisions as part of our transformation from 14-19 
to an 11-19 service; 

 More work at Key Stage 5 to ensure young people make the right choices; 

 More support for learners who are undertaking an apprenticeship; 

 More support for young people aged 11-25 who require additional support to access 
post-16 learning. This includes carrying out statutory reviews, Section 139a 
assessments (formerly known as Section 140 assessments) and applications for out of 
county residential placements; 

 Work with young people placed by other local authorities in residential schools and 
care homes in Herefordshire and work with Herefordshire students placed outside 
Herefordshire;

                                           
1
 Although in Herefordshire our strategy is for 11-19 year olds 

2
 Source: Office of National Statistics 

‘Making a positive difference to the lives of children and young people’ 
5

13



 New requirements for work with Jobcentre Plus on New Deal for some 18 year olds; 

 Successful ongoing implementation of the September Guarantee; 

 Improved data analysis and evidence and research gathering to ensure the right 
provision is commissioned. 

We need to consider all of this in a new light to make sure that we take a strategic integrated 
approach to the future of Connexions services in the context in which we are working. 

Consultation Question 2: Do you agree with priorities and objectives? 

Strongly agree / Agree / Disagree / Strongly disagree 

Comments:

Proposals for Service Delivery from April 2010 

It is proposed that the service is brought in house and integrated within the reorganised 
Children’s and Young People’s Directorate. Staff will be transferred into Herefordshire 
Council and sit across three service areas. Strategic leadership and quality assurance 
functions will come from the Improvement and Inclusion Service area as well as Community 
Operations. The IAG service area will sit within Improvement and Inclusion where it can 
maintain independence from targeted delivery work. The targeted service is an excellent 
example of where front-line locality team support should work effectively. Staff will be 
managed and supervised by appropriately qualified staff.

‘Making a positive difference to the lives of children and young people’ 
6

14



A diagram of the proposed Local Authority structure is shown. 

Director of  
Children’s Services

Assistant Director 
Improvement & 

Inclusion 

Assistant Director 
Community  

Operations 

Assistant Director 
Planning, 

Performance &  
Development 

Head of
Additional Needs 

Head of
Improvement

Head of
11 – 19

Integrated Services

Head of
Development

Head of
Localities

Assistant Director 
Safeguarding &  

Vulnerable Children

Head of
Performance

Head of
Children’s Trust

Head of
Access, Capital 

Commissioning and 
Planning

Service Manager  
(Referral and 
Assessment)

Service Manager 
(Fieldwork)

Service Manager 
(Safeguarding and 

Looked After 
Children)

Workforce 
Development

Data

Targeted 
Services

Team

IAG Team 

LDD
Specialist

Team

Information
Services

Team

Advisors 

‘Making a positive difference to the lives of children and young people’ 
7

15



Detailed information of the functions of each service is available in the supporting 
information. The number of posts in each team remains to be established. Connexions PAs 
will retain their name. There will be administrative support for all sections as appropriate. 

Consultation Question 3: Do you think the overall delivery model with a 
separate IAG service and targeted work in locality teams is appropriate? 

Strongly agree / Agree / Disagree / Strongly disagree 

Comments:

Consultation Question 4: What do you value from the current Connexions 
Service?

Comments:

‘Making a positive difference to the lives of children and young people’ 
8

16



Consultation Question 5: What else would you like the Connexions service to 
deliver?

Comments:

Consultation Question 6: How might Connexions contribute to Key Stage 3 
as part of an integrated 11-19 Strategy? 

Comments:

‘Making a positive difference to the lives of children and young people’ 
9

17



‘Making a positive difference to the lives of children and young people’ 
10

Managing the change 

A Connexions Development Group has been in place since October 2008, charged with the 
business of establishing how the service will look from April 2010. Membership includes the 
Children’s and Young People’s Directorate, Local Authority HR and Finance, Connexions and 
Schools and Colleges who feedback and gather views from colleagues.  We would now like 
to consult with all partners on the proposals, including young people. 

Staffing - All Connexions Herefordshire staff have been identified for transfer into 
Herefordshire Council. There are a small number of Head Office staff who have not been 
identified to transfer as their work is not predominantly on the Herefordshire Connexions 
contract. We will identify who will carry out their functions. Dialogue with staff is taking place 
about issues to do with transfer: job roles, terms and conditions, working hours and pay, and 
a formal consultation period will take place with Connexions HR and Unison. The Local 
Authority HR Team is carrying out detailed analysis and comparisons of posts. There will be 
changes to ways of working and for some staff the move to the Local Authority will be a big 
change.  We will manage this through open communication channels with transferees and by 
using the time between now and April 2010 as an opportunity for directorate staff and 
Connexions staff to start to work more closely together. 

Finance - The service is currently funded through the Council’s Area Based Grant and we 
know indicative budgets between now and April 2011, although the actual amounts are to be 
ratified through the Area Based Grant processes with the Children’s Trust. Detailed costings 
and estimates are being considered. Through economies of scale and reducing duplication of 
service delivery we intend to achieve the challenges, priorities and new ways of working 
identified at the start of the document, while maintaining frontline delivery. 

Accommodation – We are exploring locality working across the Children’s and Young 
People’s Directorate, and the accommodation that will be required. The Connexions Building 
is based in the centre of Hereford and is currently owned by the Herefordshire and 
Worcestershire Connexions company. It has a high footfall and is well known by learners.  
Herefordshire’s vision is to further develop Connexions accommodation in the heart of the 
city and localities. 

18



We are now inviting responses to this consultation document, the timeline for the transfer is 
as follows: 

Month Date Activity 

June 2009 18

29
 Development Group Meeting 

 Consultation Begins 

July 2

20
 14-19 Consortium Board meeting 

 Development Group meeting 

August 5

19

24

25

27

 DLT update on responses to date 

 Consultation Closes 

 Development Group meeting 

 DLT Approval 

 Chief Executive Approval 

 Changes to proposals based on consultation results 

September 10

21
 Cabinet meeting for approval of key decision 

 Development Group meeting 

October  Ongoing development 

November  Final staffing transfer lists agreed 

December  Transfer of Data from Connexions for 3 month shadow before go 
live

 Recruitment to staff vacancies 

January 2010  Locality teams implementation 

February  Ongoing development 

March  Ongoing development  

April 1  Connexions staff formally transfer to the Local Authority 

Thank you for taking part in this consultation process. 

Consultation Question 7: Have you any other ideas or comments you would 
like to make about the proposals? 

Comments:

‘Making a positive difference to the lives of children and young people’ 
11

19



‘Making a positive difference to the lives of children and young people’ 
12

Appendix A: Glossary of Terms 

EET  in employment, education or training 

HR  Human Resources (sometimes called Personnel) 

IAG  Information, Advice and Guidance 

LLDD  Learners with Learning Difficulties and Disabilities 

LSC  Learning and Skills Council (the body which plans and funds post-16 education 
 until April 2010 

PA  Connexions Personal Advisor 

PRUs  Pupil Referral Units 

NEET  Not in employment, education or training 

Section 139a Assessment Transition assessment for young people who have been identified 
 as requiring extra support 

TUPE The Transfer of Undertakings (Protection of Employment) Regulations (the 
 protection arrangements for employees’ terms and conditions when a business 
 is transferred to a new employer) 

UNISON A public sector union

WBL  LSC funded work based learning providers 

Please return to this form by 10am on Wednesday 19th August 2009 to: 
Anne Hayde, Herefordshire Council, PO Box 4, Plough Lane, Hereford, HR4 0XH 

or email to ahayde@herefordshire.gov.uk

20



Children and Young People’s 
Directorate

Herefordshire is Making Connexions 
April 2010

Supporting Information 
June 2009 

‘Making a positive difference to the lives of children and young people’ 
1

21



‘Making a positive difference to the lives of children and young people’ 
2

Introduction 

This paper accompanies the document entitled Connexions Service April 2010 – 
Consultation Document and provides some background information which may be useful in 
responding to the consultation. 

The paper is divided into three sections: 

1. Targets, statutory legislation and specified non-statutory requirements 

2. Detail of the different functions of the Connexions service 

3. How the service is currently delivered 

Section 1: Targets, statutory legislation and specified non-statutory 
requirements

Targets
1)  Reducing the proportion of 16-18 year olds not in Education, Employment or Training 

(NEET) in 2010/11 to 4.7% 

2)  In partnership with Schools, LSC and other Children’s Services:

 Increasing the proportion of 19 year olds achieving level 2; 

 Reducing the under 18 conception rates; 

 Increasing the percentage of young mothers in EET; 

 Improving levels of school attendance and attainment pre 16; 

 Reducing the use of Class A and other illicit drugs in young people under 25; 

 Reducing the numbers of 16-18 year olds unknown; 

 Increasing the % of 16-18 year olds in learning.  

Statutory Legislation  

 Section 8, Employment and training Act 1973, Amended under Trade Union Reform 
and Employment Rights 1993 (Careers Education and Guidance); 

 Section 114, Learning & Skills Act 2000 (Encouraging people in education and 
training);

 Section 140, Learning & Skills Act 2000 (Assessment to support transition for young 
people with LDD); 

 The Education and Skills Act 2008; 

 Section 6 of the Education and Skills Act 2006; 

 The Apprenticeship and Skills Children and Learning Bill 2009. 

Specified non statutory requirements 

 The maintenance of the Client Caseload Information System for the management and 
tracking of young people 13-19 and up to 25 for those with LDD; 

 The provision of specific information regarding Benefits Liaison; 

 The provision of information relating to financial support for young people EMA, Care 
to Learn and support through applications. 

22



‘Making a positive difference to the lives of children and young people’ 
3

Section 2: Detail of the different functions of the proposed Connexions 
service

The Universal Careers Education and IAG Service will include support for the schools, 
colleges and training providers. This will range from Key Stage 3 to Key Stage 5, although 
the focus will remain on the transition at the end of Key Stage 4. Some work may also take 
place with Primary Schools as a way to prepare learners and give them the skills required to 
make the right choices later on. PAs will remain linked to an institution and there will continue 
to be negotiation around priorities.  Universal PAs will be impartial, have high levels of 
expertise and knowledge around opportunities for education and training as well as of the 
changing face of the qualification system, Higher Education and the employment 
opportunities both locally and further afield. They will have a keen eye on ensuring that 
participation in post-16 education and training continues to rise.

PAs will both run group sessions and conduct one to one meetings with learners. They will 
complete action plans as appropriate. They will carry out Section 139a assessments for 
learners who require additional support.   

The LLDD Support Team will support Special Schools, Pupil Referral Units as well those 
young people who are in mainstream schools who have complex needs. They will also 
support young people from other local authority areas placed into care establishments in 
Herefordshire and for any Herefordshire young people who are placed out of county.  They 
will lead on the assessments for out of county residential placements. They will also be 
responsible for those with LDD who are NEET. 

The Information Services Team will be a small team and will be responsible for the 
production of appropriate information materials. This will include publications for young 
people, parents, carers and families as well as materials for schools, colleges, training 
providers and employers. They will also manage the website and ensure that it is up to date, 
relevant and appropriate. There will be some overlap between this team and current 
functions in the 14-19 Team, in particular to do with the Youthzone website which houses the 
14-19 Prospectus and Online Applications (the Common Application Process system).  There 
will be an opportunity for an enhanced strategy in this area and clarification for young people 
of what information is found where. 

The Targeted Support Services will be based within the new locality teams. These PAs will 
be responsible for working with those young people in schools and colleges who have 
additional support needs. The PAs will carry out and support CAF assessments, multi-agency 
working and other requirements of the Targeted Youth Support Agenda. They will work with 
the NEETs who have the most acute needs and who are not ready to be placed in education, 
employment or training. The service will be available to young people at risk of disengaging 
or failing to progress as part of the overall Integrated Youth Support Strategy. 

23



Other key areas: 

Workforce Development will be a key function in the new structure.  It will sit with the rest of 
the Workforce Strategy team within the Children’s Trust. There is a requirement for all PAs to 
be trained to a minimum Level 4 and there is a range of appropriate qualifications – examples 
include Post Graduate Diploma in Careers Guidance, Qualification in Careers Guidance, 
LDSS, and NVQ4 Advice and Guidance. The Workforce team will ensure that all staff are 
qualified at the right level.  All staff will need to undergo annual assessments against national 
standards and an ongoing programme of professional development will be put in place, 
including the enhanced requirements for trainee PAs 

Data Coordination will be led by Performance Team. The requirements are extensive and 
fundamental to the smooth operation of the service. Every 13-25 year old is entered on the 
electronic case management system (CCIS). For each contact with a learner this must be 
logged and all young people are tracked at all times. There is a particular emphasis for 16-19 
year olds and the system flags up all young people at intervals ranging from 3 months to 12 
months and requires a further destination to be identified or confirmed. PAs are responsible 
for ensuring their caseload is correctly represented on the system. This system provides a 
wealth of detail which is submitted to the DCSF monthly electronically, and which can be 
used locally for analysis of trends and of need. As well as high level data analysis there will 
be a requirement for support for the CCIS system and for training for PAs. This function will 
be carried out within the Performance Team. 

Marketing, Publicity and Public Relations – there will be opportunities to celebrate learner 
achievement and progress and to raise the profile of the Local Authority. This will take place 
through existing channels of sharing good news including Local Authority publications and 
through the press and online media. There is a national requirement to retain the Connexions 
brand, and locally we are happy to do so as it has a positive association for learners and is 
well recognised.  We will ensure the branding also reflects that Connexions is part of the 
Local Authority. 

Record Management – each young person receiving guidance will have an up to date and 
relevant Action Plan. In addition to this every contact is logged electronically on CCIS. For 
many young people this will be supplemented by other information held in a paper based 
record. This will be kept securely. 

Other services – Connexions also provides a number of other services.  These are being 
reviewed to determine where they will be delivered in the future. 

sitive difference to the lives of children and young people’ 
4

‘Making a po

Info Box: What is Information, Advice and Guidance? 
Information, Advice and Guidance (IAG) is an important element of the Integrated Youth 
Support Service and young people’s Personal, Social and Health and Emotional and Well 
Being.  The term IAG is widely used, and in the context of Careers Education, Information, 
Advice and Guidance (CEIAG) involves: 

Careers Education provided by tutors, learning providers, teachers and lecturers. 

Careers Information provided by schools, college and work based learning staff, 
youth support workers and Connexions staff 

Advice and Initial Guidance provided by school, college and work based learning staff, 
youth support worker and Personal Advisers 

In depth Impartial and Specialist guidance provided by Connexions and specialist 
agency staff 

CEIAG in Herefordshire schools, colleges and work based learning provision is configured in a 
range of ways with responsibility at a variety of levels e.g. at curriculum or deputy head level, or 
careers teacher or work experience coordinator level. 

24



‘Making a positive difference to the lives of children and young people’ 
5

Section 3: How the service is currently delivered

Current delivery is based on the outcomes specified in the contract between Herefordshire 
Council and the Connexions service. These relate to the statutory requirements and targets 
detailed previously. 

There are currently 31 institutions eligible for Connexions Services. Partnership agreements 
are in place and these outline the respective roles, responsibilities and contributions of each 
partner. Each institution is allocated a number of days based on a formula.

There are currently two teams of Connexions Personal Advisers (PAs) with a Team Manager 
and a small number of senior PAs. Teams are based on three locality areas: city, south and 
north.  One team supports learners who are in education, employment or training (EET), and 
the other supports those who are NEET. In addition to this there are a number of other 
services provided by Connexions. The teams are: 

1.  EET Team 
EET PAs are based in schools and colleges, special schools and Pupil Referral Units 
(PRUs).  PAs will commonly work across 2 or 3 institutions.  PAs have a mixed caseload 
of providing the universal service and targeted support.  The nature of targeted work may 
differ within institutions and is dependant on the pastoral systems and processes within 
each school or college.  PAs are expected to work with senior members of staff 
responsible for curriculum and pastoral welfare in addition to heads of years, SENCOs, 
careers teachers, tutors and work related learning coordinators.   

In mainstream schools PAs will also undertake work with statemented students and those 
with learning difficulties and/or difficulties (LDD) and are supported by Special Needs PAs 
who work with complex cases in mainstream schools and young people in special schools 
or units within mainstream schools/colleges.  Special Needs PA’s undertake complex 
casework and support the young person and their family/carers including in the 
preparation of applications for out-of-county residential placements.  All staff will undertake 
Section 139a (previously 140) Assessments. 

2. NEET Team 
PAs working in NEET (not in education, employment or training) teams have a varied 
caseload ranging from those young people ready for placing, to those requiring intensive 
long term support, plus young people who are on pre-vocational learning.

Each training provider has a link PA and NEET PAs provide a duty service to the main 
centre and to the outreach facilities in Ross, Ledbury and Leominster. 

3. Other Services 
Central services are currently based in Worcester at the Head Office, and as well as HR, 
Training and Finance include provision of data and information services including the 
website and other printed materials. 

25



26



CONNEXIONS CONSULTATION SUMMARY 

Herefordshire is reconfiguring the Children’s and Young People’s Directorate in order to 
address the range of existing, new and evolving challenges and demands placed upon us.  
The plans for the development of the Connexions service are set within that agenda and 
include the developing plans for the locality teams and the aims of the Herefordshire Public 
Services, which are: 

 Improved outcomes 

 Excellent Services 

 More focus on customer experience 

 Efficiency 

Herefordshire Council is seeking to consult on: 

 The future management and delivery arrangements for the range of services 
currently delivered by Connexions;

 The priorities for service delivery and outcomes for the new arrangements (within the 
constraints of the national specification and statutory duties). 

This paper outlines a summary of comments relative to the consultation. 

1. Do you agree with the vision of the proposed changes? 

7 Strongly Agree 

3 Agree

2 Disagree

0 Strongly Disagree 

Comments:

CC-RP 001 A It will more readily facilitate the integration of tier 2 (targeted services) across 
Children’s Services. 

CC-RP 003 A I think it is important that services that impact a young people adopt a joined up 
approach

CC-RP 006 SA The ability to direct Connexions type Services from within schools and 
children’s services – will allow us to modify their work into our own IAG plans 
and visions 

CC-RP 007 D The slow speed of decisions, rigidness and lack of creativity that hinders other 
department will not create the responsive and flexible service that young 
people require. 

CC-RP 008 SA Option A in the light of the vision, is infinitely preferable, and will more easily 
encourage working in partnership with other organisations. 

CC-RP 010 SA The Service must encourage individual career ambitions that are realistic and 
achievable and for the majority relate to the local and national jobs market. 

CC-RP 012 SA OK to bring Connexions in-house but don’t lose one of their great strengths – 
their impartiality and client centred approach. 

CC-RP 013 D They will be reviewed differently by all stakeholders 

27



2.  Do you agree with the priorities and objectives? 

2 Strongly Agree 

9 Agree

0 Disagree

0 Strongly Disagree 

Comments:

CC-RP 001 A The ongoing challenges and new requirements have been correctly identified. A 
further key challenge is to find the resources to enable the new requirements to be 
fulfilled.

CC-RP 006 A I would like to see – making employer links in the community and helping to 
facilitate better employer engagement in schools as a priority 

CC-RP 007 A To be more inclusive of other agencies in delivering services to NEET young 
people.
TO place greater emphasis on useful, work-skilled having to solve NEET, not just 
any training with little purpose 

CC-RP 008 A Drop-out rates post-16 and effects on NEET numbers continue to be frustrating 
despite improved arrangements for notification by post-16 providers, and 
subsequent action by Connexions Service 

CC-RP010 A The prime service of our new Connexions Service must be to provide timely, 
impartial and accurate career advice and guidance to mainstream pupils as a 
priority.

CC-RP 012 SA Make sure there is enough funding for an expansion of the service to 11-19 year 
olds. All young people are entitled to an equal service. 

CC-RP 013 A Extra services require extra people 

Appendix 3 
Page 2 of 5 

28



3.  Do you think the overall delivery model with a separate IAG service and targeted work in 
locality teams is appropriate? 

3 Strongly Agree 

5 Agree

3 Disagree

1 Strongly Disagree 

Comments:

CC-RP 001 A With regard to a separate IAG service and targeted work in locality teams 

CC-RP 001 D With PAs with LDD responsibility being placed in LDD Specialist Team 

CC-RP 003 A Would agree that is important to have a joined up approach 

CC-RP 003 D Am unclear about distinction between LDD Specialists team and IAG Team as 
one

CC-RP 004 SA Knowledge of local areas is crucial 

CC-RP 007 D There is already a lot of suspicion around council run services amongst young 
people. This will not be perceived as impartial and will put off a number of young 
people from accessing the service. 

CC-RP 008 A Could be conflict of interest between assessment of needs, and the financial 
decisions related to levels and funding of support. 

CC-RP 010 SA IAG Advisors must have strong links with specialist training providers who can 
provide occupational careers advice. 

CC-RP 012 SA Connexions is an established brand with young people and the name should be 
retained

CC-RP 013 SD By loosing the larger team structure, communication between PAs and support 
will be less effective 

Appendix 3 
Page 3 of 5 

29



4. What do you value from the current Connexions Service? 

Comments:

CC-RP 003 Impartiality of advice 

CC-RP 004 Continuity of service 

CC-RP 006 Their flexibility, willingness to attend CAF, PSP meetings 

CC-RP 007 Advocates on behalf of young people – sometimes against LA decisions 

CC-RP 008 Good performance statistics relating to NEETs and Unknowns, some of the best, I 
believe, in the country. 

CC-RP 012 A city centre “drop in” location 

CC-RP 013 It is possible to develop firm relationships with a named PA built on trust and mutual 
respect

5. What else would you like the Connexions Service to deliver? 

Comments:

CC-RP 003 Advice at younger age 

CC-RP 005 IAG from Y8 – Y9, Y10/11 and 16+ 
Support for potential NEETs 

CC-RP 006 Meet employers / career conferences 

CC-RP 007 Could contribute more to wider agendas such as accommodation issues 

CC-RP 010 The remit is currently very wide and nothing more should be added which could 
dilute core services 

CC-RP 011 Improved understanding of the barriers faced by 16-25 year olds with 
severe/profound Multiple Learning Difficulties 

CC-RP 012 More work with employers to generate employment opportunities for young people  

Appendix 3 
Page 4 of 5 

30



6. How might Connexions contribute to Key Stage 3 as part of an integrated 11-19 
Strategy?

 Comments: 

CC-RP 001 It is important that schools have good Careers Education and Guidance in key stage 
3.
Develop information resources suitable for KS3 students. 
Provide support and IAG to those who are not in schools, excluded or in receipt of 
elective home education. 

CC-RP 006 Provide clear data on the local “job market” which could be used in Geography or 
PSHE lessons 

CC-RP 010 Advice and guidance Diploma options 

7.  Have you any other ideas or comments you would like to make about the proposals?

Comments:

CC-RP 001 It is vital that, as a minimum, current resource levels are maintained and, if the new 
requirements outlined on page are met that front-line resources are increased. 

CC-RP 003 I hope that the amount of time that Connexions staff are able to spend in school can 
increase to deal with the need for IAG at a younger age 

CC-RP 004 We are pleased with the service as it stands, changes are welcome if they are 
appropriate to our needs 

CC-RP 007 No explanation of why take in-house – other than it is how others do it 

CC-RP 010 It should be a high profile organisation with its own identity, not just seen as “a 
department of the council” 

CC-RP 012 Keep it in the centre of town 

CC-RP 013 It is vital that the outlying services remain in towns other than Hereford 

SUMMARY FEEDBACK FROM YOUNG PEOPLE 

 The Connexions Transfer needs to pay particular attention to the image of 
Herefordshire Council with Children and Young People and ensure that 
dissatisfaction with the Council does not translate to the Connexions Service once it 
becomes part of the Local Authority 

 The Connexions logo is a brand that is trusted 

 The work of this consultation clearly chows an overwhelming high regard for the 
Connexions PAs in Herefordshire 

 The integration of Children and Young People’s services has significant potential to 
provide a comprehensive and cohesive web of professionals to provide the very best 
for children and young people. 

Appendix 3 
Page 5 of 5 

31



32



 

 
Further information on the subject of this report is available from 

Andy Tector Assistant Director Environment & Culture on (01432) 261989 
  

  

MEETING: CABINET 

DATE: 10 SEPTEMBER 2009 

TITLE OF REPORT: 

JOINT MUNICIPAL WASTE MANAGEMENT 

STRATEGY FOR HEREFORDSHIRE AND 

WORCESTERSHIRE – FIRST REVIEW 

PORTFOLIO AREA:  ENVIRONMENT & STRATEGIC HOUSING 

CLASSIFICATION: Open  

Wards Affected 

County-wide  

Purpose 

The purpose is to endorse the first review of the Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy for 
Herefordshire and Worcestershire and agree its adoption. 
 

Key Decision  

This is a key decision because it is significant in terms of its effect on communities living or working in 
Herefordshire in an area comprising one or more wards.   

It was included in the Forward Plan. 

Recommendation 

THAT Cabinet endorse the review of the Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy 

and agree the adoption of the revised strategy for Herefordshire and Worcestershire.  

Key Points Summary 

• The Strategy sets out the long term aspirations for waste collection and disposal across the 
Partnership of all Local Councils in Herefordshire and Worcestershire 

• It is a 30 year strategy first published in November 2004 and continuing until 2034 

• The Strategy has been reviewed and updated in line with changes to government guidance 
and legislation and changes to service provision since publishing the original strategy in 2004. 

• The revised Strategy supports the National Waste Strategy for England and Wales 2007 with 
the climate change agenda reflected more strongly through new principles, policies and 
targets. However the Waste Hierarchy still remains as a framework for delivering municipal 
waste management services. 

• An important change to the Strategy is the introduction of the Core Collection Service where 

AGENDA ITEM 5

33



all councils will collect the same recyclable materials.  

Alternative Options 

1 The Cabinet could choose not to approve the Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy or 
could require the document to be amended.  This option would delay any progress in developing 
a Residual Waste Treatment solution for Herefordshire and Worcestershire. Choosing not to 
approve the strategy would also damage Herefordshire Council’s reputation in its Partnership with 
Local Councils in Worcestershire.  

Reasons for Recommendations 

2 The revised strategy represents the culmination of substantial work by the Joint Waste Resource 
Management Forum to update the present strategy to reflect significant changes in national 
policy, local policy, changing technology and progress in improving performance to date. Its 
formal adoption by all partner councils will show leadership and lend weight in consulting with our 
communities and other stakeholders. 

3 Adoption of the strategy will allow Herefordshire Council to meet its obligations under the Landfill 
Allowance Trading Scheme. 

4 The authority is already preparing to launch its new refuse and recycling collection contract in 
accordance with the aims and objectives of the revised strategy. This will help meet the strategy’s 
combined recycling target for all councils of 43% by 2014. It is anticipated the scheme, with the 
support of residents, will increase the council’s recycling to 40.7% in 2013/14. 

Introduction and Background 

5 The Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy for Herefordshire and Worcestershire was 
developed in Partnership with all members of the Joint Members Waste Resource Management 
Forum. It was adopted by all the Councils within Herefordshire & Worcestershire in 2004. This 
strategy sets down for the first time how all the Councils would work together in a coordinated 
manner to reduce the amount of waste being land-filled.  

6 The present strategy, “Managing waste for a brighter future” was developed at a time when the 
amount of municipal waste collected and disposed of was increasing year on year. The strategy 
was founded on six key principles from which emanated eighteen key policies and eight specific 
targets. Applying the waste hierarchy, the strategy focused on restricting waste growth, increasing 
recycling and composting and reducing the amount of waste treated and ultimately disposed of to 
land-fill. The uppermost concern in producing this strategy was to meet restrictions on landfilling 
of municipal waste introduced under the Landfill Allowance Trading Scheme. Substantial financial 
penalties are incurred if restrictions are exceeded. 

7 An integrated collection and disposal system known as the “Vision for Waste Collection” was 
central to future joint working. In this system, collection authorities would collect commingled dry 
recyclables and residual refuse from each household on alternate weeks. Commingled dry 
recyclables will be sorted in a reclamation facility, Envirosort, currently under construction at 
Norton near Worcester. It was planned that residual waste would be treated using an autoclave 
process capable of reducing its bulk and producing a usable fibre by-product.  Planning 
permission was gained for autoclave plants at Hartlebury in Worcestershire and Madley in 
Herefordshire but it has not proved possible to conclude a satisfactory contractual arrangement to 
construct them.  

34



8 This Council’s recycling and waste management performance has improved steadily each year 
since district wide kerbside recycling was introduced in 2004. Herefordshire’s current recycling 
rate is forecast at almost 34% this year and the amount of waste collected has now fallen below 
2001/2 levels. Other Councils in Worcestershire have also made substantial improvements which 
means that levels of municipal waste across the two Counties have begun to fall in recent years. 
Significant issues remain however, especially in relation to treatment and disposal of residual 
waste to meet future restrictions on landfill. 

9 The original strategy contained a commitment to regular formal review on a three yearly basis 
recognising the dynamic nature of both waste management legislation and technology. The Joint 
Waste Resource Management Forum commenced its review of the strategy in 2006 which has 
taken longer than originally anticipated due to delays in the refresh of the overarching national 
government strategy, the Waste Strategy for England 2007. 

Community Impact 

10 For the revised joint strategy to be credible and robust, it was essential to be able demonstrate 
that it had been subject to rigorous, extensive and properly balanced consultation with the public 
and interested parties. A sequential, structured approach was adopted using an initial series of 
focus groups to identify key issues that were explored and quantified through a sample survey. 
This provided balanced and statistically valid feedback on the consultation draft enabling final 
refinement of the strategy document to fully reflect responses. The sequential approach was 
selected as it ensured that partners had the opportunity at a number of stages to endorse the 
evolving document to reduce the risks of non-adoptions of the final strategy.  

11 The consultation exercise concentrated on the changes to the strategy arising from the review 
process. In particular this focused on how the revisions addressed the issue of climate change 
which has become of much greater significance since the original strategy was adopted (and on 
which many Forum partners have now taken robust policy positions). There is also a focus on 
how the revised strategy has responded to the challenges posed in Waste Strategy for England 
2007. It was not intended to consult upon aspects of the strategy that have not changed. 

12 Independent specialists with appropriate knowledge and expertise in consultation on waste and 
environmental matters were engaged to lead this process. Support was provided through existing 
technical and communications resources.  

13 The consultation process proved invaluable in developing the final revised Joint Municipal Waste 
Management Strategy documents. The focus groups enabled the views of residents to be sought 
and without this opportunity they may not have provided their valuable input. There was an 
excellent response to the public postal survey with a response rate of over 20%. However, there 
was a limited response to the on-line questionnaire and ways of improving this response rate will 
be considered in future consultations.  Responses were received from a variety of different 
stakeholders and interested parties which provided detailed and challenging comments reflecting 
a range of views and issues. 

Key Considerations 

14 Since the original strategy was developed and adopted, government has refreshed the national 
waste strategy with the publication of Waste Strategy for England 2007. This focuses much more 
on the contribution made by waste collection, treatment and disposal to climate change. It also 
set out to break the link between economic growth and the growth in waste production, by seeing 
waste as a resource from which value can be derived. Targets for recycling, diversion of waste 
from landfill and recovery of value from waste set out in Waste Strategy for England are now 

35



more demanding than those established previously. The draft revised joint strategy takes on 
board this revised national position. 

15 Since 2004, the issue of climate change has become of increasing concern and importance. 
Councils in Herefordshire and Worcestershire have adopted robust policies and strategies to 
meet obligations and targets placed upon them to contribute towards reducing their emissions of 
greenhouse gases and to mitigating the effects of climate change. New National Indicators 
require councils to measure their performance in relation to greenhouse gas emissions and 
adapting to climate change.  

16 Statutory Guidance has been issued by central government on the production of joint municipal 
waste management strategies subsequent to the adoption of our original joint strategy. These 
strategies have also become subject to assessment in accordance with Strategic Environmental 
Impact Assessment legislation. These requirements have meant that it has been necessary to 
change the format of the strategy, which is also of considerably greater size. 

17 The revised strategy now comprises a Headline Strategy (Appendix 1) and a series of detailed 
supporting documents:  

Annex A  Waste Growth 
Annex B  Waste Prevention Options Appraisal 
Annex C  Recycling & Composting Options Appraisal 
Annex D  Residual Waste Options Appraisal 
Annex E  Scoping Report for the Strategic Environmental Assessment 
Annex F  Strategic Environmental Assessment 
Annex G  Where Are We Now 
Annex H  Consultation (Appendix 2) 
Annex I  Action Plan (Appendix 3) 
Annex J  Glossary & Abbreviations 
 

18 The revised strategy builds upon the strengths and successes of the original strategy. 
Commitment to the waste hierarchy remains a key principle. This is reflected in policies focusing 
on reducing the amount of waste arising, increasing the proportion recycled and from which value 
is derived and minimising the amount of waste that is landfilled. These are described in more 
detail in Annexes B, C and D. 

19 The “Vision for waste collection” has been replaced by a policy of providing a core service to all 
households of kerbside services for commingled recyclables and residual waste together with 
additional services for other waste streams that may be provided on a charged for basis. The 
previous blanket approach of alternating weekly collections has been replaced with a focus on 
waste reduction being achieved by all authorities increasing the amount recycled and restricting 
either residual waste collection frequency and/or container capacity.  

20 The prescriptive approach to treatment of residual waste by an autoclave process has been 
removed from the draft revised strategy. There is now a new policy to increase diversion away 
from landfill supported by a Residual Options Appraisal (Annex D). This provides a detailed 
appraisal for waste treatment options capable of increasing the value derived from the residual 
waste stream. The appraisal informs the method for future treatment of residual waste, proposals 
for which are expected to come forward from the Waste Disposal Contractor (Severn Waste 
Services). The robustness of the strategy is important in supporting necessary applications for 
planning consent. 

21 Targets within the revised strategy are presented on a pooled basis. Each partner Council will 
have an identified contribution to meeting these targets. This Council’s contribution to meeting the 

36



pooled 43% recycling target by 31st March 2014 will be fulfilled by increasing our overall recycling 
& composting rate to 40.7%.  

Financial Implications 

22 This strategy and the proposed revisions to it, have significant resource implications for this 
Council. The authority is already preparing to launch its new refuse and recycling collection 
contract to include countywide kerbside recycling. However particular consideration should be 
given to the likely increase in cost to the authority through increased investment in waste disposal 
infrastructure required to meet government targets as set out in the revised strategy.  

23 These increased costs have to be counterbalanced by the even higher costs that the Council 
would incur by not increasing the levels of diversion of household waste from landfill. The Landfill 
Allowance Trading Scheme penalties and annually increasing Landfill Tax will both impose 
significantly higher costs on the authority than the costs of developing a waste treatment 
infrastructure to divert waste from landfill.  

Legal Implications 

24 It is a requirement under “The Guidance on Municipal Waste Management Strategies” issued by 
DEFRA in July 2005 that Herefordshire Council has a Joint Municipal Waste Management 
Strategy.  The Legal Services Team of Worcestershire County Council have considered the 
Strategy and have recommended and agreed amendments to the Strategy.  Because the 
Strategy has been developed through a partnership of Herefordshire Council, Worcestershire 
County Council and the District Councils of Worcestershire the Legal Team in Worcestershire 
have taken the role of reviewing the Strategy.  

Risk Management 

25 There is a risk that reductions in municipal waste to landfill are not achieved because the revised 
strategy fails to properly take account of views of, and engage local communities and other 
stakeholders. Endorsement of consultation draft revised strategy shows clear leadership prior to 
extensive structured public consultation will reduce this risk. 

26 Failure to be supported or implemented by all signatory Councils can be avoided by showing clear 
leadership and commitment to the revised strategy. 

27 There is a risk of not achieving reductions in municipal waste to landfill because revised strategy 
fails to be robust enough to support application(s) for planning approval for residual waste 
treatment facilities. This can be mitigated by endorsement of the extensive, structured public 
consultation and thus ensure final adopted revised strategy is robust and well supported. 

Consultees 

Endorsement of the revised strategy has been sought from all member councils of the Joint Waste 
Resource Management Forum. 

Appendices 

Appendix 1   The Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy for Herefordshire and 
Worcestershire – First Review - Headline Strategy November 2009 

Appendix 2  Consultation – Annex H 

Appendix 3 Action Plan – Annex I 

37



Background Papers 

The Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy for Herefordshire and Worcestershire – First 
Review - November 2009  

 Headline Strategy 
Annex A   Waste Growth 
Annex B   Waste Prevention 
Annex C   Recycling & Composting 
Annex D   Residual Options Appraisal  
Annex E   Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report 
Annex F   Strategic Environmental Assessment 
Annex G   Achievements So Far 
Annex H   Consultation Report 
Annex I    Action Plan 
Annex J   Glossary and Abbreviations 
 
Joint Waste Management Strategy for Herefordshire and Worcestershire 2004 “Managing waste for a 
brighter future” 

Waste Strategy for England 2007 

 

38



 Headline Strategy  

The Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy for Herefordshire and Worcestershire  Page 1 of 17 

First Review November 2009 

The Joint Municipal Waste Management 
Strategy for Herefordshire and 

Worcestershire 2004-2034 

First Review November 2009 

Headline Strategy 

39



 Headline Strategy  

The Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy for Herefordshire and Worcestershire  Page 2 of 17 

First Review November 2009 

Foreword  
Not so many years ago, waste was not the issue it is today. We did not create 
the volume of waste we do now, and all that went in the bin was mainly ash, 
kitchen waste and some packaging - which ended up on the local tip. Now we 
live in changing times. The advent of consumerism and a more affluent and 
throwaway society has led to changes in our lifestyle and the way goods and 
materials are packaged.  

Nationally, waste is continuing to grow. The cost of dealing with municipal waste 
in the two counties of Herefordshire and Worcestershire was £47 million in 
2007/08 and the costs are increasing. Landfill tax will increase from £40 per 
tonne from April 2009 to £72 per tonne from April 2013 and new treatment 
facilities will be needed to treat our waste so that we can meet the changes in 
legislation. We must make tough decisions as to how to tackle the problem.  

Driven by Government and European legislation and a higher social awareness, 
we all need to rethink how we deal with our waste. 

This reviewed Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy for Herefordshire 
and Worcestershire sets out the problems, looks at our success to date, where 
we are now and how we can move forward.  

As communities, we must reduce the amount of waste that is produced. This is 
a key element to our strategy. We must reduce, re-use, recycle and compost 
more. We must also think of waste as being a resource from which as much 
value as possible should be recovered.  

This reviewed Strategy has been developed by the Joint Members Waste 
Forum made up of elected representatives from all the local authorities in 
Herefordshire and Worcestershire.  

The successful introduction of the household recycling schemes across the two 
counties has shown we can all play our part. Together we can make a 
difference.  

Councillor Anthony Blagg 

Chairman of Joint Members Waste Resource Management Forum November 2009 

40



 Headline Strategy  

The Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy for Herefordshire and Worcestershire  Page 3 of 17 

First Review November 2009 

1.0 Introduction 

1.1 Why do we need a Strategy? 

1.1.1 The next two decades will continue to see waste management in the United 
Kingdom transformed. The challenges presented by climate change, along with 
ever more stringent Government targets and new UK and European legislation 
will drive these changes. At the same time the service expectations of our 
customers continue to rise year on year. If the transformation is to be successful 
and actively engage our communities there needs to continue to be a well thought 
out local Strategy in place to guide all important decisions and commitments. 

1.1.2 The need to achieve efficiencies in the delivery of public services has also made it 
increasingly important for all partners to work together through an integrated 
Strategy which encompasses collection and disposal functions. The purpose of 
this first revision is to clarify key issues, give clear direction on waste 
management in the two counties and set out and co-ordinate general principles, 
policies and targets across all authorities in Herefordshire and Worcestershire. 

1.1.3 The aim of this Strategy is to decrease waste production and increase the 
recovery of value from waste (to re-use it, recycle it, compost it, or recover value 
in other ways) by treating waste as a resource. 

1.1.4 The Strategy will also encourage and ensure that partnerships continue to be 
developed between all the parties involved in the management of municipal waste 
in the two counties of Herefordshire and Worcestershire, decreasing reliance on 
landfill and ensuring that waste management is sustainable and provides value for 
money for local communities, tax payers and fee paying customers. 

1.2 How has the Revised Strategy Been Developed? 

1.2.1 This first revision, replaces the original Joint Municipal Waste Management 
Strategy for Herefordshire and Worcestershire published in 2004. 

1.2.2 This Strategy has been prepared by the Joint Waste Resource Management 
Forum which represents the eight local authorities across Herefordshire and 
Worcestershire. 

1.2.3 In reviewing the Strategy we have looked at the wide range of options available to 
us, for example preventing and reusing waste, recycling and composting waste 
and dealing with any remaining waste that cannot be re-used or recycled. 

1.2.4 The possible environmental effects of the strategy have been considered by 
undertaking a systematic appraisal known as a ‘Strategic Environmental 
Assessment’. The results of this process have ensured that the strategy 
addresses all of the relevant environmental issues. The Strategic Environmental 
Assessment is included as Annex F. 

1.3 Consultation 

1.3.1 Successfully implementing the Strategy is not just a matter for Local Authorities. 
Everyone within our communities has an active role to play and we have sought 
the views and support of everyone who has a stake in this process including 
householders, local businesses, the Environment Agency, the waste management 
industry, the community, voluntary sector and the waste management contractors 
partnering the Councils. Annex H contains full details of the consultation process 
and outcomes.  

41



 Headline Strategy  

The Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy for Herefordshire and Worcestershire  Page 4 of 17 

First Review November 2009 

1.3.2 The consultation process proved invaluable in developing a revised Strategy. 
Focus Groups enabled us to seek the views of residents that without this 
opportunity may not have provided us with their valuable input. We received an 
excellent response to the public postal survey with a response rate of over 20%. 
We were also pleased to receive responses from a variety of stakeholders and 
interested parties who provided us with detailed and challenging comments 
reflecting a range of views and issues. We would like to thank everyone who took 
the time to get involved and respond. This input has helped us to develop a more 
relevant and robust Strategy.  

1.3.3 The Strategy is available via the internet and in order to minimise environmental 
impact, hard copies will only be provided on request.  

1.4 What This Strategy Does Not Cover 

1.4.1 Firstly, this Strategy does not consider the location of any waste management 
facilities. For Worcestershire this will be covered by a new Waste Core Strategy 
which is now being prepared by the County Council and in Herefordshire by the 
Local Development Framework (LDF). The Joint Municipal Waste Management 
Strategy focuses on what needs to be done in order to make decisions about what 
processes, technologies and facilities are needed in order to meet the challenges 
over the next two decades. 

1.4.2 Other than the relatively small amounts of commercial waste collected and 
disposed of by the Waste Collection and Disposal Authorities in Herefordshire and 
Worcestershire, the revised Strategy does not cover other waste types such as 
industrial or construction wastes. The collection, treatment and disposal of these 
are not the responsibility of the Local Authorities that have prepared this 
document. The priority at this stage is to develop a Strategy for wastes for which 
we do have a statutory responsibility – i.e. municipal waste. The Waste Core 
Strategy and LDF will, however, deal with the planning issues relating to all 
controlled wastes. 

1.5 Period Covered by the Strategy 

1.5.1 The Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy covers a period of thirty years 
(2004 – 2034) and will continue to be reviewed at least every five years, taking 
into account any new guidance, targets or changes in legislation and new 
technology or other significant development.  

1.5.2 Other Documents 

1.5.3 A series of annexes accompany this headline document: 

Annex A Waste Growth 
Annex B Waste Prevention Options Appraisal 
Annex C Recycling & Composting Options Appraisal 
Annex D Residual Waste Options Appraisal 
Annex E Scoping Report to inform Strategic Environmental Assessment 
Annex F Strategic Environmental Assessment 
Annex G Achievements so Far 
Annex H Consultation process and outcomes 
Annex I Action Plan 
Annex J Glossary 

42



 Headline Strategy  

The Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy for Herefordshire and Worcestershire  Page 5 of 17 

First Review November 2009 

2.0 Our Principles for Municipal Waste  

2.1 Over the next 20 – 25 years we aim to change the way that municipal waste is 

managed in Herefordshire and Worcestershire. Our principles are as follows: 

Principle One – Meeting the challenge of Climate Change by viewing 
waste as a resource

What we do about waste is a significant part of how we treat our environment. Cutting 
down on the amount of waste produced, reducing our use of natural resources, recycling 
materials and recovering energy from those we can no longer use, is a vital part of 
moving us towards more sustainable living. The Partnership will view waste as a 
resource and seek to maximise the resource potential of waste. We will understand the 
environmental impacts of any decisions and aim to ensure policies, collection and 
treatment methods reduce the impact of resource depletion and Greenhouse Gas 
emissions. 

Principle Two – Commitment to the Waste Hierarchy of which Waste 
Prevention is the top

The principle upon which the Strategy is built is that of waste prevention, the top of the 
Waste Hierarchy as in Waste Strategy for England 2007. Through making opportunities 
available, designing appropriate collection systems and raising awareness, the 
Partnership will endeavour to ensure that everyone in our communities can play an active 
role in ensuring that the amount of waste is reduced before it enters the waste stream. 

The Partnership will continue to promote waste prevention through a variety of 
campaigns and initiatives that will be reviewed to ensure that the most effective 
campaigns, targeting key waste streams such as food waste, are implemented. 

Principle Three – Influencing Government, Waste Producers and the 
Wider Community

The Partnership will lobby Government to do more to combat the production of excess 
waste material. Where possible we will work with waste producers to understand what 
can be achieved together in reducing the amount of waste that is produced. We will 
endeavour to influence commercial waste producers in an attempt to marry up the 
increasing recycling, composting and waste minimisation performance in municipal waste 
management with that of commercial waste. 

The Partnership will prioritise awareness raising and engagement as a means to 
increase the performance of waste minimisation and recycling/composting initiatives. We 
see this as a vital tool to engage all stakeholders. Targeted and co-ordinated campaigns 
will ensure consistency across the authorities. 

The Partnership will ensure its officers and Members are fully aware of the aims and 
objectives (through the principles, policies and targets) of the Joint Municipal Waste 
Management Strategy. 

Principle Four – Continued Commitment to Re-use, Recycling and 
Composting

The Partnership will continue to improve the efficiency and operation of its core recycling 
service. We will adopt a pooled target for re-use, recycling and composting, however 
there will be a minimum performance level that each authority will need to meet. We will 
aspire to achieve the long term national recycling and composting targets, however, we 
will not compromise the environmental and economic performance of schemes just to 
meet notional, non statutory targets. 

43



 Headline Strategy  

The Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy for Herefordshire and Worcestershire  Page 6 of 17 

First Review November 2009 

Principle Five – Minimising The Use Of Landfill

The Partnership has recognised that the landfilling of wastes is at the bottom of the 
Waste Hierarchy and for good reason. This waste of resources will be avoided where 
other options are environmentally and economically beneficial. If utilising waste 
management capacity beyond our own borders is more economically viable and 
environmentally sound than landfilling waste within our counties, then this will be looked 
at as an option. 

Principle Six – Partnership

The Partnership will ensure knowledge, best practice and experience are shared and will 
work together to ensure that this Strategy is implemented. We will aim to adopt a 
common approach across the counties in areas of waste policy. 

The Partnership cannot carry out the Strategy alone. We will actively develop 
partnerships with all sectors.  

Principle Seven – Monitoring and Review

The Partnership will ensure that it keeps up to date in implementing the best possible 
management systems that are needed to deliver this Strategy using a flexible and 
integrated approach to the waste treatment methods used. We will ensure we understand 
the material we collect and the impacts of the services we provide. 

The Strategy will be reviewed at least every five years to determine progress and update 
it in the light of new legislation, new technology or other significant developments. 
Regular communication with partners and the public will take place to ensure that all 
stakeholders are aware of progress and involved in changes made. 

Principle Eight – Customer Focus

As part of the development and implementation of this Strategy, the Partnership will 
continue to engage with local people and other partners about the way in which waste is 
managed in Herefordshire and Worcestershire. We will design the services that we 
provide around the customers that we serve seeking to balance the longer term need to 
reduce the amount of waste generated and disposed of with the range and type of 
services necessary to meet our customers needs.  

Principle Nine - Value for Money

The Partnership will work to deliver the Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy in 
the most effective, efficient and economic way. We will aim to view waste collection and 
disposal costs holistically to ensure they provide best value and a cost benefit to the 
Partnership and our customers. 

Principle Ten – Consideration of Social, Environmental and Economic 
Impacts 

The Partnership will consider the holistic business case in terms of social, environmental 
and economic impacts in its approach to waste management across the counties. 

44



 Headline Strategy  

The Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy for Herefordshire and Worcestershire  Page 7 of 17 

First Review November 2009 

3.0 Policies, Targets and the Way Forward 

3.1.1 Through the consultation, an overwhelming majority of people felt that dealing 
with waste and recycling is everyone's responsibility and that it is important for the 
councils to spend money on waste and recycling services.  

3.1.2 This chapter sets out the policies and targets that we have agreed to achieve our 
principles. We have developed a number of general policies which relate to the 
overarching principles of our Strategy as below: 

Policy 1 

Local Authorities in Herefordshire and Worcestershire will adopt the following Waste 
Hierarchy as a template for their approach to Waste Management, ensuring that 
waste is prevented wherever possible first before considering other options.  

Prevention 

Re-use 

Recycle/Compost, 

Energy Recovery 

Safe disposal to landfill

Policy 2  

The Local Authorities will ensure that waste management in Herefordshire and 
Worcestershire provides good value for money to local communities, taxpayers and fee-
paying customers.

Policy 3 

The Local Authorities will design the services that they provide around the customers that 
they serve seeking to balance the longer term need to reduce the amount of waste 
generated and disposed of with the range and type of services necessary to meet our 
customers needs. This will include a range of core kerbside services for commingled 
recyclables and residual waste together with additional services for other waste streams 
that may be provided on a charged for basis.

Policy 4 

The Local Authorities are committed to achieve existing and future waste targets set 
within the Local Area Agreements (LAA) for Herefordshire and Worcestershire. 

Policy 5 

The Local Authorities will seek to adopt and implement sustainable procurement policies 
and practices for goods and services (including waste management services) that they 
buy that actively seek to minimise waste and support the use of re-used and recycled 
materials. 

Policy 6 

The Local Authorities will continue to work towards a consistent and transparent 
approach in developing and monitoring performance. 

45



 Headline Strategy  

The Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy for Herefordshire and Worcestershire  Page 8 of 17 

First Review November 2009 

3.2 Climate Change 

3.2.1 Reducing the carbon footprint of waste management activities within the two 
counties will be achieved through our obligation through the Landfill Allowance 
Trading Scheme and target 1 below. In addition, all authorities are now required to 
monitor and report on national indicators 185 (Carbon dioxide (CO2) reduction 
from local authority operations), 186 (per capita CO2 emissions in the local 
authority area) and 188 (adapting to Climate Change). 

3.2.2 Through the consultation, the majority of people felt that there was a link between 
how waste is dealt with and climate change. 

Policy 7 

The Local Authorities will actively seek to provide waste management services in a 
manner that minimises greenhouse gas emissions and other impacts that contribute to 
Climate Change. 

Target 1 

We are currently gathering baseline data in order to measure our performance against 
the new National Indicators 185 and 186. Once this data has been gathered for a year 
we can then set a meaningful Climate Change target, which will be included as a key 
target within the Strategy 

3.3 Waste Prevention  

3.3.1 As a result of the waste prevention measures introduced as part of the Strategy in 
2004, the growth in municipal waste arisings in the two counties has stopped and 
waste is now starting to decline (see 2.2.3 in Annex G for municipal waste growth 
from 2000/01 to 2007/08). In future years to 2034, it is estimated that municipal 
waste will only grow in line with the increase in the number of households across 
the counties identified in the Regional Spatial Strategy (see Annex A).  

3.3.2 An important way of minimising residual waste will be through a combination of 
alternate weekly collections and/or decreasing container capacity over time. This 
is now referred to as the 'Core Collection Service'. 

Policy 8

The Core Collection Service 

1. All authorities will collect the same materials for recycling through a commingled 
collection; 

2. All authorities will prevent waste and increase the amount recycled through 
restricting: 

a) Collection frequency and/or 

b)  Container capacity 

46



 Headline Strategy  

The Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy for Herefordshire and Worcestershire  Page 9 of 17 

First Review November 2009 

3.3.3 An assessment of options for waste prevention has been carried out and is 
included as Annex B. The diagram below shows the potential relative contribution 
of Prevention and Re-use measures to total avoidable waste at 2020/21 levels:  

Home Composting

30%

Junk Mail

9%

Smart shopping

17%

Food waste prevention

24%

Reusable Nappies

5% 

Home Shredding

1%

Sink your waste

5%

Reuse initiatives 

9%

3.3.4 The assessment of options indicates that home composting, food waste prevention, 
‘smart shopping’, and both re-use and junk mail initiatives could have the biggest 
impact in terms of reducing both waste collection and disposal costs. 

Policy 9

The Local Authorities will implement uniform waste reduction/prevention initiatives 
across the counties to reduce the kg/household of waste collected and disposed of but 
not recycled, composted or re-used as a minimum in line with the aims of National Waste 
Strategy for England 2007 

3.3.5 Home composting continues to provide the single most effective potential 
prevention measure. Our approach is to promote home composting to reduce the 
environmental impacts of disposing of compostable waste. We will continue to 
promote home composting through the sale of subsidised compost bins and provide 
advice to residents through the ‘Master Composter’ scheme. Home composting also 
reduces collection and disposal costs and ensures that value is recovered from the 
waste material. 

3.3.6 The authorities are working with agencies on National Campaigns to prevent waste 
such as Waste Resource Action Programme’s food waste reduction and ‘Shop 
Smart’ campaigns. We are also working at a local level to develop initiatives such 
as recruiting and training volunteers to promote waste prevention and give advice. 

3.3.7 Herefordshire and Worcestershire continue to be innovative in developing and 
promoting the ‘Sink your Waste’ campaign for food waste disposers and thus 
preventing food waste from entering the municipal waste stream. 

Policy 10

The Local Authorities will continue to develop and implement the most sustainable ways 
of processing green and kitchen waste within the household. 

3.3.8 We will seek to minimise the amount of unsolicited mail that we receive and 
deliver and we will continue to promote the ‘Jilt the Junk Mail’ campaign to raise 

47



 Headline Strategy  

The Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy for Herefordshire and Worcestershire  Page 10 of 17 

First Review November 2009 

awareness of the issue and encourage people to register with the Mailing 
Preference Service and Royal Mail’s door-to-door service in a bid to help them 
reduce the amount of unsolicited mail that they receive. 

3.3.9 The European Union Packaging Directive encourages producers to reduce 
packaging and recycle and recover packaging waste and now most bottles, jars, 
cans and plastic containers are lighter than they were before 2000. However, 
there is still a problem of excess packaging around many products. The 
Government is also working with the retail sector, primarily through the Courtauld 
Commitment which aims to design out packaging waste growth by 2008, deliver 
reductions in packaging waste by 2010 and to identify ways to reduce food waste. 
The Authorities will seek to minimise packaging in the procurement of goods, 
continue to lobby for reduced packaging and support local initiatives to reduce the 
usage of disposable carrier bags through local organisations and initiatives. 

Policy 11

The Joint Member Waste Resource Management Forum for Herefordshire and 
Worcestershire will lobby for measures to combat waste growth in areas such as product 
design, packaging and other producer responsibility issues, which are most effectively 
pursued at the national and international levels 

3.3.10 We need to continue to build upon the success of current waste prevention 
initiatives where practicable and financially viable, ensuring that they continue to 
deliver effective results. Our approach will be to encourage and achieve waste 
prevention. The Waste Prevention team employed by Herefordshire and 
Worcestershire Councils promotes these initiatives in partnership with all the 
authorities. 

3.3.11 Our Waste Prevention Target is: 

Target 2

To achieve the national reductions in household residual waste (waste not re-used, 
recycled or composted) of 29% by 31st March 2010, 35% by 2015 and 45% by 2020, 
based on 2000 levels. 

Achieving the target: 

The aim of the target is to achieve reductions in the amount of household waste that is 
not re-used, recycled or composted as set by the Government in Waste Strategy for 
England 2007. This will be done by concentrating on waste prevention, i.e. limiting the 
amount of non recyclable waste collected, promoting re-use and home composting and 
maximising on the amount recycled and composted through collection and disposal 
systems. 

Authority Kg per 
household 
2000 

2006/07 
performance 

Target 
March 
2010 

Target 
March 
2015 

Target 
March 
2020 

Herefordshire 1,077 914 764 700 592 

Worcestershire 1,075 849 763 699 591 

48



 Headline Strategy  

The Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy for Herefordshire and Worcestershire  Page 11 of 17 

First Review November 2009 

3.4 Re-use 

3.4.1 We will continue to actively encourage, develop and promote re-use initiatives 
wherever practicable and financially viable. We acknowledge the strengths of the 
third sector in helping to deliver our objectives and that if the market can deal with 
“waste”, costs to the authorities can be reduced. We will continue to support the 
work of the charitable and not-for-profit sector, in particular those Third Sector 
organisations which are involved in the Waste and Recycling Forum which has 
been set up by the Waste Prevention team. 

3.4.2 A grant scheme has been developed to allow third sector organisations to apply 
for small grants to develop new and existing initiatives, train staff and create 
promotional materials.  

3.4.3 We acknowledge the role of other sectors in supporting these operations and this 
continues to be supported through payment of re-use credits. 

3.4.4 ‘Freecycle’, and other internet-based waste exchange initiatives are an ideal way 
for local residents to exchange unwanted goods. We will continue to promote this 
volunteer led project by conducting training sessions on how to register and use 
this website and by raising the profile of Freecycle. 

3.4.5 We will continue to promote alternative ways of disposing of unwanted furniture 
and appliances. 

3.4.6 We are looking at the option of providing two recycling/re-use centres in 
Worcestershire. These could accept a full range of materials for recycling and re-
use. Where practicable re-use facilities will be provided at all Household Waste 
Sites. 

3.4.7 The authorities will investigate ways in which material collected through bulky 
waste collections can be diverted to re-use organisations and will continue to 
promote re-use organisations at the point of bookings for bulky items being made. 

3.4.8 Textiles are collected by third sector agencies, charity shops, bring banks and at 
Household Waste Sites. The Authorities will not be collecting textiles as part of the 
Core collection service and therefore wherever possible we will work with the third 
sector to enable them to continue to provide bring banks and kerbside collections 
of textiles.  

Policy 12

The Local Authorities will work with both the third sector and contractors to provide routes 
for goods and materials to be re-used. 

3.5 Recycle/Compost  

3.5.1 Recycling and composting are the gateways to changing attitudes as they enable 
communities to play their part. They ensure that valuable natural resources are 
recovered and reduce the demand for virgin materials. The ultimate aim of the 
Local Authorities is to have a fully integrated collection system that meets the 
needs of customers and is complementary to the waste treatment and recycling
methods used. 

3.5.2 Our approach is to provide a common core waste collection service with 
commingled recycling collected from the household and sorted at our EnviroSort
Material Reclamation Facility in Worcestershire. Recycling collections will be 
adapted to suit local priorities and delivered according to need. 

49



 Headline Strategy  

The Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy for Herefordshire and Worcestershire  Page 12 of 17 

First Review November 2009 

3.5.3 The commingled recyclate will include glass, paper, card, cans and plastics. This 
range of materials will be extended if and when possible in accordance with 
recycling market demand. 

3.5.4 We will actively support the market to stimulate demand for additional types of 
recycled plastics and glass through our procurement of goods. 

3.5.5  In addition to the core service some authorities have introduced chargeable 
garden waste collections According to identified local customer demand and in 
order to increase the amount of waste recycled and composted (National Indicator 
192), authorities may choose to operate paid for collections of garden waste 
where both additional collection and disposal costs will be considered and agreed 
prior to service implementation. However, the Partnership’s preferred approach is 
to promote home composting. 

3.5.6 Outside of Wychavon there are no current plans to introduce separate collections 
of food waste.  

3.5.7 Treatment processes may separate some of the material left in the residual waste 
stream so that it can be recycled. 

3.5.8 We are actively exploring ways of recycling street sweepings. 

Policy 13

The Local Authorities are committed to achieve targets set within this Strategy and have 
regard to the national targets set out in Waste Strategy for England 2007 for recycling, 
composting and recovery. 

3.5.9 With the provision of the ‘EnviroSort’ facility the authorities will seek to expand 
recycling services to the commercial sector. In line with Waste Strategy 2007, the 
Authorities are keen to explore options for encouraging businesses to recycle 
waste and to introduce chargeable recycling collection services to them wherever 
possible.  

3.5.10 Bring recycling sites still have a significant part to play, even where there is 
substantial kerbside collection. There is certainly a need for these facilities where 
it is not possible to provide a kerbside collection – for example in remote rural or 
hard to reach urban areas. Bring recycling sites may also offer the best 
opportunity for collecting other materials not collected through kerbside schemes 
e.g. textiles.  

3.5.11 We acknowledge the role of other sectors in supporting these operations and this 
continues to be supported through payment of recycling credits. 

3.5.12 The authorities will work to have standardised products collected through bring 
recycling sites and will look at the option of contracts covering wider areas. 

Policy 14

The Partnership will continue to provide and enhance Bring Recycling Sites, where 
considered beneficial, and to supplement “kerbside” collection schemes and facilities 
provided at Household Waste Sites. 

3.5.14 To emphasise the recycling aspect at all Household Waste Sites, they will all be 
re-branded as: “Household Recycling Centres”

50



 Headline Strategy  

The Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy for Herefordshire and Worcestershire  Page 13 of 17 

First Review November 2009 

3.5.15 Household recycling centres play a significant role in diverting waste away from 
landfill for recycling and composting and are a key interface with the public. They 
provide a local facility where the public can recycle a wide range of materials.  

3.5.16 Household recycling centres will continue to provide facilities for residents to 
dispose of garden waste for composting and a place where they are also able to 
buy back the composted material as soil conditioner. 

Policy 15

The Waste Disposal Authorities, in conjunction with their partners, will maximise the 
potential of Household Recycling Centres to make sure that they provide a quality service 
and enable maximum recycling/re-use wherever possible. 

3.5.17 Our Re-use, Recycling and Composting Targets are: 

Target 3

To achieve national recycling/composting levels of household waste of 40% by 31st

March 2010 as a minimum and work towards achieving 45% by 31st March 2015 and 
50% by 31st March 2020. 

Achieving the Target: 

The aim of the target is to achieve the minimum recycling and composting levels that the 
Government has set in Waste Strategy for England 2007. The Authorities have 
committed and will continue to commit funding and set their fees and charges in order to 
reach the targets through a combination of approaches including promotion, 
communication, collection and treatment processes 

The Partnership has set a target of 43% recycling/composting before 31st March 2014. 
As new collection and treatment methods are introduced, the Partnership will review its 
ability to exceed this target in line with the 2015 national target of 45% 

Target 4

To achieve the requirements of the Household Waste Recycling Act 2003 by 31st 
December 2010.  

Achieving the Target: 

The aim of the target is to meet the requirements of the Household Waste Recycling Act 
2003, which requires all Local Authorities in England to provide a kerbside collection of at 
least 2 recyclable materials from all households by 31st December 2010 unless the cost 
of doing so would be unreasonably high or comparable alternative arrangements are 
available. This is an essential part of the overall Strategy to achieve Government targets 
and diversion from landfill. 

3.6 Recovery  

3.6.1 We live in a changing world, with new technologies emerging that should deliver 
more sustainable waste management solutions. The Partnership needs to ensure 
that this Strategy is flexible so that we can take advantage of these new 
technologies, as well as established and proven technologies, thereby enabling us 
to meet the challenging targets for the future. 

3.6.2 The residual options appraisal (Annex D) examines a range of options for the 
introduction of residual waste treatment capacity for Herefordshire and 

51



 Headline Strategy  

The Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy for Herefordshire and Worcestershire  Page 14 of 17 

First Review November 2009 

Worcestershire. These strategic options were appraised against a number of 
environmental, social and economic criteria in order to identify the option(s) that 
perform best overall. The Partnership has examined these options and the 
conclusions of the appraisal and agrees that they should inform the decision on 
any application for planning permission for a waste treatment solution for 
Herefordshire and Worcestershire. The appraisal will be reviewed in the light of 
any decisions on the waste treatment solution for Herefordshire and 
Worcestershire. 

3.6.3 Recovering value from waste includes recycling, composting and treatment 
methods which produce a useful by-product, such as energy. 

3.6.4 Through the consultation, an overwhelming majority of people felt that any left 
over waste which cannot be recycled, composted or re-used should be used as 
fuel to produce energy such as electricity. Minimising the impact on the 
environment was highlighted as the most important consideration in deciding what 
to do with left over waste.

  

Policy 16

Waste management methods will promote sustainable waste management by 
considering and balancing environmental, social and economic impacts. Both established 
and emerging technologies will be considered to enable a flexible approach to the waste 
treatment methods that will be adopted. 

3.6.5 Our Recovery Target is: 

Target 5

By 2015 or earlier if practicable, we will recover value from a minimum of 78% of 
municipal waste.  

Achieving the Target: 

The aim of this target is to achieve the Best Practicable Environmental Option (BPEO) for 
Herefordshire and Worcestershire that was identified in July 2003 through a portfolio of 
treatment options- i.e. a minimum of 33% of municipal waste to be recycled and/or 
composted, a maximum of 22% landfilled and the remainder for energy recovery. Whilst 
recognising that the BPEO is no longer part of planning guidance, it remains as an 
adopted policy within Herefordshire and Worcestershire. National Indicator 193 (% of 
municipal waste sent to landfill) will be reported as part of the monitoring of this target. 

3.7 Disposal 

3.7.1 It has long been recognised within the two counties, that reliance on landfill is not 
a long term, sustainable option and our principle is to reduce use of landfill as 
much as we can. However landfill will continue to play a part in the way waste is 
managed within Herefordshire and Worcestershire as landfill is the only suitable 
disposal route for certain waste streams and process residues. Whatever other 
treatment methods are used, the Partnership will aim to recycle and recover the 
maximum amounts possible and reduce reliance upon landfill in line with the 
BPEO target. 

52



 Headline Strategy  

The Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy for Herefordshire and Worcestershire  Page 15 of 17 

First Review November 2009 

Policy 17

The Partnership will increase recovery and diversion of biodegradable waste away 
from landfill in line with the EU Landfill Directive to ensure we achieve, as a 
minimum, the requirements of the Landfill Allowance Trading Scheme.

3.7.3 Our Disposal Target is: 

Target 6

The Partnership will work together to reduce the amount of biodegradable municipal 
waste landfilled in order to meet the yearly allowances set by Government under the 
Landfill Allowance Trading Scheme. In particular in target years as below:

154,164 tonnes during April 2009 to March 2010  
102,684 tonnes during April 2012 to March 2013  
71,851 tonnes during April 2019 to March 2020 

The trading scheme will be used to buy and sell allowances where this is appropriate. 

Achieving the Target: 

The aim of the target is to ensure that the Authorities meet the requirements of the 
Landfill Directive, which requires that the amount of bio-degradable waste that is sent to 
landfill is reduced. The introduction of the Core collection service waste prevention and 
the new residual waste treatment processes will enable these targets to be met. 

3.8 Awareness Raising  

3.8.1 Building on past success the Partnership will continue to raise the awareness of 
waste issues with Elected Members and our communities. We also need to 
continue to effect behavioural change through delivery of the Core collection 
service. Raising awareness of the efficiency of our services is also an important 
part of our promotional activities.  

3.8.2 Whilst it is important that there is collaboration and joint working to share good 
practice and be more cost effective, it is also important that the Local Authorities 
continue to develop their own initiatives and publicity programmes to 
accommodate local needs. 

3.8.3 The Partnership recognises the importance of continuing to build on good media 
relationships to ensure that opportunities for awareness raising and publicity are 
used to maximum effect wherever possible. 

3.8.4 The development and promotion of web sites and consistent use of web based 
material and enquiry portals also offer an important way of raising awareness, 
providing information and dealing with customer enquiries. 

3.8.5 The next generation will be living with the effects of climate change and it is 
important to influence their behaviour now. Schools through their work with young 
people and the wider community have a vital role working towards a more 
sustainable future, both in educating the young people themselves and through 
their parents and the wider family. The Partnership will continue to provide 
recyclable collections to schools and increase the amount of schools that have a 
recycling collection wherever practicable. 

53



 Headline Strategy  

The Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy for Herefordshire and Worcestershire  Page 16 of 17 

First Review November 2009 

Policy 18

The Partnership will continue to work together on waste prevention, re-use and recycling 
schemes and raise awareness of the links between these and Climate Change. 

Policy 19

The Partnership will continue to raise awareness of resource management issues and 
link with national campaigns and promotions where appropriate to achieve maximum 
impact and results. 

3.9 Partnerships 

3.9.1 Joint working between local authorities is becoming increasingly important as a 
means of delivering quality services to residents and meeting the UK's Landfill 
Directive obligations at affordable cost. This approach is particularly important in 
two-tier areas, where responsibilities for waste collection and waste disposal are 
split between different authorities. As new, more sustainable ways of managing 
waste are introduced, it is becoming increasingly important to integrate collection 
and disposal which also brings the potential to generate efficiencies.  

3.9.2 In Herefordshire and Worcestershire, the local authorities have adopted a 
partnership approach to joint working through the Joint Member Waste Resource 
Management Forum and the Joint Officer Waste Resource Management Forum, 
which work very successfully and have developed this Strategy. The Member 
Forum will continue to consider future governance arrangements as new guidance 
is produced and any changes in legislation are announced. Delivery of the 
Strategy will require that the authorities continue to work together in order to meet 
objectives in the most effective, efficient and economic way. 

3.9.3 The Third Sector, voluntary and community groups have a valuable role to play 
and can be innovative and bring a fresh perspective to waste management 
issues. The expertise and experience that some of these groups have in collecting 
and re-using materials and in education and awareness raising will have an 
important part to play in delivering the Strategy. 

Policy 20

Re-use and recycling of waste materials by the commercial, voluntary and community 
sector will be actively encouraged and in appropriate circumstances supported and 
facilitated including through the use of partnership working. 

3.10 Planning and Economic Opportunities 

3.10.1 The West Midlands Regional Economic Strategy provides a framework for the 
diversification of the regional economy away from an over-dependence on 
declining industries. One of the identified business clusters is Environmental 
Technologies, an area that certainly includes waste management, which is an 
area of rapidly developing technological expertise. Environmental Technology 
cluster development locally could be applied to municipal waste management to 
create efficiencies, improve environmental conditions and create new employment 
opportunities. 

54



 Headline Strategy  

The Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy for Herefordshire and Worcestershire  Page 17 of 17 

First Review November 2009 

3.10.2 The economics of waste is changing. As the landfill tax increases, other waste 
treatment options become more cost effective for both local authorities and their 
partners, businesses, schools and any organisation that produces or handles 
waste. As new markets develop we will look to adopt alternative ways of dealing 
with waste which are more sustainable and cost effective. 

3.10.3 Opportunities for more sustainable waste management, such as through the 
installation of food waste disposal units and provision of compost bins, will be 
explored through the local planning process for new housing developments 
wherever possible.  

Policy 21

Opportunities for more sustainable waste management will be actively sought in all new 
developments as part of the planning process. Where necessary representations to 
Government will be made through the appropriate channels to seek amendments to 
planning legislation to support this and the other aims of this Strategy. 

Policy 22

The Strategy will be aligned with the emerging Regional Spatial Strategy waste policies 
as they develop and other key spatial and planning policies to ensure they are mutually 
supportive.  

3.11 Transport 

3.11.1 Efficient use of transport is a key factor in developing and implementing a 
sustainable waste management strategy. Currently, wherever practicable and cost 
effective, the transportation of waste and recycled materials is minimised through 
provision of local sites and by compacting materials. In the short to medium term, 
waste may need to be transported to national facilities in order to ensure that we 
meet the requirements of the Landfill Directive.  

3.11.2 Adoption of a carbon footprint approach to transport where ‘waste miles’ are 
measured will support the decision making process for the provision of the core 
and local services.  

Policy 23

The Partnership will design and operate collection, transfer, associated transport and 
treatment systems to minimise the overall carbon emissions (including “waste miles”) 
arising from these elements of waste management activities and measured through 
Target One of the Strategy. 

3.12 Other Waste Streams 

3.12.1 The councils have a duty to collect certain other materials such as clinical waste 
and street sweepings. The Action Plan for these waste streams will be included in 
Annex I. 

Policy 24

Individual policies will be prepared for specific waste streams where this is considered 
the best approach to preventing, re-using, recycling and recovering value from waste 
arising in these streams. 

55



56



Annex H Consultation 

The Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy for Herefordshire and   Page 1 of 32  
Worcestershire - First Review November 2009

The Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy for 
Herefordshire and Worcestershire 2004 – 2034 

Annex H - Consultation Process and Outcomes  

57



Annex H Consultation 

The Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy for Herefordshire and   Page 2 of 32  
Worcestershire - First Review November 2009

Contents          Page No. 

Introduction           3 

Resident Focus Groups         3 

Survey of residents through questionnaire      7 

Feedback and comments from other agencies and interested parties  14 

Conclusions           15 

Appendix 1 Overview of Focus Groups        16 

Appendix 2 Postal and on-line Questionnaire      17

Appendix 3 Responses to Focus Group questions     20 

58



Annex H Consultation 

The Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy for Herefordshire and   Page 3 of 32  
Worcestershire - First Review November 2009

Introduction 

This annex explains the consultation that was carried out to help the Partnership to 
develop a revised Strategy. The comments and ideas of residents, business and other 
interested parties have been used in shaping the final document. A lot of our success to 
date (see Annex G of the Strategy documents) has been down to public support of new 
waste services, such as kerbside recycling collections. The views and attitudes of 
residents and other interested groups will continue to play a very important part in deciding 
our future waste services and long term plans. 

The main aim of the consultation was to seek views on the significant changes that had 
been made to the Strategy through the review process. For example, how the revised 
Strategy addresses the issue of Climate Change which has become of much greater 
significance since the Strategy was adopted in 2004. Areas of the Strategy not subject to 
change were not considered in detail in the consultation. 

When was the consultation carried out? 

The consultation began on 16th February 2009 and ran for a period of 13 weeks until 15th

May 2009.  

How was the consultation carried out? 

Consultation documents were posted on the Partnership web sites and a press release 
was issued to raise awareness that the consultation was underway. Letters inviting 
comment were sent to key partners and agencies such as DEFRA and the Environment 
Agency. 

To ensure a robust, reliable, objective and representative view from local residents across 
the two counties, a two stage consultation process was used. A number of focus groups 
with residents from across Herefordshire and Worcestershire were held to seek their views 
on the issues that they felt were important. The focus groups also helped to develop a 
questionnaire, ‘Waste… have your say’ which was distributed to a random sample of 
9,000 households across Herefordshire and Worcestershire and made available to 
complete online.  

Resident Focus Groups 

Nine focus groups were held across the two counties in Herefordshire, Worcester City, 
Bromsgrove, Malvern, Redditch and Wychavon. In some cases, letters of invitation were 
sent to a selection of residents in a targeted area, and in other cases, an existing group – 
such as a local Childrens’ Centre – agreed to host a session. A total of 70 individual 
members of the public took part in the sessions. Appendix 1 shows an overview of the 
focus groups that took place. 

The groups were organised and led by an independent facilitator with the aim of exploring 
the issues that were of importance to local residents through a number of questions 
around recycling, composting and dealing with left over waste as listed below: 

• What recycling actions do you undertake? 

59



Annex H Consultation 

The Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy for Herefordshire and   Page 4 of 32  
Worcestershire - First Review November 2009

• What encourages you to recycle? 

• What discourages you from recycling? 

• What more could be done to support you to recycle?

• To what extent do you feel that changes in waste collection will be effective in 
encouraging people to recycle? 

• What encourages you to compost at home? 

• What discourages you from composting at home? 

• What could be done to encourage you to compost waste? 

• Would you be prepared to pay for a collection of garden waste for composting? 

• How much would you be prepared to pay? 

• What actions do you take if any to limit the amount of waste you/your family 
produce? 

• Do you think waste should be used as a fuel to generate electricity etc? 

The focus groups also completed a draft ‘Waste… have your say’ questionnaire and 
helped us to develop the final questionnaire by giving us their feedback on how it worked 
and the issues it should address. 

Main ideas and comments from the Focus Groups 

Recycling 

Most of the people taking part are engaged in a range of recycling activities including 
making use of the kerbside recycling services provided by the Council, taking recyclables 
to the local Household Recycling Centre and recycling banks and donating to charities. 
Many of the participants compost – particularly in the rural areas and a few people use 
Freecycle although most people had not heard of this website. 

The main factors that encourage people to recycle are concerns about landfill and a desire 
to conserve the planet for future generations. Effective Council services and the 
encouragement of other people - particularly children, neighbours and friends also helps. 

The main things that discourage people from recycling include the complications of 
recycling plastics and lack of information particularly about what happens to recycled 
waste. The poor attitude & behaviour of some waste collection workers and staff at the 
Household Recycling Centre, a lack of consistency across the Councils in the area – why 
not identify the best system for recycling and implement it everywhere – can also have a 
negative effect on people getting involved. Practical issues such as lack of pedestrian 
access to the Household Recycling Centre, lack of kerbside recycling collections in some 
locations and a perception that the emphasis is on enforcement rather than 
encouragement to recycle are also problems that need to be addressed. 

Ideas on how Councils can increase recycling 

� Provide more information about what happens to waste after collection particularly 
mixed recyclables 

� Make all plastics recyclable 
� Encourage shops to reduce packaging  
� Provide incentives to recycle e.g. cash or vouchers for returnable bottles 

60



Annex H Consultation 

The Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy for Herefordshire and   Page 5 of 32  
Worcestershire - First Review November 2009

Composting 

The people who are actively involved in composting provided two clear reasons why they 
compost, it is good for the garden or land and it gets rid of waste. For people who do not 
compost and have the space for a compost bin the main issues were lack of knowledge 
about how to compost or how to use the compost, the length of the composting process 
and concerns that it is smelly and attracts vermin. Many people who do not compost were 
unaware that subsidised compost bins are available 

Organisation of waste collection 

Where a wide range of recyclables are collected and wheeled bins have been introduced 
the feedback is that it does encourage people to recycle. The concerns expressed about 
the new systems were that wheelie bins make an area look unsightly, older people and 
people with disabilities will have difficulty moving the bins & boxes, the smell of waste bins 
in the summer months if there are fortnightly collections and concerns about vandalism.  

The majority of people attending the focus groups said there should be no charges for the 
collection of garden waste and most people felt they did not produce enough waste from 
their garden to need a regular collection.  

Reducing Waste 

Most people try to limit the amount of packaging they take home but participants felt 
retailers make it difficult by packaging/over packaging everything. Many use their own 
shopping bags/bags for life rather than plastic bags. Families on limited income have to 
save money rather than consider the packaging 

Treating waste as a resource 

Generally the focus group participants felt the use of waste for fuel to be good & necessary 
because it provides a better option than continuing to use landfill. Detailed information 
about issues such as cost, emissions / smells and the amount of energy produced are 
needed before people are able to make a decision about the best option. There was a 
commonly held view that no one would want a treatment plant located near their home. 

Responding to the issues raised by the Focus Groups

The feedback from the focus groups helped us to design the final questionnaire (see 
Appendix 2) which was posted to a selection of residents and also on the website. All 
Councils responded to any local questions raised and gave feedback to focus group 
members. A summary of responses was distributed to all those that took part (see 
Appendix 3). 

A number of action points which the Partnership has considered in the development of the 
final strategy and action plan are listed below: 

Note: Numbering of the Focus Group responses (FG) allows cross referencing with key 
tasks in the Action Plan. 

61



Annex H Consultation 

The Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy for Herefordshire and   Page 6 of 32  
Worcestershire - First Review November 2009

Question or comment from Focus Groups Partnership response

RECYCLING
FG01 Not many people have heard of re-use websites such as 

Freecycle 
Addressed in Action Plan

FG02 Provide more information about what happens to waste after 
collection particularly mixed recyclables and why the 
Councils cannot collect certain materials for recycling. 

Addressed in Action Plan

FG03 Improve attitude & behaviour of some waste collection 
workers and staff at the Household Recycling Centres  

Addressed in Action Plan

FG04 Consider best practice and improve consistency across the 
Councils in the area 

Addressed in Action Plan

FG05 Can we improve pedestrian access to the Household 
Recycling Centre? 

Addressed in Action Plan

FG06 Provide kerbside recycling collections in some locations  Addressed in Action Plan

FG07 Publicise encourage/education approach rather than 
enforcement 

Addressed in Action Plan

FG08 Encourage shops to reduce packaging  Addressed in Action Plan

FG09 Provide incentives to recycle e.g. cash or vouchers for 
returnable bottles 

Incentives schemes 
trialled in the past were 
unsuccessful

COMPOSTING
FG10 Improve residents’ knowledge about how to compost, e.g. 

information on how to avoid pests and smells 
Addressed in Action Plan

FG11 Publicise and promote the subsidised compost bins Addressed in Action Plan

ORGANISATION OF WASTE COLLECTION
FG12 Provide suitable collection services that reflect the needs of 

older people/people with disabilities who may have difficulty 
moving bins & boxes  

Addressed in Action Plan

FG13 Provide good information about the range of services that are 
available. 

Addressed in Action Plan

FG14 Provide information to residents on how to avoid the smell of 
waste bins in the summer months.  

Addressed in Action Plan

FG15 Consider the feedback that the majority of people attending Home composting is the 

62



Annex H Consultation 

The Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy for Herefordshire and   Page 7 of 32  
Worcestershire - First Review November 2009

Question or comment from Focus Groups Partnership response

the focus groups said there should be no charges for the 
collection of garden waste for composting. 

best environmental and 
economic way of dealing 
with garden waste. 
However the option of 
‘paid for’ collections gives 
residents a choice.  

TREATING WASTE AS A RESOURCE

FG16 Provide detailed information about issues such as cost, 
emissions/smells and the amount of energy (needed before 
people are able to make a decision about the best option). 
There will be a need for a publicity and awareness raising 
programme once the decision on the residual treatment 
facility is known 

Addressed in Action Plan 

Survey through questionnaire 

The survey (see Appendix 2) was designed to highlight the need to review what we do with 
our municipal waste due to new legislation and sustainability issues and to seek views on 
the significant changes that had been made to the Strategy. Piloted and refined by the 
focus groups, questions followed the waste hierarchy and a prize draw encouraged people 
to complete and return the questionnaire. 

To ensure a robust and reliable view across the communities in the two counties the 
questionnaire was sent to a random selection of 9,000 households across Herefordshire 
and Worcestershire. A total of 2237 responses were received, 2158 paper responses and 
79 via the website. This response rate provides a high level of confidence that the survey 
reflects the views of the wider population.

What the survey told us 

Detailed below is a summary of the key issues arising from the survey.  

Recycling and Composting 

An overwhelming majority of people felt that dealing with waste and recycling is  
everyone’s responsibility and that it is important for the Councils to spend money on waste 
and recycling services. 

The majority of people who responded always recycle waste products wherever possible 
using collection services provided by the Council, recycling banks, household waste site, 
etc. The majority of people who responded also donated unwanted items to charity and 
composted at home.  

Gardens which are too small and concerns about pests are the main reasons why people 
do not compost at home. Further comments provided stated unsuitable properties, 
difficulty of managing a home compost bin and that it had not been considered as an 

63



Annex H Consultation 

The Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy for Herefordshire and   Page 8 of 32  
Worcestershire - First Review November 2009

option. Most people were unprepared to pay for a collection of garden waste for 
composting from their home. 

Respondents told us that a lack of information about what you can recycle, what happens 
to materials after they are collected and not receiving a collection from their home puts 
them off recycling. Those who provided additional comments said that the exclusion of 
many plastic items from recycling collections discouraged them. Other discouraging 
factors were that not all recyclables were collected by crews, the belief that some 
recyclables are sent to landfill and that not enough bags were provided for collection. 
Charging for additional collection such as for garden waste also discouraged people from 
recycling.  

The response to Question 4, what would encourage you to recycle, reflected the 
comments received on what discouraged people from recycling. Common views were that 
more materials should be accepted for recycling, more bags provided, that there should be 
incentives for recycling, and that more information must be given to residents. Some also 
thought that garden waste should be collected free of charge.  

1. Where possible I recycle waste products. (Please tick one as appropriate) 

Always  88% 
Sometimes  12% 
Never 1% 

2. Which of the following do you use to recycle or compost? 
(Please tick all the relevant boxes) 

a.  The collection service provided by the Council 82% 
b.  Recycling banks (usually located in shop car parks) 60% 
c.  The Household Waste Site (the tip) 75% 
d.  Donate to charity 75% 
e.  Home composting 56% 

3. What puts you off recycling? (Please tick all the relevant boxes) 

a.  Lack of collection 17% 
b.  Lack of information about different ways to recycle 9% 
c.  Lack of information about where recycling banks are 6% 
d.  Lack of information about what happens to things that are recycled 17% 
e.  Not clear what you’re supposed or allowed to recycle 26% 
f.  Lack of transport to recycling facilities 8% 
g.  Too much hassle to sort waste/lack of interest 3% 
h.  Nothing 39% 

Other significant issues raised in a comments box were: 

• Only certain types of plastic are accepted – there are too many exclusions and 
more information is required 

• Charging for collection service (e.g. green bin) and no collection service in some 
areas 

• Not all waste is collected by waste operatives 

64



Annex H Consultation 

The Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy for Herefordshire and   Page 9 of 32  
Worcestershire - First Review November 2009

• Knowing that lots of recycled waste actually ends up in landfill sites 

• Don't get enough bags for recycled waste 

4. What else can the Councils do to increase recycling? (Free Text Response) 

The most common responses to this question were: 

• Greater range of bins and waste that can be recycled (e.g. yoghurt pots, egg boxes, 
margarine containers, paper etc) 

• Free green bin (garden waste) collection 

• Provide more recycling bags for householders rather than just one 

• Incentives to encourage people to recycle 

• Improved information and publicity, educate children from a young age the benefits 
of recycling 

5. Do you think that dealing with waste and recycling is just the Councils 
responsibility or everyone’s responsibility? (Please tick one as appropriate)

Council’s 6% 
Everyone’s  93% 
Don’t Know 1%

6. Do you think that it is important for the Councils to spend money on waste and
recycling services? (Please tick one as appropriate)

Strongly Agree 48% 
Agree  46% 
Neither agree nor disagree 5% 
Disagree  1% 
Strongly disagree 0% 

7. Do you compost waste at home? (Please tick as appropriate) 

Yes  60% 
No  40% 

8. Which of the following reasons explain why you do not compost at home? 
(Please tick all the relevant boxes) 

a.  Don't know how to 10% 
b.  Don't know where to get a compost bin from 6% 
c.  Worried about attracting vermin/pests 30% 
d.  Too messy/smelly 17% 
e.  Not enough time 9% 
f.  Garden too small for a compost bin/nowhere to compost at home 38% 
g.  Don't have a garden 9% 
h.  Not interested 4% 
i.  Nowhere to use the compost produced 26% 

Other significant issues raised in a comments box were: 

65



Annex H Consultation 

The Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy for Herefordshire and   Page 10 of 32  
Worcestershire - First Review November 2009

• Live in flat/apartment/sheltered complex so no garden or garden is too small or 
impractical to compost (i.e. paved) 

• Don't want to pay for a compost bin (low income families) 

• Composting process takes too long and attracts vermin 

• Elderly or have mobility/health problems 

• Not thought about it or got round to buying a bin 

9. Would you be prepared to pay for a collection of garden waste for composting? 
(Please tick as appropriate) 

Yes  20% 
No  80% 

10. If yes, what is the MAXIMUM you would be prepared to pay for a year’s worth of 
collections? (Please tick one only)

a. £30 for a year’s worth of collections 79% 
b. £50 for a year’s worth of collections 18% 
c. £70 for a year’s worth of collections 2% 
d. £90 for a year’s worth of collections 1% 

Reducing Waste 

Many respondents consider potential waste when they buy food items and consider buying 
food with least packaging wherever they can.  

Replies show that people are keen to avoid waste where possible by repairing items, 
buying second hand goods and donating unwanted items to charity but only a few people 
use re-use websites such as ‘freecycle’. 

There was strong feeling that the Councils should work with to recycle/re-use goods such 
as furniture or bicycles.  

Those who provided their own comments in Question 18 thought that businesses should 
reduce packaging, use more recycled material in producing it and that the packaging 
regulations should be improved. There were views that there should be harsh penalties for 
fly tipping. People thought that junk mail should be reduced and that there should be more 
education and information provided to the public on waste matters. A proportion of those 
who responded thought that waste should be burnt to produce electricity. 

11. Do you buy food with the least packaging to reduce the waste you throw away? 
(Please tick one as appropriate)

Always  21% 
Sometimes  70% 
Never 9% 

12. Do you think about potential waste when you buy food items? 
(Please tick one as appropriate) 

Always  36% 

66



Annex H Consultation 

The Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy for Herefordshire and   Page 11 of 32  
Worcestershire - First Review November 2009

Sometimes  53% 
Never 11% 

13. Do you repair items wherever possible to avoid them being thrown away? 
(Please tick one as appropriate) 

Always  43% 
Sometimes  54% 
Never 3% 

14. Do you buy second hand goods to reduce waste? (Please tick one as appropriate) 

Always  5% 
Sometimes  67% 
Never 29% 

15. Do you donate unwanted items to charity rather than throw them away? 
(Please tick one as appropriate) 

Always  68% 
Sometimes  31% 
Never 2% 

16. Do you use websites such as ‘Freecycle’ to reduce waste? 
(Please tick one as appropriate) 

Always  3% 
Sometimes  20% 
Never 46% 
Didn’t know about them 31% 

17. Do you think the Councils should work with charities to recycle/re-use goods 
such as furniture or bicycles? (Please tick one as appropriate)

Strongly Agree 55% 
Agree  42% 
Neither agree nor disagree 3% 
Disagree  0% 
Strongly disagree 0% 

18. Do you have any other comments on how we can cut down our waste? (Free 
Text Response) 

The most common responses to this question were: 

• Businesses need to where possible use recycled materials in their packaging but also 
reduce the amount of packaging they use – improve packaging regulations 

• Harsh penalties for fly tipping and litter dropping 

• Further education of the public through different media channels 

• Reduction in junk mail 

• Burn waste in an incinerator to create electricity  

67



Annex H Consultation 

The Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy for Herefordshire and   Page 12 of 32  
Worcestershire - First Review November 2009

Treating Waste as a Resource 

An overwhelming majority of people who responded felt that any left over waste which 
cannot be recycled, composted or re-used should be used as fuel to produce energy such 
as electricity. Minimising the impact on the environment was highlighted as the most 
important consideration in deciding what to do with left over waste.

19. Do you think waste should be used as fuel to produce energy such as 
electricity? (Please tick one box below)

Yes 98% 
No 2% 

If YES, 
20. To help us decide the best way to do this, tell us which of the following is the 
most important issue to you: (Please tick one of the following)

a. Minimises the distance waste is transported 10% 
b. Produces the most heat and electricity 23% 
c. Is the cheapest 11% 
d. Has the least impact on the environment 53% 

Environment 

Most people thought that there was a link between climate change and how waste is 
managed. 

21. Do you think there is a link between how waste is dealt with and ‘Climate 
Change’? 

Yes  52% 
No  16% 
Don’t Know 32% 

Responding to the Issues Raised Through the Survey 

All feedback through the survey will be considered in terms of improving waste services. 
The key issues which residents have highlighted as priorities for action are included in the 
summary table below. Reference numbers are included to correspond to a key task where 
one has been identified for the Action Plan: 

Note: Numbering of the survey responses (S) allows cross referencing with key tasks in 
the Action Plan. 

Issue identified through survey Partnership 
response 

S01 26% of respondents stated that they are not clear what you’re 
supposed or allowed to recycle and this puts them off recycling (Q3).

Addressed in Action 
Plan

S02 17% of respondents stated that the lack of collection puts them off Addressed in Action 

68



Annex H Consultation 

The Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy for Herefordshire and   Page 13 of 32  
Worcestershire - First Review November 2009

Issue identified through survey Partnership 
response 

recycling (Q3). Plan
S03 17% of respondents stated that lack of information about what 

happens to things that are recycled, puts them off recycling (Q3). 
Addressed in Action 
Plan

S04 Limited range of materials accepted for recycling Addressed in Action 
Plan 

S05 Provide residents with greater kerbside recycling capacity where 
requested 

Addressed in Action 
Plan 

S06 38% of respondents stated that they do not compost at home as 
their garden is too small for a compost bin/nowhere to compost at 
home (Q8). 

Addressed in Action 
Plan

S07 30% of respondents said that they do not compost at home as they 
are worried about attracting vermin/pests (Q8). 

Addressed in Action 
Plan

S08 26% of respondents said that they do not compost at home as they 
have nowhere to use the compost produced (Q8).

Addressed in Action 
Plan

S09 Cost of purchasing a home composting bin Addressed in Action 
Plan 

S10 Lack of information/promotion of home composting scheme (as 
some respondents had not considered home composting)

Addressed in Action 
Plan 

S11 80% of respondents stated that they would not be prepared to pay 
for a collection of garden waste, of those that would pay, 79% would 
be prepared to pay £30 per annum (Q9 & 10) 

Home composting is 
the best environ-
mental and 
economic way of 
dealing with garden 
waste. However the 
option of ‘paid for’ 
collections gives 
residents a choice. 

S12 79% of respondents sometimes/never buy food with the least 
packaging to reduce the waste thrown away (Q11). 

We want to 
encourage more 
people to always 
consider buying 
food with the least 
packaging. 
Addressed in Action 
Plan

S13 64% of respondents only sometimes/never think about potential 
waste when they buy food items (Q12).

We want to 
encourage more 
people to always 
think about potential 
waste when they 
buy food items. 
Addressed in Action 
Plan

S14 54% of respondents repair items wherever possible to avoid them 
being thrown away (Q13). 

We want to 
encourage more 
people to repair 
items wherever 
possible. Addressed 
in Action Plan

69



Annex H Consultation 

The Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy for Herefordshire and   Page 14 of 32  
Worcestershire - First Review November 2009

Issue identified through survey Partnership 
response 

S15 29% of respondents never buy second hand goods to reduce waste 
(Q14). 

Addressed in Action 
Plan

S16 77% of respondents do not use or have never heard of websites 
such as Freecycle (Q16). 

Addressed in Action 
Plan

S17 97% of respondents feel that the Councils should work with charities 
to recycle/re-use goods such as furniture or bicycles (Q17). 

It is clear that this is 
an important issue 
for residents and 
this is reflected in 
the revised 
Strategy. 
Addressed in Action 
Plan

S18 Encourage use of recycled materials in packaging, reduce 
packaging and improve regulation 

Addressed in Action 
Plan 

S19 Penalties for fly tipping and litter offenses Addressed in Action 
Plan 

S20 Further education of public through variety of media Addressed in Action 
Plan 

S21 Reduce Junk Mail Addressed in Action 
Plan 

S22 98% of respondents think waste should be used as fuel to produce 
energy such as electricity (Q19). 

Addressed in Action 
Plan

S23 Of the 98% of respondents, the most important consideration (53%) 
was having the least impact on the environment (Q19). 

Considered in final 
Residual Options 
Appraisal. 
Addressed in Action 
Plan

Feedback and comments from other agencies and interested parties 

14 responses were received from other agencies and interested parties. The issues raised 
have been taken account of in the action plan.  

The overwhelming response from stakeholders was in support of the reviewed Strategy. 
Some of the key views expressed were: 

• There is a need to provide more information on waste services, 

• There is a need to examine options for improving recycling opportunities for 
commercial waste,  

• The effects of transporting waste. 

• Some concerns around the options for residual treatment and stakeholders were 
keen to see more public engagement in relation to this. 

The Strategy has been amended to take into account the views of stakeholders. 

70



Annex H Consultation 

The Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy for Herefordshire and   Page 15 of 32  
Worcestershire - First Review November 2009

Conclusions 

The consultation process has proved invaluable in developing a revised Joint Municipal 
Waste Management Strategy. The focus groups enabled us to seek the views of residents 
that without this opportunity may not have provided us with their valuable input. We 
received an excellent response to the public postal survey with a response rate of over 
20%. However, there was a limited response to the on-line questionnaire and ways of 
improving this response rate will be considered in future consultations.  We were also 
pleased to receive responses from a variety of different stakeholders and interested 
parties which provided us with detailed and challenging comments reflecting a range of 
views and issues. 

We would like to thank everyone who has taken the time to get involved and respond to 
this consultation. Your views have helped us to develop a more relevant and robust 
Strategy. 

   

71



A
n

n
e

x
 H

 C
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o
n
 

T
h
e
 J

o
in

t 
M

u
n

ic
ip

a
l 
W

a
s
te

 M
a
n
a

g
e

m
e
n
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 f

o
r 

H
e
re

fo
rd

s
h

ir
e
 a

n
d
  

 
P

a
g

e
 1

6
 o

f 
3
2

 
 

W
o
rc

e
s
te

rs
h
ir
e
 -

 
F

ir
s
t 
R

e
v
ie

w
 N

o
v
e

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0

9

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 1
 –

 O
v
e
rv

ie
w

 o
f 

F
o

c
u

s
 G

ro
u

p
s

 

S
ta

ff
 f

o
c

u
s

 g
ro

u
p

 m
e
e

ti
n

g
 e

a
rl

y
 M

a
rc

h
 

G
ro

u
p

s
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
 d

u
ri

n
g

 M
a

rc
h

 a
n

d
 A

p
ri

l 

Y
o
u

n
g
 

F
a
m

ili
e
s
 

(R
e
d
d

it
c
h
 

B
C

) 

Y
o
u

n
g
 

F
a
m

ili
e
s
 

(H
e
re

fo
rd

s
h
ir
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il)

 

U
rb

a
n
 

a
re

a
 

(W
o
rc

e
s
te

r 
C

it
y)

 

R
u
ra

l 
a
re

a
 

(M
a
lv

e
rn

 
H

ill
s
 D

C
) 

R
u
ra

l 
a
re

a
  

G
o
ld

e
n
 V

a
lle

y
 

(H
e
re

fo
rd

s
h
ir
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il)

 

R
u
ra

l 
a
re

a
 

lo
w

 
p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n

  
(B

ro
m

s
g
ro

v
e
 

D
C

) 

S
ta

ff
 t
o
 t
e
s
t 

th
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 

(W
yc

h
a
v
o

n
 

D
C

) 

D
is

a
b

ili
ty

 
G

ro
u
p
s
  

(M
a
lv

e
rn

 
H

ill
s
 D

C
) 

U
rb

a
n
 a

re
a
 

(H
e
re

fo
rd

s
h
ir
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il)

 

F
e

e
d

b
a

c
k
 o

n
 

q
u

e
s
ti
o

n
n
a

ir
e

 a
p
p

ro
a

c
h

 
a

n
d

 c
o

n
te

n
t 
 

D
R

A
F

T
 Q

U
E

S
T

IO
N

N
A

IR
E

 T
O

 G
R

O
U

P
S

 F
O

R
 Q

U
A

L
IT

A
T

IV
E

 F
E

E
D

B
A

C
K

 &
 F

E
E

D
B

A
C

K
 O

N
 C

O
N

T
E

N
T

 A
N

D
 A

P
P

R
O

A
C

H
 

Q
u

a
lit

a
ti
v
e

 f
e
e

d
b
a

c
k
 o

n
 

th
e

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

s
 a

 w
h

o
le

 

Im
p

ro
v
e

 q
u

e
s
ti
o
n

n
a

ir
e

 
re

a
d

y
 f

o
r 

p
o

s
ti
n

g
 o

n
 

w
e

b
/t

o
 s

a
m

p
le

 g
ro

u
p
 

F
e

e
d

b
a

c
k
 i
n

to
 f

in
a

l 
s
tr

a
te

g
y
 d

o
c
u

m
e

n
t 

Q
u

e
s
ti
o
n

n
a

ir
e
 p

o
s
te

d
 

o
n

 l
in

e
 &

 t
o

 s
a
m

p
le

 
re

s
id

e
n

ts
 (

1
3

th
 A

p
ri

l)

72



A
n

n
e

x
 H

 C
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o
n
 

T
h
e
 J

o
in

t 
M

u
n

ic
ip

a
l 
W

a
s
te

 M
a
n
a

g
e

m
e
n
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 f

o
r 

H
e
re

fo
rd

s
h

ir
e
 a

n
d
  

 
P

a
g

e
 1

7
 o

f 
3
2

 
 

W
o
rc

e
s
te

rs
h
ir
e
 -

 
F

ir
s
t 
R

e
v
ie

w
 N

o
v
e

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0

9

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 2
 –

 Q
u

e
s
ti

o
n

n
a
ir

e
 

  
  
 

73



A
n

n
e

x
 H

 C
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o
n
 

T
h
e
 J

o
in

t 
M

u
n

ic
ip

a
l 
W

a
s
te

 M
a
n
a

g
e

m
e
n
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 f

o
r 

H
e
re

fo
rd

s
h

ir
e
 a

n
d
  

 
P

a
g

e
 1

8
 o

f 
3
2

 
 

W
o
rc

e
s
te

rs
h
ir
e
 -

 
F

ir
s
t 
R

e
v
ie

w
 N

o
v
e

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0

9

  
  
 

74



A
n

n
e

x
 H

 C
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o
n
 

T
h
e
 J

o
in

t 
M

u
n

ic
ip

a
l 
W

a
s
te

 M
a
n
a

g
e

m
e
n
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 f

o
r 

H
e
re

fo
rd

s
h

ir
e
 a

n
d
  

 
P

a
g

e
 1

9
 o

f 
3
2

 
 

W
o
rc

e
s
te

rs
h
ir
e
 -

 
F

ir
s
t 
R

e
v
ie

w
 N

o
v
e

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0

9

  
  
 

75



A
n

n
e

x
 H

 C
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o
n
 

T
h
e
 J

o
in

t 
M

u
n

ic
ip

a
l 
W

a
s
te

 M
a
n
a

g
e

m
e
n
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 f

o
r 

H
e
re

fo
rd

s
h

ir
e
 a

n
d
  

 
P

a
g

e
 2

0
 o

f 
3
2

 
 

W
o
rc

e
s
te

rs
h
ir
e
 -

 
F

ir
s
t 
R

e
v
ie

w
 N

o
v
e

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0

9

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 3
 -

 S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

re
s
p

o
n

s
e
s
 t

o
 f

o
c
u

s
 g

ro
u

p
 q

u
e
s
ti

o
n

s
 

Q
U

E
S

T
IO

N
S

 C
O

M
M

O
N

 T
O

 A
L

L
 F

O
C

U
S

 G
R

O
U

P
S

 

W
a

s
te

 R
e

d
u

c
ti

o
n

 –
 P

a
c

k
a

g
in

g
 W

a
s

te
 

W
h

a
t 

g
u

id
a

n
c
e

 a
re

 m
a

n
u

fa
c

tu
re

rs
 g

iv
e

n
 a

b
o

u
t 

p
a

c
k

a
g

in
g

?
 

M
a

n
u
fa

c
tu

re
rs

 m
u

s
t 
c
o
m

p
ly

 w
it
h

 a
p

p
lic

a
b

le
 l
e
g
is

la
ti
o

n
 t

o
 d

o
 w

it
h

 p
a

c
k
a

g
in

g
. 

T
h

e
re

 a
re

 r
e

g
u
la

ti
o

n
s
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 i
n
te

n
d

e
d

 t
o

 m
in

im
is

e
 

p
a

c
k
a

g
in

g
 o

f 
p

ro
d

u
c
ts

 a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 s

e
t 

ta
rg

e
ts

 f
o

r 
re

c
o

v
e

ry
 o

f 
p
a

c
k
a

g
in

g
 a

ft
e

r 
it
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 u
s
e

d
 b

y
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e

s
. 
A

 g
o

o
d

 e
x
a

m
p

le
 o

f 
h

o
w

 t
h

is
 w

o
rk

s
 i
s
 i
n

 s
u

p
e

rm
a

rk
e

ts
 w

h
e

re
 a

 l
a

rg
e

 a
m

o
u

n
t 
o
f 

p
a

c
k
a

g
in

g
 m

a
te

ri
a

l 
u

s
e

d
 t
o

 t
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

 p
ro

d
u

c
ts

 f
ro

m
 m

a
n

u
fa

c
tu

re
rs

 t
o

 
th

e
 s

h
e

lv
e

s
 i
s
 r

e
c
y
c
le

d
 t

o
 c

o
m

p
ly

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 l
a

w
. 

 

T
h

ro
u

g
h

 p
a

c
k
a

g
in

g
 r

e
d

e
s
ig

n
 a

n
d

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e
n

t 
s
u

c
h

 a
s
 r

e
d

u
c
in

g
 t
h
e

 w
e

ig
h

t 
o

f 
it
e
m

s
 l
ik

e
 b

o
tt

le
s
, 

c
a

n
s
 a

n
d

 b
o

x
e

s
 a

n
d

 i
n

c
re

a
s
in

g
 

th
e

 u
s
e

 o
f 

re
fi
ll 

a
n

d
 s

e
lf
-d

is
p
e

n
s
in

g
 s

y
s
te

m
s
, 
th

e
re

 w
a

s
 a

 ‘
z
e

ro
 g

ro
w

th
’ 
in

 p
a

c
k
a

g
in

g
 i
n

 2
0
0

8
, 

d
e

s
p

it
e

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

s
 i
n

 s
a

le
s
 a

n
d

 
p

o
p
u

la
ti
o

n
. 

W
h

a
t 

is
 d

o
n

e
 t

o
 e

n
c

o
u

ra
g

e
 s

h
o

p
s
 t

o
 r

e
d

u
c
e

 p
a

c
k

a
g

in
g

 a
n

d
 d

e
te

r 
th

e
m

 f
ro

m
 g

iv
in

g
 o

u
t 

p
la

s
ti

c
 b

a
g

s
?

 

T
h
e

 c
o
u

n
c
ils

 h
a

v
e

 n
o

 d
ir
e

c
t 

in
fl
u
e

n
c
e
 o

v
e

r 
re

ta
ile

rs
 t

o
 e

n
c
o
u

ra
g
e

 t
h
e

m
 t
o

 r
e
d

u
c
e
 p

a
c
k
a

g
in

g
 a

n
d

 d
e

te
r 

th
e
m

 f
ro

m
 g

iv
in

g
 o

u
t 

p
la

s
ti
c
 

b
a

g
s
. 

A
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

o
u

r 
w

a
s
te

 p
re

v
e

n
ti
o

n
 i
n

it
ia

ti
v
e

s
 w

e
 h

a
v
e

 g
iv

e
n

 a
w

a
y
 a

 l
a

rg
e

 n
u

m
b
e

r 
o
f 

re
u

s
a

b
le

 b
a

g
s
 t

o
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 i
n

 H
e

re
fo

rd
s
h

ir
e

 
a

n
d

 W
o
rc

e
s
te

rs
h

ir
e

. 
W

e
 w

ill
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 l
o

b
b

y
 g

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
fo

r 
im

p
ro

v
e

d
 m

e
a

s
u

re
s
 t
o

 p
re

v
e
n

t 
a
n

d
 r

e
d

u
c
e
 w

a
s
te

 s
u

c
h

 a
s
 t

h
is

. 

C
a

n
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il

 i
n

fl
u

e
n

c
e

 s
h

o
p

s
 r

e
 d

e
li

v
e

ri
e

s
 n

o
t 

in
 p

la
s

ti
c
 b

a
g

s
?

 

T
h
e

 c
o
u

n
c
ils

 h
a

v
e

 n
o

 d
ir
e

c
t 

in
fl
u
e

n
c
e
 o

v
e

r 
re

ta
ile

rs
 i
n

 r
e

g
a

rd
 t
o

 t
h

is
 a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

is
s
u

e
s
. 
H

o
w

e
v
e

r 
w

e
 w

ill
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 l
o

b
b

y
 

g
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
fo

r 
im

p
ro

v
e

d
 m

e
a

s
u

re
s
 t
o

 p
re

v
e

n
t 

w
a

s
te

 s
u

c
h

 a
s
 t
h

is
 a

n
d

 e
n

c
o

u
ra

g
e

 c
o

n
s
u
m

e
rs

 t
o

 d
o

 s
p
e

a
k
 t
o

 t
h

e
ir
 r

e
ta

ile
r.

  
 

W
h

y
 c

a
n

’t
 s

h
o

p
s

 u
s

e
 b

io
d

e
g

ra
d

a
b

le
 w

ra
p

p
in

g
 t

o
 p

re
s

e
rv

e
 f

o
o

d
 &

 s
a

v
e

 o
n

 w
a
s

te
?

 

76



A
n

n
e

x
 H

 C
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o
n
 

T
h
e
 J

o
in

t 
M

u
n

ic
ip

a
l 
W

a
s
te

 M
a
n
a

g
e

m
e
n
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 f

o
r 

H
e
re

fo
rd

s
h

ir
e
 a

n
d
  

 
P

a
g

e
 2

1
 o

f 
3
2

 
 

W
o
rc

e
s
te

rs
h
ir
e
 -

 
F

ir
s
t 
R

e
v
ie

w
 N

o
v
e

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0

9

If
 b

io
d

e
g
ra

d
a
b

le
 p

a
c
k
a
g
in

g
 i
s
 u

s
e

d
 t

o
 p

a
c
k
a

g
e

 f
o
o

d
 i
t 

s
ti
ll 

n
e

e
d

s
 t

o
 b

e
 d

is
p
o

s
e

d
 o

f.
 T

h
e

 w
a
y
 t

h
a

t 
it
 i
s
 m

a
n
u
fa

c
tu

re
d

 m
e

a
n

s
 i
t 

c
a
n

n
o
t 

b
e

 r
e

c
y
c
le

d
 s

o
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 w

o
u

ld
 b

e
 s

e
n

t 
fo

r 
d

is
p

o
s
a

l 
s
u

c
h

 a
s
 t

o
 l
a

n
d
fi
ll.

 T
h

e
 c

o
u

n
c
ils

 w
ill

 c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 l
o

b
b

y
 g

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
fo

r 
im

p
ro

v
e

d
 

m
e

a
s
u

re
s
 t
o

 p
re

v
e

n
t 
th

is
 w

a
s
te

 w
h

e
re

 p
o

s
s
ib

le
 a

n
d

 w
h

e
re

 t
h

is
 s

o
rt

 o
f 

p
a

c
k
a

g
in

g
 i
s
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

d
 m

a
k
e

 i
t 

re
c
y
c
la

b
le

. 
  

H
o

m
e

 C
o

m
p

o
s

ti
n

g
 

C
a

n
 m

o
re

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 b
e

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

 f
o

r 
p

e
o

p
le

 a
b

o
u

t 
c

o
m

p
o

s
ti

n
g

?
  

C
o

m
p
o

s
t 

b
in

s
 a

re
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 f

ro
m

 a
s
 l
it
tl
e

 a
s
 £

1
2

 (
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 d

e
liv

e
ry

).
 V

is
it
 t

h
e

 c
o
u
n

c
ils

 w
e

b
s
it
e

 
w

w
w

.w
a
s
te

m
is

s
io

n
im

p
o
s
s
ib

le
.o

rg
.u

k
 o

r 
c
a

ll 
th

e
 h

o
tl
in

e
 o

n
 0

1
9
0

5
 7

6
6
8

8
3

 t
o

 f
in

d
 o

u
t 
h

o
w

 t
o

 g
e

t 
a

 c
o
m

p
o

s
t 

b
in

. 
Y

o
u

 c
a
n

 a
ls

o
 g

e
t 
m

o
re

 
d

e
ta

ile
d

 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o

n
 o

n
 h

o
w

 t
o

 m
a

k
e

 a
n
d

 u
s
e

 c
o

m
p
o

s
t 
fr

o
m

 t
h

is
 w

e
b
s
it
e

; 
a

lt
e

rn
a

ti
v
e

ly
 v

is
it
 w

w
w

.r
e
c
y
c
le

n
o

w
.c

o
m

/c
o
m

p
o
s
t 
fo

r 
fu

rt
h

e
r 

h
in

ts
 a

n
d

 t
ip

s
. 

H
e

re
fo

rd
s
h

ir
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

a
n

d
 W

o
rc

e
s
te

rs
h

ir
e

 C
o
u

n
ty

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

a
ls

o
 s

to
c
k
 a

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

H
o
m

e
 C

o
m

p
o

s
ti
n

g
 i
n
fo

rm
a

ti
o
n

 l
e

a
fl
e

ts
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 

a
v
a

ila
b

le
 t

o
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ts
 f
re

e
 o

f 
c
h

a
rg

e
, 

if
 y

o
u

 n
e
e

d
 m

o
re

 i
n
fo

rm
a

ti
o
n

 p
le

a
s
e

 c
a

ll 
th

e
 M

is
s
io

n
 I
m

p
o

s
s
ib

le
 h

o
tl
in

e
 o

n
 0

1
9

0
5

 7
6
6

8
8

3
 o

r 
e

m
a

il 
m

is
s
io

n
im

p
o
s
s
ib

le
@

w
o
rc

e
s
te

rs
h
ir
e
.g

o
v
.u

k

C
a

n
 l

o
c

a
l 
c

la
s

s
e

s
 b

e
 o

rg
a

n
is

e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 c
o

u
n

c
il

 i
n

v
o

lv
in

g
 l

o
c

a
l 

e
x

p
e

rt
s

 p
ro

v
id

in
g

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 a
b

o
u

t 
in

d
o

o
r 

c
o

m
p

o
s

t 
b

in
s

?
 

T
h
e

 c
o
u

n
c
ils

 j
o

in
tl
y
 p

ro
m

o
te

 H
o
m

e
 C

o
m

p
o

s
ti
n
g
 t

h
e

 W
a
s
te

 a
n
d

 R
e

s
o
u

rc
e

s
 A

c
ti
o
n

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 (

W
R

A
P

).
  

T
h
e

re
 a

re
 m

a
n

y
 i
n

it
ia

ti
v
e

s
 o

n
 H

o
m

e
 C

o
m

p
o

s
ti
n

g
 w

h
ic

h
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 r
u

n
n

in
g
 C

o
m

p
o

s
t 

C
lin

ic
s
 a

n
d

 r
o

a
d

s
h

o
w

s
 i
n

 t
o

w
n

s
 a

n
d

 c
it
ie

s
 a

n
d

 
o
ff

e
ri
n

g
 s

u
b

s
id

is
e

d
 c

o
m

p
o

s
t 

b
in

s
. 

In
 a

d
d

it
io

n
 t

o
 t
h

is
, 

th
e

 a
u

th
o

ri
ti
e

s
 r

u
n

 a
 M

a
s
te

r 
C

o
m

p
o

s
te

r 
S

c
h

e
m

e
, 

 a
im

e
d

 a
t 
p

ro
m

o
ti
n

g
 t

h
e
 

b
e

n
e
fi
ts

 o
f 

h
o

m
e

 c
o
m

p
o

s
ti
n

g
, 

e
n

c
o

u
ra

g
in

g
 m

o
re

 p
e
o

p
le

 t
o

 p
a

rt
ic

ip
a
te

 a
n
d

 e
n

a
b

lin
g
 t
h

o
s
e
 w

h
o

 a
lr
e

a
d

y
 h

o
m

e
 c

o
m

p
o

s
t,

 t
o

 d
o

 s
o

 
m

o
re

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

ly
. 

T
h

e
re

 a
re

 c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 5

5
 a

c
ti
v
e

 M
a

s
te

r 
C

o
m

p
o

s
te

r 
v
o

lu
n

te
e

rs
 a

c
ro

s
s
 H

e
re

fo
rd

s
h

ir
e

 a
n

d
 W

o
rc

e
s
te

rs
h

ir
e

 w
h

o
 t

a
k
e

 
p

a
rt

 i
n

 a
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

p
ro

m
o

ti
o
n

a
l 
a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 a

tt
e

n
d

in
g
 e

v
e

n
ts

, 
d

o
in

g
 s

c
h
o

o
l 
v
is

it
s
 a

n
d

 g
iv

in
g
 c

o
m

p
o

s
ti
n

g
 d

e
m

o
n

s
tr

a
ti
o

n
s
, 

a
s
 

w
e

ll 
a

s
 g

e
n

e
ra

lly
 s

p
re

a
d

in
g
 t

h
e

 c
o

m
p

o
s
ti
n

g
 m

e
s
s
a

g
e

 i
n

 t
h

e
ir
 l
o

c
a

l 
c
o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
. 

If
 y

o
u
 a

re
 i
n
te

re
s
te

d
 i
n
 j
o
in

in
g

 t
h
e
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 p

le
a
s
e
 v

is
it
 w

w
w

.w
a
s
te

m
is

s
io

n
im

p
o
s
s
ib

le
.o

rg
.u

k
 t

o
 f

in
d
 o

u
t 
m

o
re

 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
, 

o
r 

c
a
ll 

th
e
 M

is
s
io

n
 

Im
p
o
s
s
ib

le
 h

o
tl
in

e
 o

n
 0

1
9
0
5
 7

6
6
8
8
3
 a

lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
ly

 y
o
u
 c

a
n
 e

m
a
il 

m
is

s
io

n
im

p
o
s
s
ib

le
@

w
o
rc

e
s
te

rs
h
ir
e
.g

o
v
.u

k

  C
o

u
ld

 t
h

e
re

 b
e

 a
 c

o
m

m
u

n
a

l 
c

o
m

p
o

s
t 

s
it

e
 t

h
a

t 
p

e
o

p
le

 c
o

u
ld

 c
o

n
tr

ib
u

te
 t

o
?

 

77



A
n

n
e

x
 H

 C
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o
n
 

T
h
e
 J

o
in

t 
M

u
n

ic
ip

a
l 
W

a
s
te

 M
a
n
a

g
e

m
e
n
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 f

o
r 

H
e
re

fo
rd

s
h

ir
e
 a

n
d
  

 
P

a
g

e
 2

2
 o

f 
3
2

 
 

W
o
rc

e
s
te

rs
h
ir
e
 -

 
F

ir
s
t 
R

e
v
ie

w
 N

o
v
e

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0

9

T
h

is
 i
s
 a

 g
o

o
d
 i
d

e
a

 w
h

e
re

 i
t 

c
a
n

 b
e

 a
c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
te

d
, 
fo

r 
e

x
a

m
p

le
 a

llo
tm

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 c
o
m

m
u

n
a

l 
fa

rm
in

g
 p

ro
je

c
ts

. 
H

o
w

e
v
e

r,
 a

n
y
 s

it
e

 
re

c
e

iv
in

g
 w

a
s
te

 f
ro

m
 o

th
e

r 
p

re
m

is
e

s
 w

o
u

ld
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

 p
la

n
n

in
g
 p

e
rm

is
s
io

n
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 c

o
u

n
c
il 

a
n
d

 a
n
 a

u
th

o
ri
s
a

ti
o

n
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 E

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

t 
A

g
e

n
c
y
. 

If
 y

o
u

 a
re

 i
n
te

re
s
te

d
 i
n
 s

e
tt

in
g
 u

p
 a

 s
c
h

e
m

e
 i
n

 y
o

u
r 

lo
c
a

l 
a

re
a

 y
o

u
 c

o
u

ld
 c

o
n

ta
c
t 

th
e

 C
o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 C

o
m

p
o
s
ti
n

g
 N

e
tw

o
rk

 
(C

C
N

) 
fo

r 
m

o
re

 a
d

v
ic

e
 a

n
d
 i
n
fo

rm
a

ti
o
n

. 
T

h
e

 C
C

N
 c

o
n

ta
c
t 
d

e
ta

ils
 a

re
 a

s
 f
o

llo
w

s
, 

w
e

b
: 

w
w

w
.c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
c
o
m

p
o
s
t.

o
rg

 T
e

l:
 0

1
1

4
 2

5
8
0

 
4

8
3

 e
m

a
il:

 i
n
fo

@
c
o
m

m
u

n
it
y
c
o
m

p
o

s
t.
o

rg
. 

R
e

-u
s

e
  

C
o

u
ld

 t
h

e
re

 b
e

 a
 C

o
u

n
c

il
 r

u
n

 ‘
F

re
e

c
y
c

le
’ 

b
e

c
a

u
s
e

 o
f 

th
e

 v
a

ri
a

b
le

 r
u

le
s

 o
f 

F
re

e
c

y
c

le
 i
n

 d
if

fe
re

n
t 

a
re

a
s

?
 W

h
a

t 
a

b
o

u
t 

a
 p

e
n

 
a

n
d

 p
a

p
e

r 
s

y
s

te
m

 f
o

r 
p

e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 d

o
 n

o
t 

h
a

v
e

 c
o

m
p

u
te

rs
?

 

R
e

-u
s
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 s

u
c
h

 a
s
 F

re
e

c
y
c
le

 a
re

 i
n
d

e
p
e

n
d
e

n
tl
y
 r

u
n

 o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 o
n

ly
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 a

d
v
e

n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 i
n

te
rn

e
t 
h

a
v
e

 s
u

c
h

 
s
c
h

e
m

e
s
 b

e
e
n

 m
a

d
e

 p
o

s
s
ib

le
. 

F
o

r 
th

o
s
e

 p
e

o
p

le
 t

h
a

t 
d

o
 n

o
t 
h

a
v
e

 i
n

te
rn

e
t 
a

c
c
e

s
s
 t
h

e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

o
rg

a
n

is
e

s
 r

e
g
u

la
r 

re
-u

s
e

 s
w

a
p

 s
h

o
p

s
 

w
h

e
re

 p
e

o
p

le
 c

a
n
 b

ri
n
g
 a

n
d

 s
w

a
p

 u
n

w
a

n
te

d
 b

u
t 
u

s
e
fu

l 
it
e
m

s
 w

it
h

 o
th

e
r 

p
e
o

p
le

. 
F

o
r 

m
o

re
 i
n
fo

rm
a

ti
o
n

 v
is

it
 

w
w

w
.w

a
s
te

m
is

s
io

n
im

p
o
s
s
ib

le
.o

rg
.u

k
, 
o

r 
c
a

ll 
th

e
 M

is
s
io

n
 I

m
p

o
s
s
ib

le
 h

o
tl
in

e
 o

n
 0

1
9

0
5
 7

6
6

8
8

3
 a

lt
e

rn
a

ti
v
e

ly
 y

o
u

 c
a

n
 e

m
a

il 
m

is
s
io

n
im

p
o

s
s
ib

le
@

w
o

rc
e

s
te

rs
h

ir
e

.g
o

v
.u

k
 

T
h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

a
ls

o
 h

a
s
 a

 "
R

e
-u

s
e
 G

u
id

e
" 

w
h

ic
h
 i
s
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 f

re
e
 o

f 
c
h

a
rg

e
 t

o
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

. 
T

h
e

 G
u

id
e

 d
e

ta
ils

 m
a
n

y
 o

f 
th

e
 o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o
n

s
 

w
h

o
 w

ill
 a

c
c
e

p
t 

d
o
n

a
ti
o

n
s
 o

f 
u
n

w
a

n
te

d
 i
te

m
s
 s

u
c
h

 a
s
 c

lo
th

in
g
, 
fu

rn
it
u

re
 a

n
d

 e
le

c
tr

ic
a

l 
a

p
p

lia
n

c
e

s
 f
o

r 
re

-u
s
e
. 

It
e

m
s
 c

a
n

 a
ls

o
 b

e
 

p
u

rc
h

a
s
e

d
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
s
e

 o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
s
. 

K
e

rb
s

id
e

 R
e
c

y
c

li
n

g
 

W
h

y
 a

re
 r

e
c

y
c

la
b

le
 m

a
te

ri
a

ls
 o

ft
e

n
 c

o
ll
e

c
te

d
 m

ix
e

d
 t

o
g

e
th

e
r?

 H
o

w
 d

o
e

s
 i

t 
w

o
rk

?
  

R
e

c
y
c
la

b
le

 m
a

te
ri
a

ls
 a

re
 o

ft
e
n

 c
o

lle
c
te

d
 m

ix
e

d
 t

o
g
e

th
e

r 
fo

r 
a

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

re
a

s
o

n
s
. 

M
a
n

y
 p

e
o
p

le
 f

in
d

 i
t 

e
a

s
ie

r 
to

 p
u
t 
a

ll 
th

e
ir
 

re
c
y
c
la

b
le

s
 i
n

 o
n

e
 l
a

rg
e

 c
o

n
ta

in
e

r 
o

r 
b

a
g
. 

It
 i
s
 a

ls
o

 e
a

s
ie

r 
fo

r 
th

e
 c

o
u
n

c
il 

to
 c

o
lle

c
t 
re

c
y
c
la

b
le

s
 i
f 

th
e

y
 a

re
 a

ll 
in

 o
n

e
 t

y
p

e
 o

f 
c
o

n
ta

in
e

r.
 T

h
e

 d
is

a
d

v
a

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

th
is

 m
e
th

o
d

 i
s
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 m

a
te

ri
a

ls
 n

e
e
d

 s
o

rt
in

g
 b

e
fo

re
 t
h

e
y
 c

a
n

 b
e

 s
e
n

t 
to

 b
e

 r
e

c
y
c
le

d
. 

H
o

w
e

v
e

r 
s
tu

d
ie

s
 h

a
v
e

 s
h

o
w

n
 t

h
a

t 
th

is
 m

e
th

o
d

 e
n

c
o
u

ra
g
e

s
 m

o
re

 r
e

c
y
c
lin

g
 a

n
d

 o
v
e

ra
ll 

is
 t

h
e

 m
o

s
t 

e
c
o

n
o
m

ic
a

l 
w

a
y
 o

f 
c
o

lle
c
ti
n

g
 r

e
c
y
c
la

b
le

s
. 

  

78



A
n

n
e

x
 H

 C
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o
n
 

T
h
e
 J

o
in

t 
M

u
n

ic
ip

a
l 
W

a
s
te

 M
a
n
a

g
e

m
e
n
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 f

o
r 

H
e
re

fo
rd

s
h

ir
e
 a

n
d
  

 
P

a
g

e
 2

3
 o

f 
3
2

 
 

W
o
rc

e
s
te

rs
h
ir
e
 -

 
F

ir
s
t 
R

e
v
ie

w
 N

o
v
e

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0

9

O
n

c
e

 c
o

lle
c
te

d
 m

ix
e

d
 r

e
c
y
c
la

b
le

 m
a
te

ri
a

ls
 h

a
v
e

 t
o

 b
e

 s
o

rt
e

d
 a

n
d

 s
e
g
re

g
a

te
d

 b
e
fo

re
 t
h

e
y
 c

a
n

 b
e

 r
e

c
y
c
le

d
 i
n

to
 n

e
w

 m
a

te
ri
a

ls
. 
T

o
 d

o
 

th
is

 t
h
e

 m
ix

e
d

 m
a
te

ri
a

ls
 a

re
 s

e
n

t 
to

 a
 M

a
te

ri
a

l 
R

e
c
la

m
a

ti
o

n
 F

a
c
ili

ty
 w

h
ic

h
 s

o
rt

s
 t
h

e
m

 o
u

t 
b

y
 a

 m
ix

tu
re

 o
f 

m
a

n
u

a
l 
a
n
d

 m
e

c
h

a
n

ic
a

l 
m

e
th

o
d

s
, 

in
to

 p
a

p
e

r,
 p

la
s
ti
c
s
, 

m
e

ta
ls

, 
e

tc
. 
  
 

A
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

o
u

r 
jo

in
t 
w

a
s
te

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e
n

t 
a

rr
a

n
g
e

m
e
n

ts
 H

e
re

fo
rd

s
h

ir
e

 a
n

d
 W

o
rc

e
s
te

rs
h

ir
e

 a
re

 c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
n

g
 a

 n
e

w
 M

a
te

ri
a

ls
 

R
e

c
la

m
a
ti
o

n
 F

a
c
ili

ty
 n

e
a

r 
W

o
rc

e
s
te

r 
c
a

lle
d

 E
n

v
ir
o

s
o

rt
. 

T
h
e

 n
e

w
 f

a
c
ili

ty
 w

ill
 a

ls
o

 h
a

v
e

 l
e

s
s
 r

e
lia

n
c
e

 o
n

 p
e

o
p

le
 s

o
rt

in
g
 t

h
e

 w
a

s
te

 b
y
 

h
a

n
d

. 
N

e
w

 e
q
u

ip
m

e
n

t 
w

ill
 n

o
w

 d
o

 m
u

c
h

 o
f 

th
e

 s
o

rt
in

g
 m

a
k
in

g
 t

h
e
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 f
a

s
te

r 
a
n

d
 m

o
re

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
t.
  

E
s
s
e

n
ti
a

lly
 m

a
te

ri
a

ls
 a

re
 s

o
rt

e
d
 b

y
 t

y
p

e
 u

s
in

g
 a

 v
a

ri
e

ty
 o

f 
d

if
fe

re
n

t 
m

a
c
h

in
e

s
 c

o
n
n

e
c
t 
b

y
 c

o
n

v
e

y
o

r 
b

e
lt
s
. 

R
e

c
y
c
la

b
le

s
 a

re
 s

o
rt

e
d

 b
y
 

s
iz

e
 a

n
d

 s
h

a
p

e
, 
b

y
 t

h
e
 p

ro
p

e
rt

ie
s
 o

f 
th

e
 m

a
te

ri
a

l 
a

n
d

 e
v
e

n
 b

y
 c

o
lo

u
r.

 E
x
a

m
p

le
s
 o

f 
m

a
c
h

in
e
s
 t

h
a

t 
a

re
 u

s
e

d
 i
n

c
lu

d
e
 b

a
lli

s
ti
c
 

s
e

p
a

ra
to

rs
 (

w
h

ic
h

 a
re

 l
ik

e
 l
a

rg
e

 v
ib

ra
ti
n

g
 s

ie
v
e

s
),

 m
a

g
n

e
ts

 t
o

 s
e
p

a
ra

te
 s

te
e

l,
 e

d
d

y
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
s
e

p
a

ra
to

rs
 t

o
 r

e
m

o
v
e

 a
lu

m
in

iu
m

 a
n

d
 

o
p

ti
c
a

l 
s
o

rt
e

rs
 t

o
 i
d

e
n
ti
fy

 a
n
d

 s
e
p

a
ra

te
 d

if
fe

re
n

t 
s
o

rt
s
 o

f 
p

la
s
ti
c
. 

O
n

c
e

 t
h

e
 m

a
te

ri
a

ls
 a

re
 s

o
rt

e
d

 o
u

t 
th

e
y
 a

re
 t

h
e

n
 s

u
it
a

b
le

 f
o

r 
re

-p
ro

c
e

s
s
in

g
 i
n

to
 n

e
w

 m
a

te
ri
a

ls
. 
 

T
h
e

 n
e

w
 E

n
v
ir
o

s
o

rt
 f

a
c
ili

ty
 w

ill
 b

e
 o

p
e
n

 i
n

 t
h

e
 a

u
tu

m
n
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
re

 w
ill

 b
e

 a
 v

is
it
o

r’
s
 c

e
n

tr
e

 s
o

 t
h

a
t 
p

e
o

p
le

 w
ill

 b
e

 a
b

le
 t

o
 s

e
e

 f
o

r 
th

e
m

s
e

lv
e

s
 w

h
a

t 
h

a
p

p
e

n
s
 t
o

 t
h
e

ir
 w

a
s
te

. 
 

W
h

a
t 

is
 h

a
p

p
e

n
in

g
 t

o
 a

n
y
 m

a
te

ri
a

ls
 t

h
a

t 
a

re
 s

e
n

t 
fo

r 
re

c
y
c

li
n

g
 b

u
t 

n
o

 l
o

n
g

e
r 

p
ro

fi
ta

b
le

?
 

T
h
e

re
 a

re
 f

e
w

 e
x
a

m
p

le
s
 o

f 
m

a
te

ri
a

ls
 t

h
a

t 
a

re
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 c

o
lle

c
te

d
 b

u
t 
n

o
t 
p

ro
fi
ta

b
le

 t
o

 r
e

c
y
c
le

, 
th

e
s
e

 i
n

c
lu

d
e
 h

o
u

s
e
h

o
ld

 b
a

tt
e

ri
e

s
 a

n
d

 
c
a

r 
ty

re
s
. 

D
u

e
 t

o
 t

h
e

 h
ig

h
 a

n
d

 i
n

c
re

a
s
in

g
 c

o
s
ts

 o
f 

w
a

s
te

 d
is

p
o

s
a

l,
 e

.g
. 

la
n

d
fi
ll,

 i
t 

is
 a

lm
o

s
t 
a
lw

a
y
s
 m

o
re

 b
e
n

e
fi
c
ia

l 
to

 r
e

c
y
c
le

 a
 

m
a

te
ri
a

l.
 L

e
g
is

la
ti
o
n

 e
n

s
u

re
s
 t
h

a
t 

s
o
m

e
 m

a
te

ri
a

ls
 t

h
a

t 
a

re
 h

a
z
a

rd
o

u
s
 t

o
 t
h

e
 e

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

t 
a

re
 c

o
lle

c
te

d
 a

n
d

 r
e

c
y
c
le

d
 e

v
e

n
 t
h

o
u

g
h

 i
t 

w
o

u
ld

 b
e

 c
h
e

a
p
e

r 
to

 d
is

p
o

s
e

 o
f 

th
e
m

. 

W
h

a
t 

h
a

p
p

e
n

s
 t

o
 a

n
y
 s

to
c

k
 p

il
e

s
 o

f 
re

c
y
c

le
d

 m
a

te
ri

a
ls

?
 

W
a
s
te

 c
o

lle
c
te

d
 f
o

r 
re

c
y
c
lin

g
 i
n

 H
e

re
fo

rd
s
h

ir
e

 a
n

d
 W

o
rc

e
s
te

rs
h

ir
e

 h
a
s
 n

o
t 
b

e
e

n
 s

to
c
k
p

ile
d
. 
O

n
c
e

 s
o

rt
e

d
 a

t 
th

e
 M

a
te

ri
a

ls
 R

e
c
o

v
e

ry
 

F
a

c
ili

ty
 o

u
r 

re
c
y
c
la

b
le

s
 a

re
 o

f 
a

 h
ig

h
 q

u
a

lit
y
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
re

 i
s
 a

 s
tr

o
n

g
 d

e
m

a
n
d

 f
o

r 
th

e
m

 f
ro

m
 r

e
-p

ro
c
e

s
s
o

rs
. 

W
h

y
 c

a
n

’t
 I

 r
e

c
y
c

le
 c

a
rr

ie
r 

b
a

g
s

 o
r 

c
o

rr
u

g
a

te
d

 c
a

rd
 i

n
 o

u
r 

re
c

y
c

li
n

g
 c

o
ll
e

c
ti

o
n

?
 

  

79



A
n

n
e

x
 H

 C
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o
n
 

T
h
e
 J

o
in

t 
M

u
n

ic
ip

a
l 
W

a
s
te

 M
a
n
a

g
e

m
e
n
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 f

o
r 

H
e
re

fo
rd

s
h

ir
e
 a

n
d
  

 
P

a
g

e
 2

4
 o

f 
3
2

 
 

W
o
rc

e
s
te

rs
h
ir
e
 -

 
F

ir
s
t 
R

e
v
ie

w
 N

o
v
e

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0

9

U
n

fo
rt

u
n
a

te
ly

 c
a

rr
ie

r 
b
a

g
s
 a

n
d

 t
h

ic
k
 c

a
rd

 a
re

 n
o

t 
a

c
c
e

p
te

d
 b

e
c
a

u
s
e
 e

it
h

e
r 

th
e

re
 i
s
 n

o
 m

a
rk

e
t 
fo

r 
th

e
s
e

 p
ro

d
u

c
ts

 o
r 

b
e

c
a

u
s
e

 t
h

e
y
 

c
a

n
 d

is
ru

p
t 

th
e

 s
o

rt
in

g
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
. 
 

H
o

w
e

v
e

r 
o

n
c
e

 t
h

e
 E

n
v
ir
o

s
o

rt
 f

a
c
ili

ty
, 

d
e

s
c
ri
b

e
d

 a
b
o

v
e

, 
is

 u
p
 a

n
d

 r
u

n
n

in
g
 a

t 
th

e
 e

n
d

 o
f 

th
is

 y
e

a
r 

o
u

r 
a

im
 i
s
 t
o

 a
c
c
e
p

t 
c
o

rr
u

g
a

te
d

 
c
a

rd
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

y
o

u
r 

re
c
y
c
lin

g
 c

o
lle

c
ti
o

n
 s

e
rv

ic
e

. 
W

e
 w

ill
 p

u
b

lic
is

e
 a

n
y
 c

h
a

n
g
e

s
 t

o
 l
e

t 
p
e

o
p
le

 k
n

o
w

 w
h

e
n

 m
a
te

ri
a

ls
 c

a
n

 b
e

 r
e

c
y
c
le

d
. 

W
h

a
t 

ty
p

e
s

 o
f 

p
la

s
ti

c
s

 c
a

n
 o

r 
c

a
n

n
o

t 
b

e
 r

e
c

y
c

le
d

?
 W

h
y
 a

re
 t

h
e

re
 l

im
it

a
ti

o
n

s
?

 

C
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 y

o
u

 s
h

o
u

ld
 o

n
ly

 p
u

t 
p

la
s
ti
c
 b

o
tt

le
s
 i
n

 y
o

u
r 

re
c
y
c
lin

g
 c

o
lle

c
ti
o

n
, 

e
x
a

m
p

le
s
 a

re
 l
is

te
d

 b
e

lo
w

. 
 

•
 

P
la

s
ti
c
 m

ilk
 &

 j
u

ic
e

 c
o

n
ta

in
e

rs
 

•
 

P
la

s
ti
c
 w

a
te

r 
&

 s
q
u

a
s
h
 b

o
tt

le
s
 

•
 

P
la

s
ti
c
 f

iz
z
y
 d

ri
n

k
s
 b

o
tt

le
s
 (

n
o

t 
b

la
c
k
 o

r 
b

ro
w

n
) 

•
 

P
la

s
ti
c
 s

h
a
m

p
o

o
 &

 b
u

b
b

le
 b

a
th

 b
o

tt
le

s
 

•
 

P
la

s
ti
c
 f

a
b

ri
c
 c

o
n

d
it
io

n
e

r,
 b

le
a

c
h

 &
 c

le
a

n
in

g
 b

o
tt

le
s
 

•
 

P
la

s
ti
c
 w

a
s
h

in
g
 u

p
 l
iq

u
id

 b
o

tt
le

s
 

T
h
e

re
 a

re
 s

o
 m

a
n

y
 d

if
fe

re
n

t 
ty

p
e

s
 o

f 
p

la
s
ti
c
 a

n
d

 m
a

n
y
 a

re
 d

if
fi
c
u

lt
 t
o
 r

e
c
y
c
le

 e
it
h

e
r 

b
e

c
a

u
s
e

 t
h
e

y
 a

re
 d

if
fi
c
u

lt
 t
o

 s
o

rt
 o

u
t 
o

r 
th

e
re

 i
s
 

n
o

 m
a

rk
e

t 
fo

r 
th

e
m

. 
P

la
s
ti
c
 b

o
tt

le
s
 a

re
 e

a
s
ily

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
a
b

le
, 

th
e

y
 a

re
 e

a
s
y
 t

o
 s

o
rt

 o
u

t 
fo

rm
 o

th
e

r 
m

a
te

ri
a

ls
, 

a
n

d
 t
h

e
re

 i
s
 a

 s
tr

o
n

g
 

d
e

m
a

n
d

 f
o

r 
th

e
m

 t
o

 b
e
 r

e
c
y
c
le

d
. 

A
s
 w

it
h

 c
o

rr
u

g
a

te
d

 c
a

rd
b
o

a
rd

 o
u

r 
a

im
 i
s
 t
o

 a
c
c
e

p
t 
m

o
re

 d
if
fe

re
n
t 

ty
p

e
s
 o

f 
p

la
s
ti
c
 o

n
c
e
 t

h
e

 
E

n
v
ir
o

s
o

rt
 f

a
c
ili

ty
 i
s
 u

p
 a

n
d

 r
u
n

n
in

g
 a

t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
th

is
 y

e
a

r.
 

C
o

u
ld

 t
h

e
re

 b
e

 c
le

a
re

r 
s

y
m

b
o

ls
 o

n
 t

h
e

 p
la

s
ti

c
s

 t
h

a
t 

c
o

in
c

id
e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c

il
 r

e
c

y
c

li
n

g
 i

n
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
?

 

T
h
e

 c
o
u

n
c
il 

h
a

s
 n

o
 d

ir
e

c
t 

in
fl
u
e

n
c
e
 o

n
 t

h
e

 s
y
m

b
o

ls
 p

ri
n

te
d

 o
n

 p
la

s
ti
c
s
. 

H
o

w
e

v
e

r 
w

e
 k

n
o

w
 t

h
a

t 
p

e
o
p

le
 f

in
d

 t
h

e
 s

y
m

b
o

ls
 c

o
n
fu

s
in

g
. 

T
o
 m

a
k
e

 t
h

in
g
s
 s

im
p

le
r 

w
e

 p
re

fe
r 

to
 a

d
v
e

rt
is

e
 t

h
e

 t
y
p

e
 o

f 
p

la
s
ti
c
 c

o
n

ta
in

e
r 

th
a

t 
c
a

n
 b

e
 r

e
c
y
c
le

d
, 
fo

r 
e

x
a

m
p

le
 p

la
s
ti
c
 b

o
tt

le
s
 a

s
 t
h

e
s
e

 
a

re
 e

a
s
ily

 r
e

c
o

g
n

is
a

b
le

. 
  

N
e

e
d

 a
 b

a
la

n
c
e

d
 a

m
o

u
n

t 
o

f 
in

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 a
b

o
u

t 
re

c
y
c

li
n

g
, 

b
ri

e
f 

a
n

d
 c

le
a

r.
 

80



A
n

n
e

x
 H

 C
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o
n
 

T
h
e
 J

o
in

t 
M

u
n

ic
ip

a
l 
W

a
s
te

 M
a
n
a

g
e

m
e
n
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 f

o
r 

H
e
re

fo
rd

s
h

ir
e
 a

n
d
  

 
P

a
g

e
 2

5
 o

f 
3
2

 
 

W
o
rc

e
s
te

rs
h
ir
e
 -

 
F

ir
s
t 
R

e
v
ie

w
 N

o
v
e

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0

9

T
h
e

 c
o
u

n
c
il 

is
 p

ro
d

u
c
in

g
 n

e
w

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n

 o
n

 t
h

e
 r

e
c
y
c
lin

g
 s

c
h

e
m

e
 t

h
a

t 
w

ill
 b

e
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 b

e
fo

re
 t

h
e

 e
n

d
 o

f 
th

e
 y

e
a

r;
 t

h
is

 w
ill

 b
e

 b
ri
e
f 

a
n

d
 c

le
a

r.
  

H
o

u
s

e
h

o
ld

 W
a

s
te

 S
it

e
s
 

Is
 t

h
e

re
 a

 l
o

c
a

l 
fa

c
il

it
y
 f

o
r 

re
c

y
c

li
n

g
 b

a
tt

e
ri

e
s

?
 

Y
o

u
 c

a
n

 r
e

c
y
c
le

 b
o
th

 l
e

a
d

 a
c
id

 c
a

r 
b

a
tt
e

ri
e

s
 a

n
d

 s
m

a
ll 

h
o

u
s
e

h
o

ld
 b

a
tt

e
ri
e

s
 a

t 
a
n

y
 H

o
u

s
e

h
o

ld
 W

a
s
te

 S
it
e

. 
 

W
h

y
 a

re
 p

e
d

e
s

tr
ia

n
s

 p
re

v
e

n
te

d
 f

ro
m

 u
s

in
g

 t
h

e
 t

ip
?

 W
e
 c

a
n

’t
 t

a
k
e

 b
a

tt
e

ri
e
s

 b
e
c

a
u

s
e

 w
e
 d

o
 n

o
t 

h
a

v
e

 a
 c

a
r.

  

P
e

d
e

s
tr

ia
n

s
 a

re
 a

llo
w

e
d

 t
o

 u
s
e

 t
h

e
 H

o
u

s
e
h

o
ld

 W
a
s
te

 S
it
e

s
 w

h
e

re
 i
t 
is

 s
a
fe

 t
o

 a
llo

w
 t

h
e
m

 t
o
 d

o
 s

o
. 
 

W
h

e
re

 c
a

n
 y

o
u

 d
is

p
o

s
e

 o
f 

p
a

in
t/

o
ld

 p
a

in
t 

p
o

ts
?

 

O
ld

 e
m

p
ty

 p
a

in
t 

p
o

ts
 f

ro
m

 y
o

u
r 

h
o

m
e

 c
a
n

 b
e

 t
a

k
e

n
 t
o

 y
o

u
r 

n
e

a
re

s
t 

H
o

u
s
e
h

o
ld

 W
a
s
te

 S
it
e

. 
If

 y
o

u
 m

u
s
t 

d
is

p
o

s
e

 o
f 

a
n

y
 u

n
w

a
n

te
d

 
p

a
in

t 
th

e
n

 t
h

is
 c

a
n

 o
n

ly
 b

e
 t
a

k
e
n

 t
o
 c

e
rt

a
in

 s
it
e

s
 t

h
a

t 
h
a

v
e

 c
h

e
m

ic
a

l 
lo

c
k
e

rs
 v

is
it
 w

w
w

.w
o
rc

e
s
te

rs
h
ir
e
.g

o
v
.u

k
/w

a
s
te

 f
o
r 

fu
rt

h
e

r 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
. 
 

W
a

s
te

 D
is

p
o

s
a

l 

W
h

e
re

 d
o

e
s

 t
h

e
 g

e
n

e
ra

l 
w

a
s

te
 g

o
?

 

G
e

n
e

ra
l 
w

a
s
te

 w
h

ic
h

 i
s
 e

it
h

e
r 

c
o

lle
c
te

d
 i
n

 b
la

c
k
 s

a
c
k
s
 o

r 
w

h
e

e
le

d
 b

in
s
 i
s
 m

o
s
tl
y
 s

e
n

t 
to

 l
a

n
d
fi
ll.

 I
n

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 r

e
d
u

c
e

 t
h

e
 a

m
o

u
n
t 

o
f 

w
a

s
te

 w
e

 s
e

n
d

 t
o

 l
a

n
d
fi
ll 

s
o

m
e

 w
a

s
te

 i
s
 s

e
n

t 
to

 E
n
e

rg
y
 f

ro
m

 W
a
s
te

 f
a

c
ili

ti
e

s
 i
n

 e
it
h
e

r 
C

o
v
e

n
tr

y
 o

r 
W

o
lv

e
rh

a
m

p
to

n
. 

 

Q
U

E
S

T
IO

N
S

 R
E

L
A

T
IN

G
 T

O
 H

E
R

E
F

O
R

D
S

H
IR

E
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
 R

E
F

U
S

E
 C

O
L

L
E

C
T

IO
N

 

W
h

y
 i

s
 s

h
re

d
d

e
d

 p
a

p
e

r 
n

o
t 

a
c
c

e
p

te
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 r
e

c
y
c

li
n

g
 c

o
ll

e
c

ti
o

n
?

 

81



A
n

n
e

x
 H

 C
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o
n
 

T
h
e
 J

o
in

t 
M

u
n

ic
ip

a
l 
W

a
s
te

 M
a
n
a

g
e

m
e
n
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 f

o
r 

H
e
re

fo
rd

s
h

ir
e
 a

n
d
  

 
P

a
g

e
 2

6
 o

f 
3
2

 
 

W
o
rc

e
s
te

rs
h
ir
e
 -

 
F

ir
s
t 
R

e
v
ie

w
 N

o
v
e

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0

9

S
h

re
d
d

e
d

 p
a
p

e
r 

is
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 a

c
c
e

p
te

d
 i
n
 t

h
e

 p
u

rp
le

 r
e

c
y
c
lin

g
 s

a
c
k
 b

u
t 

it
 i
s
 a

 d
if
fi
c
u

lt
 m

a
te

ri
a

l 
to

 d
e

a
l 
w

it
h

. 
 W

h
e
n

 p
a
p

e
r 

is
 s

h
re

d
d

e
d

 
it
 b

e
c
o
m

e
s
 m

o
re

 d
if
fi
c
u

lt
 t

o
 s

o
rt

 a
n

d
 s

e
p

a
ra

te
 t

h
a
n

 w
h

o
le

 p
a
p

e
r.

 S
h

re
d

d
in

g
 a

ls
o
 d

a
m

a
g
e

s
 t
h

e
 f

ib
re

s
 a

n
d

 t
h

u
s
 i
s
 l
e
s
s
 u

s
e
fu

l 
a

s
 a

 
re

c
y
c
la

b
le

 m
a

te
ri
a

l.
 

T
h

is
 m

a
te

ri
a

l 
is

 b
e

s
t 

p
u

t 
in

 a
 p

a
p

e
r 

b
a

n
k
 a

t 
o
n

e
 o

f 
th

e
 m

a
n

y
 b

ri
n

g
 s

it
e

s
 i
n

 H
e

re
fo

rd
s
h

ir
e
. 
T

h
is

 e
lim

in
a

te
s
 t
h

e
 n

e
e

d
 t

o
 s

o
rt

 a
n
d

 
s
e

g
re

g
a

te
 i
t 

b
e
fo

re
 i
t 

is
 s

e
n

t 
to

 b
e

 r
e

c
y
c
le

d
. 
 

C
a

n
 y

o
u

 c
la

ri
fy

 w
h

e
re

 t
h

e
 g

a
rd

e
n

 w
a
s

te
 b

a
g

s
 (

g
re

e
n

 b
a

g
s

) 
g

o
, 
d

o
 t

h
e

y
 g

o
 t

o
 l

a
n

d
fi

ll
?

 

A
n

y
 g

re
e

n
 g

a
rd

e
n

 w
a

s
te

 b
a

g
s
 y

o
u

 p
re

s
e

n
t 

a
re

 c
o

lle
c
te

d
 a

n
d

 e
n
d

 u
p
 i
n

 l
a

n
d
fi
ll.

 H
e

re
fo

rd
s
h

ir
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

is
 k

e
e

n
 t

o
 e

n
c
o

u
ra

g
e

 h
o

m
e

 
c
o

m
p
o

s
ti
n

g
 o

f 
w

a
s
te

 a
n

d
 d

is
c
o

u
ra

g
e

 l
a

n
d
fi
ll 

w
h

e
re

 p
o

s
s
ib

le
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 w

h
y
 t

h
e

re
 i
s
 a

 c
h

a
rg

e
 f

o
r 

th
is

 s
e

rv
ic

e
. 

 

D
o

 t
h

e
 g

re
e

n
 b

a
g

s
 r

o
t 

d
o

w
n

?
 

T
h
e

 g
re

e
n

 b
a

g
s
 a

re
 n

o
t 

b
io

d
e

g
ra

d
a

b
le

 s
o

 d
o

 n
o

t 
ro

t 
d

o
w

n
. 
 

T
h

e
re

 i
s
 n

o
t 

e
n

o
u

g
h

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 a
b

o
u

t 
w

h
a

t 
c

a
n

 b
e
 r

e
c

y
c

le
d

?
 

H
e

re
fo

rd
s
h

ir
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

is
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 p

ro
m

o
ti
n

g
 t
h

e
 n

e
w

 r
e

c
y
c
lin

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 w
h

ic
h

 w
ill

 s
ta

rt
 i
n

 N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

0
9

. 
In

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 i
s
 a

lr
e

a
d

y
 

a
v
a

ila
b

le
 o

n
 t
h

is
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 i
n
 c

o
u
n

c
il 

o
ff

ic
e

s
, 

lib
ra

ri
e

s
 a

n
d

 i
n
fo

 s
h
o

p
s
. 
O

ff
ic

e
rs

 a
re

 a
ls

o
 a

tt
e

n
d

in
g
 l
o

c
a

l 
e

v
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 c

o
n

d
u

c
ti
n

g
 r

o
a

d
-

s
h

o
w

s
 t

o
 t

ry
 t

o
 g

e
t 

m
o

re
 i
n
fo

rm
a

ti
o
n

 o
u

t.
 A

s
 t
h

e
 l
a
u

n
c
h

 o
f 

th
e

 n
e

w
 s

c
h

e
m

e
 d

ra
w

s
 n

e
a

re
r 

th
e

re
 w

ill
 b

e
 e

v
e

n
 m

o
re

 p
u

b
lic

it
y
 o

f 
th

e
 

s
c
h

e
m

e
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 p
ro

v
id

in
g
 a

n
 i
n
fo

rm
a

ti
o
n

 p
a

c
k
 t
o

 a
ll 

re
s
id

e
n

ts
 b

e
fo

re
 t

h
e

 s
c
h
e

m
e

 s
ta

rt
s
. 
 

I 
a

m
 c

o
n

fu
s
e

d
 a

s
 t

o
 w

h
ic

h
 b

a
g

 t
o

 p
u

t 
o

u
t 

e
a

c
h

 w
e
e
k

?

If
 y

o
u

 a
re

 u
n

s
u

re
 w

h
a

t 
w

a
s
te

 t
o

 p
u

t 
o
u

t 
a

n
d
 w

h
e

n
, 
p

le
a

s
e

 c
o
n

ta
c
t 

H
e
re

fo
rd

s
h

ir
e

 C
o
u

n
c
il 

o
r 

v
is

it
 w

w
w

.h
e

re
fo

rd
s
h

ir
e

.g
o

v
.u

k
. 

H
o

w
 w

il
l 

th
e

 w
h

e
e

le
d

 b
in

s
 b

e
 s

to
re

d
 i

n
 f

la
ts

?
 

E
a

c
h

 b
lo

c
k
 o

f 
fl
a

ts
 w

ill
 b

e
 v

is
it
e

d
 b

y
 a

 W
a
s
te

 M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

to
 s

e
e

 h
o

w
 t

h
e

 r
e

c
y
c
lin

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 c
a

n
 b

e
s
t 
b

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

. 
T

h
is

 m
a

y
 

b
e

 a
 r

e
c
y
c
lin

g
 b

in
 f

o
r 

e
a

c
h

 f
la

t,
 a

 c
o
m

m
u

n
a

l 
b
in

 o
r 

re
c
y
c
lin

g
 s

a
c
k
s
. 

 

82



A
n

n
e

x
 H

 C
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o
n
 

T
h
e
 J

o
in

t 
M

u
n

ic
ip

a
l 
W

a
s
te

 M
a
n
a

g
e

m
e
n
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 f

o
r 

H
e
re

fo
rd

s
h

ir
e
 a

n
d
  

 
P

a
g

e
 2

7
 o

f 
3
2

 
 

W
o
rc

e
s
te

rs
h
ir
e
 -

 
F

ir
s
t 
R

e
v
ie

w
 N

o
v
e

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0

9

W
il

l 
w

h
e

e
li

e
 b

in
 b

a
g

s
 b

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

?
 

T
h
e

s
e

 w
ill

 n
o

t 
b
e

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

d
 a

s
 i
t 

is
 o

n
ly

 m
ix

e
d

 d
ry

 r
e

c
y
c
la

b
le

s
 t

h
a

t 
s
h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 p
u

t 
in

 t
h
e

 w
h

e
e

le
d

 b
in

s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
y
 n

e
e
d

 t
o

 b
e

 k
e

p
t 
lo

o
s
e
 

fo
r 

s
o

rt
in

g
. 
T

h
e

s
e

 m
a

te
ri
a

ls
 s

h
o

u
ld

 n
o

t 
s
m

e
ll 

o
r 

le
a

v
e

 a
n

y
 r

e
s
id

u
e
. 

W
il

l 
th

e
re

 b
e
 d

if
fe

re
n

t 
s

iz
e
s

 o
f 

b
in

s
?

 H
o

w
 d

o
 y

o
u

 g
e

t 
d

if
fe

re
n

t 
s

iz
e

d
 b

in
s

?
 

A
 s

m
a

lle
r 

1
2
0

 l
it
re

 (
h

a
lf
 s

iz
e

) 
w

h
e

e
le

d
 b

in
 i
s
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 f

o
r 

p
e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 d

o
 n

o
t 
n

e
e

d
 o

r 
w

o
u

ld
 n

o
t 
b

e
 a

b
le

 t
o

 m
a
n

a
g
e

 t
h

e
 l
a

rg
e

r 
s
iz

e
..

  

W
h

a
t 

w
il
l 

h
a

p
p

e
n

 a
b

o
u

t 
th

e
 c

o
ll

e
c

ti
o

n
 o

f 
w

h
e

e
le

d
 b

in
s

 i
n

 t
e
rr

a
c
e

d
 h

o
u

s
e

s
 w

it
h

 n
o

 f
ro

n
ta

g
e

 o
r 

in
 h

o
u

s
e
s

 w
it

h
 s

te
p

s
?

 W
h

a
t 

a
b

o
u

t 
e

ld
e

rl
y
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 h

a
v
e

 t
ro

u
b

le
 m

o
v
in

g
 t

h
e

 w
h

e
e

le
d

 b
in

?
  

T
e

rr
a

c
e
d

 p
ro

p
e

rt
ie

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

s
s
e

s
s
e

d
 i
n

 a
 s

im
ila

r 
w

a
y
 t

o
 b

lo
c
k
s
 o

f 
fl
a

ts
. 

If
 a

 w
h

e
e

le
d

 b
in

 c
a
n
n

o
t 
b

e
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o

d
a
te

d
 t
h

e
n
 t

h
e

 p
ro

p
e

rt
y
 

w
ill

 b
e

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

 w
it
h

 r
e

c
y
c
lin

g
 s

a
c
k
s
. 
W

h
e

re
 a

 w
h

e
e

le
d

 b
in

 c
a

n
 b

e
 a

c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
te

d
 t
h

e
n
 a

 w
h

e
e

le
d

 b
in

 w
ill

 a
u

to
m

a
ti
c
a

lly
 b

e
 

d
e

liv
e

re
d

 t
o

 t
h

e
 p

ro
p
e

rt
y
 b

e
fo

re
 t
h

e
 s

c
h

e
m

e
 s

ta
rt

s
 i
n

 N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r.

 I
f 

a
n

y
o

n
e

 h
a

s
 t

ro
u
b

le
 m

o
v
in

g
 t

h
e

ir
 w

h
e

e
le

d
 b

in
 b

e
c
a

u
s
e

 t
h
e

y
 

s
tr

u
g
g
le

 t
o

 d
o

 s
o

 t
h
e

n
 t
h

e
y
 c

a
n

 a
p

p
ly

 f
o

r 
a

n
 a

s
s
is

te
d

 c
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
 o

r 
s
e
le

c
t 

th
e

 s
m

a
lle

r 
1

2
0

 l
it
re

 w
h

e
e

le
d

 b
in

. 

I 
d

o
 n

o
t 

k
n

o
w

 w
h

a
t 

is
 t

o
 g

o
 i

n
 t

h
e

 d
if

fe
re

n
t 

b
a

g
s

?
 

T
h
o

s
e

 p
ro

p
e

rt
ie

s
 t

h
a

t 
c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

 a
 b

a
g
 r

e
c
y
c
lin

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 a
re

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

 w
it
h

 b
o

th
 c

le
a

r 
a

n
d

 p
u

rp
le

 s
a

c
k
s
 f
o

r 
re

c
y
c
la

b
le

s
. 

In
 t
h

e
 

c
le

a
r 

b
a

g
 y

o
u

 c
a
n

 p
u

t 
p

la
s
ti
c
 b

o
tt

le
s
, 
ti
n

s
 a

n
d
 c

a
n

s
. 
In

 t
h

e
 p

u
rp

le
 s

a
c
k
 y

o
u

 c
a

n
 p

u
t 
p

a
p
e

r,
 a

n
d

 t
e

x
ti
le

s
. 

C
le

a
r 

b
a

g
s
 a

re
 c

o
lle

c
te

d
 o

n
e

 
w

e
e

k
 a

n
d

 p
u

rp
le

 b
a

g
s
 t
h

e
 n

e
x
t 

b
o

th
 a

t 
th

e
 s

a
m

e
 t
im

e
 a

s
 y

o
u

r 
b

la
c
k
 s

a
c
k
 c

o
lle

c
ti
o
n

. 
M

o
re

 i
n
fo

rm
a

ti
o
n

 a
b
o

u
t 
th

is
 s

c
h

e
m

e
 i
s
 p

ri
n

te
d

 
o

n
 t
h

e
 s

a
c
k
s
 a

n
d

 a
ls

o
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 f

ro
m

 H
e

re
fo

rd
s
h

ir
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

In
fo

 S
h
o

p
s
 o

r 
fr

o
m

 I
n
fo

 b
y
 P

h
o

n
e

 o
n

 0
1

4
3

2
 2

6
0

0
0
0

. 
 

T
h
e

 n
e

w
 w

h
e

e
le

d
 b

in
 r

e
c
y
c
lin

g
 s

c
h

e
m

e
 s

ta
rt

s
 o

n
 2

n
d
 N

o
v
e

m
b
e

r 
2

0
0
9

 a
n
d

 w
ill

 r
e

p
la

c
e

 t
h

e
 s

a
c
k
 r

e
c
y
c
lin

g
 s

c
h

e
m

e
. 
 

P
u

rp
le

 b
a

g
s

 a
re

 b
e

in
g

 p
u

t 
in

 t
h

e
 s

a
m

e
 l

o
rr

y
 a

s
 b

la
c

k
 b

a
g

s
 s

o
 w

h
a

t 
is

 t
h

e
 p

o
in

t 
o

f 
s

o
rt

in
g

 t
h

e
 w

a
s

te
?

 T
h

e
 b

in
 m

e
n

 s
a

y
 t

h
e

 
re

c
y
c

le
 l

o
rr

y
 i

s
 f

u
ll

 s
o

 t
h

e
y
 h

a
v
e

 t
o

 m
ix

 t
h

e
m

?
 

T
h

is
 p

ra
c
ti
s
e

 i
s
 n

o
t 
s
u

p
p

o
rt

e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 c
o

u
n

c
il.

 U
n

d
e

r 
th

e
 n

e
w

 r
e

c
y
c
lin

g
 s

c
h

e
m

e
 t

h
e

 c
o
n

tr
a

c
to

r 
w

ill
 b

e
 p

e
n

a
lis

e
d
 f

o
r 

m
ix

in
g
 

re
c
y
c
la

b
le

s
 w

it
h

 l
a

n
d

fi
ll 

w
a

s
te

. 
 

83



A
n

n
e

x
 H

 C
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o
n
 

T
h
e
 J

o
in

t 
M

u
n

ic
ip

a
l 
W

a
s
te

 M
a
n
a

g
e

m
e
n
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 f

o
r 

H
e
re

fo
rd

s
h

ir
e
 a

n
d
  

 
P

a
g

e
 2

8
 o

f 
3
2

 
 

W
o
rc

e
s
te

rs
h
ir
e
 -

 
F

ir
s
t 
R

e
v
ie

w
 N

o
v
e

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0

9

C
a

n
 w

e
 h

a
v
e

 m
o

re
 i

n
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 a

b
o

u
t 

th
e

 n
e
w

 w
h

e
e

li
e
 b

in
 s

c
h

e
m

e
?

 D
o

 w
e

 h
a

v
e

 t
o

 p
a

y
 f

o
r 

a
 w

h
e

e
li

e
 b

in
?

 W
h

a
t 

w
il
l 

I 
b

e
 

a
b

le
 t

o
 p

u
t 

in
 t

h
e

m
 f

o
r 

re
c

y
c

li
n

g
?

 

In
fo

rm
a

ti
o
n

 o
n

 t
h

e
 n

e
w

 w
h

e
e

le
d

 b
in

 r
e

c
y
c
lin

g
 s

c
h

e
m

e
 i
s
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 f

ro
m

 o
n

 t
h
e

 H
e

re
fo

rd
s
h

ir
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

W
e
b

s
it
e

, 
a
t 

In
fo

 S
h
o

p
s
 o

r 
fr

o
m

 
In

fo
 b

y
 P

h
o

n
e

 o
n

 0
1

4
3
2

 2
6
0

0
5
1

. 

T
h
e

re
 w

ill
 b

e
 n

o
 c

h
a

rg
e

 f
o

r 
th

e
 n

e
w

 s
e

rv
ic

e
. 

W
h
e
e
le

d
 b

in
s
 w

ill
 a

u
to

m
a

ti
c
a

lly
 b

e
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 t
o

 y
o

u
r 

p
ro

p
e

rt
y
 b

e
fo

re
 t
h

e
 s

ta
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 
s
c
h

e
m

e
 i
n

 N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r.

 

C
a

n
 h

o
u

s
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
 b

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 w
it

h
 a

 r
o

ll
 o

f 
b

la
c

k
 b

a
g

s
 r

a
th

e
r 

th
a

n
 s

in
g

le
 b

a
g

s
 t

h
ro

w
n

 i
n

to
 g

a
rd

e
n

s
 a

s
 h

a
p

p
e

n
s

 a
t 

p
re

s
e

n
t?

 T
h

e
s
e

 b
lo

w
 a

w
a

y
 a

n
d

 c
a

u
s

e
 l

it
te

r.
 

H
e

re
fo

rd
s
h

ir
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

la
u

n
c
h

e
s
 a

 n
e

w
 r

e
fu

s
e

 a
n

d
 r

e
c
y
c
lin

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 o
n

 t
h
e

 2
n
d
 N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0
0

9
. 

F
o

r 
th

is
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 h
o
u

s
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
 w

ill
 

b
e

 p
ro

v
id

e
d
 w

it
h

 a
 r

o
ll 

o
f 

b
a

g
s
 t

o
 l
a

s
t 
6

 m
o
n

th
s
 r

a
th

e
r 

th
a
n

 a
 s

in
g
le

 b
a

g
 e

a
c
h

 w
e

e
k
. 
 

W
il

l 
th

e
 p

a
ri

s
h

 f
re

ig
h

te
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e

 b
e

 c
o

n
ti

n
u

e
d

?
 

T
h
e

 p
a

ri
s
h

 f
re

ig
h

te
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e

 w
ill

 c
o

n
ti
n

u
e
 u

n
ti
l 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

0
. 

H
o

w
e

v
e

r 
it
 w

ill
 b

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
 a

t 
th

is
 p

o
in

t 
to

 t
h
e

 h
ig

h
 c

o
s
t 
o
f 

p
ro

v
id

in
g
 t

h
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
. 

Q
U

E
S

T
IO

N
S

 R
E

L
A

T
IN

G
 T

O
 R

E
D

D
IT

C
H

 B
O

R
O

U
G

H
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
 R

E
F

U
S

E
 C

O
L

L
E

C
T

IO
N

 

C
a

n
 t

h
e

re
 b

e
 m

o
re

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 a
b

o
u

t 
th

e
 a

s
s

is
ta

n
c

e
 a

v
a

il
a

b
le

 f
o

r 
o

ld
e

r/
d

is
a

b
le

d
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
it

h
 c

o
ll
e

c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

b
in

s
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
ir

 
p

ro
p

e
rt

ie
s

?
 

It
 i
s
 v

e
ry

 i
m

p
o

rt
a

n
t 

th
a

t 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

m
a

k
e

s
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ts
 a

w
a

re
 o

f 
a
n

d
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 w

a
s
te

 c
o

lle
c
ti
o
n

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 t
o

 m
e

e
t 
th

e
 n

e
e

d
s
 

o
f 

a
ll 

re
s
id

e
n

ts
. 
R

e
s
id

e
n

ts
 w

h
o

 c
o

n
ta

c
t 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

b
y
 t

e
le

p
h

o
n
e

 a
re

 g
iv

e
n

 a
d

v
ic

e
 b

y
 t

ra
in

e
d
 s

ta
ff

 a
b
o

u
t 
th

e
 o

p
ti
o

n
s
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 t

o
 

th
e
m

 s
h
o

u
ld

 t
h

e
y
 f

e
e

l 
th

a
t 

th
e

y
 a

re
 u

n
a
b

le
 t
o

 u
s
e

 t
h

e
 s

ta
n
d

a
rd

 k
e

rb
s
id

e
 w

h
e

e
le

d
 b

in
 s

e
rv

ic
e

. 
T

h
e

re
 i
s
 s

o
m

e
 i
n
fo

rm
a

ti
o
n

 o
n

 t
h

e
 

C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 w

e
b

s
it
e

 o
n
 t

h
e

 a
s
s
is

te
d

 w
a

s
te

 c
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 a
n
d

 t
h
e

 s
e
rv

ic
e

 s
ta

n
d
a

rd
s
 a

re
 a

ls
o

 a
v
a

ila
b

le
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 w

e
b

s
it
e

. 
H

o
w

e
v
e

r,
 w

e
 a

c
k
n

o
w

le
d

g
e

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

re
 m

a
y
 b

e
 o

p
p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 t
h
e

 w
a

y
 i
n

 w
h

ic
h

 w
e

 c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

te
 t
h

is
 k

in
d

 o
f 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o

n
 

a
n

d
 w

e
 w

ill
 t

a
k
e

 o
n

 b
o
a

rd
 t

h
is

 i
m

p
o

rt
a

n
t 
s
u

g
g
e

s
ti
o

n
. 
F

o
r 

m
o

re
 i
n
fo

rm
a

ti
o
n

 v
is

it
 w

w
w

.r
e
d
d
it
c
h
b
c
.g

o
v
.u

k
 o

r 
te

le
p
h

o
n
e

: 
0
1

5
2
7

 5
3

4
1
2

3
. 

84



A
n

n
e

x
 H

 C
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o
n
 

T
h
e
 J

o
in

t 
M

u
n

ic
ip

a
l 
W

a
s
te

 M
a
n
a

g
e

m
e
n
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 f

o
r 

H
e
re

fo
rd

s
h

ir
e
 a

n
d
  

 
P

a
g

e
 2

9
 o

f 
3
2

 
 

W
o
rc

e
s
te

rs
h
ir
e
 -

 
F

ir
s
t 
R

e
v
ie

w
 N

o
v
e

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0

9

P
le

a
s

e
 c

a
n

 t
h

e
 p

o
li
c

y
 o

f 
ta

g
g

in
g

 b
e

 e
x

p
la

in
e

d
?

  

In
fo

rm
a

ti
o
n

 t
a

g
s
 a

re
 p

la
c
e

d
 o

n
 b

in
s
 w

h
e

re
 t
h
e

re
 i
s
 a

 p
ro

b
le

m
 w

h
ic

h
 m

e
a

n
s
 w

e
 a

re
 u

n
a
b

le
 t
o

 c
o

lle
c
t 
o

r 
fu

lly
 e

m
p

ty
 t

h
e

 b
in

. 
F

o
r 

e
x
a

m
p

le
, 
o

n
 g

re
e
n

 b
in

s
, 

a
 t
a

g
 m

a
y
 b

e
 u

s
e
d

 i
f 

th
e

 b
in

 i
s
 ‘
c
o
n

ta
m

in
a

te
d

’ 
w

it
h

 w
a

s
te

 w
h

ic
h

 w
e

 c
a

n
n
o

t 
re

c
y
c
le

, 
fo

r 
e

x
a

m
p

le
 g

e
n

e
ra

l 
ru

b
b

is
h

, 
w

h
ic

h
 c

o
u

ld
 p

re
v
e

n
t 

th
e

 e
n

ti
re

 l
o

a
d

 o
f 
re

c
y
c
lin

g
 f

ro
m

 b
e

in
g
 r

e
c
y
c
le

d
. 

T
a

g
s
 c

a
n

 a
ls

o
 b

e
 u

s
e

d
 o

n
 b

in
s
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 t

o
o

 h
e

a
v
y
 t

o
 

b
e

 e
m

p
ti
e

d
 s

a
fe

ly
 o

r 
w

h
e

re
 t
h

e
re

 i
s
 e

x
tr

a
 w

a
s
te

 p
u

t 
o
u

t 
b

y
 t

h
e

 s
id

e
 o

f 
a

 g
re

y
 b

in
. 
T

h
e
 t

a
g
 i
s
 o

u
r 

w
a

y
 o

f 
le

tt
in

g
 p

e
o
p
le

 k
n

o
w

 t
h

a
t 
w

e
 

w
e

re
 u

n
a

b
le

 t
o

 e
m

p
ty

 t
h

e
 b

in
 a

n
d

 t
e

ll 
th

e
m

 w
h

a
t 

th
e

y
 n

e
e

d
 t
o

 d
o

 t
o
 r

e
s
o

lv
e

 t
h

e
 p

ro
b

le
m

. 

T
h

e
 c

o
u

n
c

il
 c

o
u

ld
 e

n
c

o
u

ra
g

e
 p

e
o

p
le

 t
o

 r
e
c

y
c

le
 b

y
 p

ro
v
id

in
g

 s
m

a
ll

 s
to

ra
g

e
 b

o
x
e

s
 w

it
h

 l
id

s
 t

o
 u

s
e
 i

n
 t

h
e

 h
o

m
e

 b
e

fo
re

 
ta

k
in

g
 i

t 
o

u
t 

to
 t

h
e

 w
h

e
e

li
e
 b

in
?

 

W
h
e
n
 w

e
 i
n

tr
o

d
u

c
e

d
 g

re
e

n
 w

h
e

e
lie

 b
in

s
 f

o
r 

re
c
y
c
lin

g
, 

w
e

 g
a

v
e

 a
ll 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

 t
h
e

 o
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
k
e

e
p

in
g
 t

h
e

ir
 e

x
is

ti
n

g
 r

e
c
y
c
lin

g
 b

o
x
e

s
 t

o
 

u
s
e

 f
o

r 
th

is
 p

u
rp

o
s
e

, 
o

r 
to

 h
a

v
e

 t
h

e
m

 c
o

lle
c
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

fo
r 

re
c
y
c
lin

g
. 

T
h

e
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
e

 v
a

ri
e

d
 f

ro
m

 h
o

m
e

 t
o

 h
o

m
e
, 

s
o

 w
h

ile
 

re
s
id

e
n

ts
 m

a
y
 c

h
o
o

s
e

 t
o

 u
s
e

 s
to

ra
g
e

 c
o

n
ta

in
e

rs
 i
n

s
id

e
 t
h

e
ir
 h

o
m

e
, 
o

th
e

rs
 w

o
u

ld
 p

re
fe

r 
to

 m
a

k
e
 t

h
e

ir
 o

w
n

 a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e
n

ts
. 
T

h
e

re
 a

re
 

lo
ts

 o
f 

p
ro

d
u

c
ts

 o
n

 t
h

e
 m

a
rk

e
t 
w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 s

u
it
a
b

le
 o

r 
m

a
n

u
fa

c
tu

re
d

 s
o
le

ly
 f

o
r 

th
is

 p
u

rp
o

s
e

. 
T

h
e

re
 w

o
u

ld
 b

e
 a

 c
o

s
t 

if
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

w
e

re
 

to
 p

ro
v
id

e
 s

to
ra

g
e

 b
o

x
e

s
, 

a
n

d
 t
o

 f
u

n
d
 t

h
is

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

w
o

u
ld

 n
e

e
d
 t

o
 p

a
s
s
 o

n
 a

 c
h
a

rg
e

 t
o

 t
h
e

 h
o
u

s
e

h
o

ld
e

r 
–

 t
h

e
re

fo
re

 i
t 

is
 m

o
re

 
a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 t
h

a
t 
re

s
id

e
n

ts
 c

a
n

 c
h
o

o
s
e
 a

 c
o
n

ta
in

e
r 

to
 s

u
it
 t
h

e
ir
 n

e
e

d
s
 a

n
d
 p

u
rc

h
a

s
e

 i
t 
th

e
m

s
e

lv
e

s
 f

ro
m

 a
 D

IY
 s

to
re

 e
tc

. 

W
h

o
 c

o
ll
e

c
ts

 l
a

rg
e
 i

te
m

s
 /

 a
m

o
u

n
ts

 o
f 

w
a
s

te
, 

th
e

 c
o

u
n

c
il

 o
r 

a
 p

ri
v
a

te
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
to

r?
 

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

p
ro

v
id

e
s
 a

 c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 f

o
r 

b
u
lk

y
 h

o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

 i
te

m
s
, 

w
h
ic

h
 a

re
 i
te

m
s
 y

o
u
 w

o
u
ld

 g
e
n
e
ra

lly
 t

a
k
e
 w

it
h
 y

o
u
 i
f 

y
o
u
 m

o
v
e
d
 h

o
u
s
e
. 

T
h
e
 c

o
s
t 
is

 £
1
5
 f

o
r 

u
p
 t
o
 t
h
re

e
 l
a
rg

e
 i
te

m
s
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 a

 t
h
re

e
 p

ie
c
e
 s

u
it
e
, 
o
r 

u
n
w

a
n
te

d
 h

o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

 f
u
rn

it
u
re

/l
a
rg

e
 h

o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

 a
p
p
lia

n
c
e
s
, 

w
it
h
 a

n
 

a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
c
h
a
rg

e
 o

f 
£
4
 p

e
r 

it
e
m

 u
p
 t

o
 a

 m
a
x
im

u
m

 o
f 

6
 i
te

m
s
. 
 

E
x
a

m
p

le
s
 o

f 
w

h
a

t 
w

e
 c

a
n

 t
a

k
e

: 

C
o

o
k
e

rs
, 

C
a

rp
e

ts
, 

D
is

h
w

a
s
h

e
rs

, 
H

o
o

v
e

rs
, 

M
a

tt
re

s
s
e

s
, 
T

a
b

le
s
, 

S
e

tt
e

e
s
, 
T

e
le

v
is

io
n

s
, 
W

a
rd

ro
b

e
s
 (

fr
e

e
 s

ta
n

d
in

g
),

 W
a
s
h

in
g
 

M
a

c
h

in
e

s
, 
B

e
d
 b

a
s
e

s
, 
B

ic
y
c
le

s
, 

F
ri
d

g
e

s
 a

n
d

 F
re

e
z
e

rs
. 

E
x
a

m
p

le
s
 o

f 
w

h
a

t 
w

e
 c

a
n

 n
o

t 
ta

k
e

: 

85



A
n

n
e

x
 H

 C
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o
n
 

T
h
e
 J

o
in

t 
M

u
n

ic
ip

a
l 
W

a
s
te

 M
a
n
a

g
e

m
e
n
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 f

o
r 

H
e
re

fo
rd

s
h

ir
e
 a

n
d
  

 
P

a
g

e
 3

0
 o

f 
3
2

 
 

W
o
rc

e
s
te

rs
h
ir
e
 -

 
F

ir
s
t 
R

e
v
ie

w
 N

o
v
e

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0

9

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 a

n
d

 C
o
m

m
e

rc
ia

l 
W

a
s
te

, 
B

u
ild

e
r'
s
 W

a
s
te

, 
F

it
te

d
 K

it
c
h
e

n
 U

n
it
s
, 

D
IY

 W
a
s
te

, 
R

o
o
fi
n
g
 M

a
te

ri
a

ls
, 

S
in

k
 U

n
it
s
, 
S

h
e
d

s
, 
W

.C
.s

, 
G

a
s
 B

o
tt

le
s
. 

A
lt

e
rn

a
ti

v
e

ly
, 

if
 i
te

m
s
 a

re
 r

e
-u

s
a
b

le
 w

e
 a

s
k
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 t
o
 c

o
n

s
id

e
r 

u
s
in

g
 a

 r
e

-u
s
e

 c
h
a

ri
ty

 s
u

c
h

 a
s
 B

o
o
m

e
ra

n
g
 i
n

 t
h
e

 T
o

w
n

 C
e

n
tr

e
 o

r 
N

e
w

s
ta

rt
 i
n

 B
ro

m
s
g
ro

v
e

 –
 c

o
n

ta
c
t 

B
o

o
m

e
ra

n
g
 o

n
 0

1
5

2
7
 6

8
2

5
0

 o
r 

N
e

w
s
ta

rt
 o

n
 0

1
5

2
7

 8
8

2
4
1

0
 a

n
d

 m
o

re
 i
n
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 c

a
n

 b
e

 f
o

u
n
d

 
o

n
 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 w

e
b

s
it
e

 a
t 

w
w

w
.r

e
d
d
it
c
h
b
c
.g

o
v
.u

k
/w

a
s
te

O
th

e
r 

w
a

y
s

 o
f 

d
is

p
o

s
in

g
 o

f 
la

rg
e

 i
te

m
s

 o
f 

w
a
s

te
 o

r 
w

a
s

te
 w

h
ic

h
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il

 d
o

e
s

 n
o

t 
c
o

lle
c
t 

a
re

 o
u
tl
in

e
d
 b

e
lo

w
: 

•
T

a
k

e
 i

te
m

s
 o

f 
y
o

u
r 

h
o

u
s

e
h

o
ld

 w
a
s

te
 t

o
 a

 H
o

u
s

e
h

o
ld

 W
a

s
te

 S
it

e
 

T
h
e

 n
e

a
re

s
t 
s
it
e

 i
s
 a

t:
 C

ro
s
s
g
a

te
 R

o
a

d
, 

P
a

rk
 F

a
rm

 I
n
d

. 
E

s
ta

te
, 

R
e
d
d

it
c
h

 B
9

8
 7

S
N

. 
T

e
l:
 (

0
1

5
2
7

) 
5

2
6

3
9
2

. 
O

p
e

n
 M

o
n

d
a

y
-

S
u

n
d
a

y
 8

:0
0
a

m
-6

.0
0

p
m

 

•
B

u
y
 O

ra
n

g
e

 S
a

c
k

s
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c

il
 

R
e

s
id

e
n

ts
 c

a
n

 p
u

rc
h
a

s
e

 p
re

-p
a

id
 o

ra
n

g
e

 s
a

c
k
s
 a

t 
£
1

.2
0

 e
a

c
h

 a
n

d
 t

h
is

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

s
 t

h
e
 c

o
s
t 
o
f 

c
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
. 
T

h
e

 s
a

c
k
s
 c

a
n

 b
e
 

u
s
e

d
 f
o

r 
th

e
 c

o
lle

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
n
o

rm
a

l 
h

o
u

s
e

h
o

ld
 a

n
d

 l
ig

h
t 

g
a

rd
e

n
 w

a
s
te

. 
W

e
 w

ill
 a

c
c
e
p

t 
u
p

 t
o

 t
w

o
 o

ra
n

g
e

 s
a

c
k
s
 p

e
r 

g
re

y
 b

in
 

c
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
. 

Y
o

u
 c

a
n

 p
u

rc
h

a
s
e

 s
a

c
k
s
 f

ro
m

 a
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

o
u

tl
e

ts
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
e

 T
o

w
n

 H
a

ll 
O

n
e

 S
to

p
 S

h
o

p
, 

B
a

tc
h

le
y
 O

n
e

 S
to

p
 S

h
o
p

, 
W

in
y
a

te
s
 O

n
e

 S
to

p
 S

h
o

p
, 
W

o
o
d

ro
w

 O
n

e
 S

to
p

 S
h
o

p
, 
A

rr
o

w
 V

a
le

 S
p
o

rt
s
 C

e
n

tr
e
, 

A
b
b

e
y
 S

ta
d

iu
m

, 
H

e
w

e
ll 

R
o

a
d

 S
w

im
m

in
g
 P

o
o

l,
 

K
in

g
s
le

y
 S

p
o

rt
s
 C

e
n

tr
e
, 

A
rr

o
w

 V
a

lle
y
 C

o
u

n
tr

y
s
id

e
 C

e
n
tr

e
, 

a
n

d
 F

o
rg

e
 M

ill
 M

u
s
e

u
m

  

•
U

s
e

 a
 S

p
e

c
ia

li
s

t 
C

o
m

p
a

n
y
 o

r 
h

ir
e

 a
 s

k
ip

 
Y

o
u

 m
a

y
 d

e
c
id

e
 t
o

 u
s
e
 a

 s
p
e

c
ia

lis
t 

w
a

s
te

 c
o
m

p
a
n

y
 t

o
 c

o
lle

c
t 
y
o

u
r 

w
a

s
te

 i
te

m
s
. 
If

 y
o

u
 h

ir
e
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
to

rs
 s

u
c
h

 a
s
 b

u
ild

e
rs

 o
r 

s
c
ra

p
 m

e
ta

l 
m

e
rc

h
a

n
ts

 w
h

o
 a

re
 t

a
k
in

g
 w

a
s
te

 a
w

a
y
 f

ro
m

 y
o

u
r 

p
ro

p
e

rt
y
, 

y
o

u
 n

e
e

d
 t
o

 m
a

k
e

 s
u

re
 t

h
e

y
 a

re
 a

 l
ic

e
n

s
e

d
 w

a
s
te

 
c
a

rr
ie

r.
 T

h
e

 E
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

t 
A

g
e

n
c
y
 k

e
e
p

s
 r

e
c
o

rd
s
 o

f 
a

ll 
lic

e
n

s
e
d

 w
a

s
te

 c
a

rr
ie

rs
 a

n
d

 y
o

u
 c

a
n

 c
h

e
c
k
 i
f 

a
 c

o
m

p
a

n
y
 i
s
 l
ic

e
n

s
e

d
 o

n
 

th
e

 E
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

t 
A

g
e

n
c
y
 w

e
b

s
it
e

 o
r 

a
lt
e

rn
a

ti
v
e

ly
 t

h
e

 g
e

n
e

ra
l 
h

e
lp

lin
e

 n
u
m

b
e

r 
is

 0
8
7

0
8

 5
0

6
 5

0
6

* 
(M

o
n

-F
ri
, 

8
a
m

 -
 6

p
m

).
 

T
h
e

re
 a

re
 a

ls
o

 a
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

s
k
ip

 h
ir
e

/w
a

s
te

 d
is

p
o

s
a

l 
c
o

m
p

a
n

ie
s
 w

h
o

 a
d

v
e

rt
is

e
 i
n

 l
o

c
a

l 
p

a
p

e
rs

 a
n

d
 i
n
 t

h
e

 y
e

llo
w

 p
a

g
e

s
. 

Is
 R

e
d

d
it

c
h

 i
n

te
n

d
in

g
 t

o
 i

m
p

le
m

e
n

t 
a
 s

c
h

e
m

e
 t

o
 c

o
ll
e

c
t 

g
a

rd
e

n
 w

a
s

te
 f

o
r 

a
n

 a
n

n
u

a
l 
c
h

a
rg

e
?

 I
f 

s
o

, 
w

h
a

t 
w

o
u

ld
 t

h
e

 m
o

n
e

y
 

b
e

 u
s

e
d

 f
o

r?
 

86



A
n

n
e

x
 H

 C
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o
n
 

T
h
e
 J

o
in

t 
M

u
n

ic
ip

a
l 
W

a
s
te

 M
a
n
a

g
e

m
e
n
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 f

o
r 

H
e
re

fo
rd

s
h

ir
e
 a

n
d
  

 
P

a
g

e
 3

1
 o

f 
3
2

 
 

W
o
rc

e
s
te

rs
h
ir
e
 -

 
F

ir
s
t 
R

e
v
ie

w
 N

o
v
e

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0

9

R
e

d
d

it
c
h
 i
s
 l
o

o
k
in

g
 a

t 
w

h
e

th
e

r 
to

 i
n
tr

o
d

u
c
e

 a
 c

h
a

rg
e

a
b

le
 g

a
rd

e
n

 w
a

s
te

 c
o

lle
c
ti
o
n

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 s

im
ila

r 
to

 t
h

e
 o

n
e

 o
p

e
ra

ti
n

g
 i
n

 
B

ro
m

s
g
ro

v
e

 a
n

d
 W

y
c
h
a

v
o

n
. 

A
 d

e
c
is

io
n

 w
ill

 b
e

 m
a

d
e
 l
a

te
r 

th
is

 y
e

a
r 

w
h

e
th

e
r 

to
 s

ta
rt

 a
 c

o
lle

c
ti
o

n
 f

ro
m

 A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1
0

 a
n

d
 t
h

e
 c

h
a

rg
e

 
w

o
u

ld
 b

e
 u

s
e

d
 t
o

 o
ff

s
e
t 

th
e
 c

o
s
t 
o
f 

p
ro

v
id

in
g
 t

h
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
. 

W
h

a
t 

a
re

 t
h

e
 r

e
g

u
la

ti
o

n
s

 r
e

g
a

rd
in

g
 b

o
n

fi
re

s
?

 A
re

 t
h

e
y
 b

a
n

n
e

d
 a

t 
a

ll
 t

im
e

s
 o

f 
th

e
 d

a
y
?

 D
o

 y
o

u
 n

e
e

d
 a

 m
e

ta
l 

b
in

 t
o

 h
a

v
e

 a
 

b
o

n
fi

re
 i

n
?

 

T
h
e

re
 a

re
 n

o
 l
o

c
a

l 
b

y
e

-l
a

w
 o

r 
a

ir
 c

o
n

tr
o

l 
a

re
a
s
 i
n

 R
e

d
d

it
c
h

 t
o

 p
re

v
e

n
t 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

 f
ro

m
 h

a
v
in

g
 b

o
n
fi
re

s
. 

H
o

w
e

v
e

r,
 w

e
 a

re
 a

w
a

re
 t

h
a

t 
in

 
s
o

m
e
 c

a
s
e

s
 b

o
n
fi
re

s
 c

a
n

 c
a
u

s
e

 a
ir
 p

o
llu

ti
o
n

, 
a

n
n
o

y
a

n
c
e

 a
n

d
 c

a
n

 g
iv

e
 r

is
e

 t
o

 h
e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 s

a
fe

ty
 c

o
n

c
e

rn
s
. 
W

e
 a

re
 n

o
t 

a
w

a
re

 o
f 

a
n

y
 

re
q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
t 
re

g
a

rd
in

g
 t

h
e

 t
y
p

e
 o

f 
c
o

n
ta

in
e

r 
th

a
t 
m

u
s
t 
b

e
 u

s
e

d
 f

o
r 

a
 b

o
n
fi
re

. 
T

h
e

re
 i
s
 l
e

g
is

la
ti
o

n
 w

h
ic

h
 c

a
n

 b
e

 u
s
e

d
 t
o

 t
a

c
k
le

 o
n

 
g
o

in
g
 p

ro
b

le
m

s
 o

f 
n

u
is

a
n

c
e

 f
ro

m
 b

o
n
fi
re

s
 a

n
d
 m

y
 c

o
lle

a
g
u

e
s
 i
n
 e

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

ta
l 
h
e

a
lt
h
 c

a
n
 p

ro
v
id

e
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
a

d
v
ic

e
 a

n
d

 g
u

id
a

n
c
e

 o
n

 
in

d
iv

id
u

a
l 
c
a

s
e

s
 o

f 
b
o

n
fi
re

s
. 

L
o

t 
o

f 
p

e
o

p
le

 d
o

 n
o

t 
e

n
g

a
g

e
 i

n
 r

e
c

y
c

li
n

g
 o

r 
le

a
v
e

 a
 m

e
s

s
. 

T
h

e
 c

o
u

n
c

il
 n

e
e

d
s

 t
o

 e
n

c
o

u
ra

g
e

 b
e

tt
e

r 
re

c
y
c

li
n

g
 

It
 i
s
 v

e
ry

 i
m

p
o

rt
a

n
t 

th
a

t 
w

e
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e
 t

o
 p

u
b

lic
is

e
 t

h
e

 b
e

n
e
fi
ts

 o
f 

re
c
y
c
lin

g
 a

n
d

 t
ry

 t
o

 g
e

t 
p
e

o
p

le
 i
n

v
o

lv
e

d
 a

n
d

 s
e

e
 i
t 
a

s
 a

 p
o

s
it
iv

e
 t

h
in

g
 

to
 d

o
. 

L
a

te
r 

th
is

 y
e

a
r 

w
e

 a
re

 h
o

p
in

g
 t

o
 r

u
n
 a

 p
u

b
lic

it
y
 c

a
m

p
a

ig
n

 t
o

 p
ro

m
o
te

 r
e

c
y
c
lin

g
. 

T
h

is
 w

ill
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 d
e
ta

ils
 o

n
 t
h

e
 n

e
w

 i
te

m
s
 

w
h

ic
h

 c
a

n
 b

e
 r

e
c
y
c
le

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 g

re
e

n
 b

in
s
. 
W

e
 a

ls
o

 h
a

v
e

 a
 W

a
s
te

 A
w

a
re

n
e

s
s
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

w
h

o
 c

a
n

 v
is

it
 s

p
e

c
if
ic

 a
re

a
s
 i
f 
n

e
e
d

e
d

 t
o

 
e

n
c
o
u

ra
g
e

 m
o

re
 p

e
o

p
le

 t
o

 p
a

rt
ic

ip
a
te

 i
n
 r

e
c
y
c
lin

g
 t

h
e

ir
 w

a
s
te

. 
 

Q
U

E
S

T
IO

N
S

 C
O

M
M

O
N

 T
O

 B
R

O
M

S
G

R
O

V
E

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

 C
O

U
N

C
IL

 

T
h

e
re

 i
s
 n

o
 d

o
o

rs
te

p
 r

e
c

y
c

li
n

g
 c

o
ll

e
c

ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

o
n

e
 f

o
c

u
s

 g
ro

u
p

 m
e

m
b

e
r 

a
t 

m
y
 h

o
u

s
e

 d
u

e
 t

o
 t

h
e

 h
il

l.
 H

o
w

e
v
e

r 
th

e
 w

a
s

te
 

lo
rr

y
 d

o
e

s
 g

o
 p

a
s

t 
m

y
 h

o
u

s
e

 s
o

 w
h

y
 d

o
 I

 n
o

t 
re

c
e

iv
e

 a
 c

o
ll
e

c
ti

o
n

?
 

W
e
 c

a
n

n
o

t 
c
o

lle
c
t 

re
c
y
c
lin

g
 f

ro
m

 a
 s

m
a

ll 
p

ro
p
o

rt
io

n
 o

f 
o
u

r 
re

s
id

e
n

ts
 d

u
e

 t
o

 r
e

s
tr

ic
ti
o
n

s
 w

it
h

 o
u

r 
c
o

lle
c
ti
o
n

 v
e

h
ic

le
s
. 
In

 b
ro

a
d

 t
e

rm
s
 

th
e

 r
e

c
y
c
lin

g
 v

e
h

ic
le

s
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

 m
o

re
 r

o
o
m

 t
o

 a
c
c
e

s
s
 t

h
a

n
 t
h

e
 r

e
fu

s
e
 v

e
h

ic
le

s
 d

u
e

 t
o

 t
h

e
 d

if
fe

re
n

t 
c
o

m
p

a
rt

m
e

n
ts

 r
e
q
u

ir
e

d
 t

o
 s

e
p

a
ra

te
 

th
e

 m
a

te
ri
a

ls
 f

o
r 

re
c
y
c
lin

g
. 

T
h

is
 p

ro
b

le
m

 w
ill

 b
e

 o
v
e

rc
o

m
e
 i
n

 t
h

e
 f
u

tu
re

 w
h

e
n

 B
ro

m
s
g
ro

v
e

 D
C

 m
o

v
e

s
 t

o
 c

o
lle

c
ti
n

g
 r

e
c
y
c
lin

g
 i
n

 t
h

e
 

s
a

m
e
 m

e
th

o
d

 a
s
 w

e
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 c

o
lle

c
t 

re
fu

s
e

. 

87



A
n

n
e

x
 H

 C
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o
n
 

T
h
e
 J

o
in

t 
M

u
n

ic
ip

a
l 
W

a
s
te

 M
a
n
a

g
e

m
e
n
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 f

o
r 

H
e
re

fo
rd

s
h

ir
e
 a

n
d
  

 
P

a
g

e
 3

2
 o

f 
3
2

 
 

W
o
rc

e
s
te

rs
h
ir
e
 -

 
F

ir
s
t 
R

e
v
ie

w
 N

o
v
e

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0

9

Is
 t

h
e

re
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 f

o
r 

p
e

o
p

le
 w

h
o

 m
a

y
 s

tr
u

g
g

le
 i

n
 m

o
v
in

g
 b

o
x

e
s

 t
o

 t
h

e
 k

e
rb

s
id

e
 i

n
 p

la
c
e

s
 w

h
e
re

 v
e

h
ic

le
 a

c
c
e

s
s

 i
s

 n
o

t 
p

o
s

s
ib

le
?

 

B
ro

m
s
g
ro

v
e

 D
C

 o
ff

e
r 

a
n

 a
s
s
is

te
d

 c
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
 f
o
r 

th
o

s
e

 r
e

s
id

e
n
ts

 t
h
a

t 
c
a

n
n
o

t 
p
h

y
s
ic

a
lly

 m
o

v
e

 i
te

m
s
 t
o

 t
h

e
 k

e
rb

s
id

e
 f
o

r 
c
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
, 

b
o

x
e

s
 /

 b
in

s
 h

o
w

e
v
e

r 
m

u
s
t 
b

e
 e

a
s
ily

 a
c
c
e

s
s
ib

le
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 f

ro
n

t 
o
f 

th
e

 p
ro

p
e

rt
y
 a

n
d

 w
e

 w
ill

 n
o

t 
a

c
c
e

s
s
 g

a
rd

e
n

s
 g

a
ra

g
e

s
 e

tc
. 

V
is

it
 

w
w

w
.b

ro
m

s
g
ro

v
e

.g
o

v
.u

k
 f

o
r 

m
o

re
 i
n
fo

rm
a

ti
o
n

. 
 

W
h

y
 i

s
 t

h
e

re
 n

o
 b

e
v
e

ra
g

e
 c

a
rt

o
n

/w
a
x

 c
a
rt

o
n

 r
e

c
y
c

li
n

g
?

 S
c

h
o

o
l 
m

il
k

 c
o

m
e

s
 i

n
 t

h
e

s
e

 t
h

e
re

fo
re

 h
u

n
d

re
d

s
 o

f 
e

m
p

ty
 c

a
rt

o
n

s
 

g
o

 t
o

 l
a

n
d

fi
ll

 e
v
e

ry
 d

a
y
 j

u
s

t 
fr

o
m

 s
c

h
o

o
ls

. 

B
e

v
e

ra
g
e

 c
a

rt
o

n
 r

e
c
y
c
lin

g
 b

a
n

k
s
 a

re
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 a

t 
s
o
m

e
 b

ri
n

g
 s

it
e

s
, 
fo

r 
e

x
a

m
p

le
 i
n

 s
u

p
e

rm
a

rk
e

t 
c
a

r 
p
a

rk
s
 

h
tt

p
:/
/b

ro
m

s
g

ro
v
e
.w

h
u
b
.o

rg
.u

k
/h

o
m

e
/b

d
c
_
te

tr
a
_
p
a
k
.p

d
f.
 T

h
e
 p

o
s
s
ib

ili
ty

 o
f 

c
o

lle
c
ti
n

g
 t

h
e

s
e

 i
n
 y

o
u

r 
k
e

rb
s
id

e
 c

o
lle

c
ti
o
n

 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 

in
v
e

s
ti
g
a

te
d

 f
o

r 
w

h
e

n
 t
h

e
 n

e
w

 E
n

v
ir
o

s
o

rt
 F

a
c
ili

ty
 o

p
e

n
s
. 
 

C
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
s
 f

ro
m

 s
c
h

o
o
ls

 a
re

 a
rr

a
n

g
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
 t
h

e
m

s
e

lv
e

s
 s

o
 i
t 

d
e
p

e
n
d

s
 o

n
 w

h
a

t 
th

e
 c

o
lle

c
ti
o
n

 c
o
n

tr
a

c
to

r 
a

re
 a

b
le

 t
o
 o

ff
e

r 
th

e
 s

c
h

o
o

l.
 W

h
e

re
 t
h

e
 c

o
u

n
c
il 

m
a

k
e
 t

h
e

 r
e

c
y
c
lin

g
 c

o
lle

c
ti
o

n
 w

e
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

b
le

 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 t

o
 r

e
c
y
c
le

 s
o

m
e

 c
a

rt
o

n
s
 w

h
e

n
 t
h

e
 

E
n

v
ir
o

S
o

rt
 f

a
c
ili

ty
 o

p
e

n
s
. 

Q
U

E
S

T
IO

N
S

 C
O

M
M

O
N

 T
O

 M
A

L
V

E
R

N
 H

IL
L

S
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
 

A
re

 t
h

e
 p

la
s

ti
c

 b
a

g
s

 s
u

p
p

li
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 c
o

u
n

c
il

 b
io

d
e

g
ra

d
a

b
le

?
 

N
o

 t
h

e
y
 a

re
 n

o
t.
 S

a
c
k
s
 u

s
e

d
 t

o
 c

o
lle

c
t 

it
e
m

s
 f
o

r 
re

c
y
c
lin

g
 a

re
 t

h
e

m
s
e

lv
e

s
 r

e
c
y
c
le

d
. 

B
io

d
e

g
ra

d
a

b
le

 s
a

c
k
s
 a

re
 m

u
c
h

 m
o

re
 c

o
s
tl
y
 a

n
d

 
m

o
re

 i
m

p
o

rt
a

n
tl
y
 d

o
 n

o
t 

b
re

a
k
 d

o
w

n
 i
n

 l
a
n

d
fi
ll 

m
u

c
h
 q

u
ic

k
e

r 
th

a
n

 o
rd

in
a

ry
 s

a
c
k
s
. 

H
o

w
 m

u
c

h
 d

o
e

s
 r

e
c

y
c

li
n

g
 c

o
s

t?
 H

o
w

 d
o

e
s

 i
t 

a
ll
 w

o
rk

?

S
e

g
re

g
a

te
d

 r
e

c
y
c
la

b
le

s
 a

re
 a

 c
o
m

m
o

d
it
y
 a

n
d
 a

re
 s

o
ld

 t
o

 r
e

-p
ro

c
e

s
s
o

rs
. 

H
o

w
e

v
e

r 
th

e
re

 a
re

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 

c
o

s
ts

 i
n

 c
o

lle
c
ti
n

g
, 

tr
a

n
s
p

o
rt

in
g
 a

n
d

 s
o

rt
in

g
 r

e
c
y
c
la

b
le

s
 p

ri
o

r 
to

 r
e

-p
ro

c
e

s
s
in

g
. 
T

h
e

 c
o

s
ts

 a
re

 s
p

lit
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 t
h

e
 d

is
tr

ic
t 

c
o

u
n

c
il 

w
h

o
 a

re
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 f
o

r 
c
o

lle
c
ti
n

g
 r

e
c
y
c
la

b
le

s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
ty

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

w
h

o
 m

a
k
e

 a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e
n

ts
 f

o
r 

th
e
m

 t
o

 b
e

 r
e

c
y
c
le

d
. 
 

88



A
n

n
e

x
 I

 -
 A

c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n
 

J
o

in
t 

M
u

n
ic

ip
a

l 
W

a
s
te

 M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 f
o

r 
H

e
re

fo
rd

s
h

ir
e

 a
n

d
 W

o
rc

e
s
te

rs
h

ir
e

 2
0

0
4
 –

 2
0

3
4

, 
F

ir
s
t 

R
e

v
ie

w
 N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

0
9
 

 
1

 o
f 

2
4

T
h

e
 J

o
in

t 
M

u
n

ic
ip

a
l 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 f

o
r 

H
e
re

fo
rd

s
h

ir
e
 a

n
d

 W
o

rc
e
s
te

rs
h

ir
e
 2

0
0
4
 –

 2
0
3
4
 

A
n

n
e
x
 I

 –
 A

c
ti

o
n

 P
la

n
 

89



A
n

n
e

x
 I

 -
 A

c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n
 

J
o

in
t 

M
u

n
ic

ip
a

l 
W

a
s
te

 M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 f
o

r 
H

e
re

fo
rd

s
h

ir
e

 a
n

d
 W

o
rc

e
s
te

rs
h

ir
e

 2
0

0
4
 –

 2
0

3
4

, 
F

ir
s
t 

R
e

v
ie

w
 N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

0
9
 

 
2

 o
f 

2
4

W
a
s
te

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 A

c
ti

o
n

 P
la

n
 

T
h
e

 A
c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 s
e

ts
 o

u
t 

h
o

w
 a

ll 
c
o

u
n

c
ils

 i
n

 H
e

re
fo

rd
s
h

ir
e

 a
n
d

 W
o
rc

e
s
te

rs
h

ir
e

 w
ill

 d
e

liv
e

r 
th

e
 r

e
v
is

e
d

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
. 

P
a

rt
 A

 o
f 

th
e

 A
c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 p
ro

v
id

e
s
 d

e
ta

ils
 o

f 
th

e
 k

e
y
 t

a
s
k
s
 t
h

a
t 

a
re

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

d
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o

n
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 f
o

r 
d

e
liv

e
ri
n

g
 t

h
e

s
e

 t
a

s
k
s
. 
A

 
re

fe
re

n
c
e

 f
ro

m
 t
h

e
 C

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 A

n
n
e

x
 H

 i
s
 a

ls
o

 g
iv

e
n

 t
o

 s
h

o
w

 h
o

w
 t

h
e

 v
ie

w
s
 o

f 
p

e
o
p

le
 h

a
v
e

 h
e

lp
e

d
 t
o

 i
n
fl
u

e
n

c
e

 t
h

e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
. 

 

P
a

rt
 B

 o
f 

th
e

 A
c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 p
ro

v
id

e
s
 d

e
ta

ils
 o

f 
w

h
e

n
 k

e
y
 t

a
s
k
s
 a

re
 t
o

 b
e

 d
e

liv
e

re
d

, 
w

h
e

th
e

r 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

 a
n
d

 t
h

e
 l
e

v
e

l 
o
f 

re
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 t
o

 b
e

 a
llo

c
a

te
d

 t
o

 t
h
e

 t
a

s
k
. 

R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
 a

llo
c
a
ti
o

n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 g
iv

e
n

 t
h

re
e

 l
e

v
e

ls
 a

s
 f

o
llo

w
s
: 

L
o
w

 
A

 t
o

ta
l 
re

s
o
u

rc
e

 a
llo

c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
le

s
s
 t
h

a
n
 £

1
0

,0
0
0

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

 t
o

 d
e

liv
e

r 
ta

s
k
  

M
o
d
e
ra

te
A

 t
o

ta
l 
re

s
o
u

rc
e

 a
llo

c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
£

1
0

,0
0

0
 o

r 
m

o
re

 b
u

t 
le

s
s
 t

h
a

n
 £

7
5
,0

0
0

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

 t
o

 d
e

liv
e

r 
ta

s
k
 

H
ig

h
 

A
 t

o
ta

l 
re

s
o
u

rc
e

 a
llo

c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
£

7
5

,0
0

0
 o

r 
m

o
re

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

 t
o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

ta
s
k
 

P
a

rt
 B

 o
f 

th
e

 A
c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 a
ls

o
 o

u
tl
in

e
s
 t
h

e
 d

e
p

e
n
d

e
n

c
ie

s
 a

n
d

 r
is

k
s
 t
h

a
t 
m

u
s
t 
b

e
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 i
n

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

 t
h
e

 k
e

y
 t

a
s
k
. 
T

h
e

 m
o
n

it
o
ri
n

g
 

m
e

c
h
a

n
is

m
 i
s
 a

ls
o
 d

e
ta

ile
d

. 
  

T
h
e

 A
c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 w
ill

 b
e

 c
o

n
ti
n
u

a
lly

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

o
u

t 
th

e
 l
if
e
ti
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
 S

tr
a

te
g
y
, 

w
it
h

 n
e

w
 K

e
y
 T

a
s
k
s
 a

d
d

e
d

 w
h

e
re

 n
e

c
e

s
s
a

ry
. 

 

90



A
n

n
e

x
 I

 -
 A

c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n
 

J
o

in
t 

M
u

n
ic

ip
a

l 
W

a
s
te

 M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 f
o

r 
H

e
re

fo
rd

s
h

ir
e

 a
n

d
 W

o
rc

e
s
te

rs
h

ir
e

 2
0

0
4
 –

 2
0

3
4

, 
F

ir
s
t 

R
e

v
ie

w
 N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

0
9
 

 
3

 o
f 

2
4

A
c

ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 P
a
rt

 A
 (

S
u

m
m

a
ry

) 

91



A
n

n
e

x
 I

 -
 A

c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n
 

J
o

in
t 

M
u

n
ic

ip
a

l 
W

a
s
te

 M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 f
o

r 
H

e
re

fo
rd

s
h

ir
e

 a
n

d
 W

o
rc

e
s
te

rs
h

ir
e

 2
0

0
4
 –

 2
0

3
4

, 
F

ir
s
t 

R
e

v
ie

w
 N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

0
9
 

 
4

 o
f 

2
4

WASTE PREVENTION 

A
c

ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 
R

e
fe

re
n

c
e
 

R
e
fe

re
n

c
e
(s

) 
(f

ro
m

 A
n

n
e
x
 

H
) 

A
c

ti
o

n
 R

e
q

u
ir

e
d

  
(K

e
y
 T

a
s
k
s
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
d
) 

R
e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 O

rg
a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

 
(L

o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

, 
G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

O
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
, 
G

ro
u
p
, 
e
tc

)

W
P

0
1
 

A
n
n
e
x
 C

 
F

G
1
1
 

D
is

tr
ib

u
te

 2
5
,0

0
0
 H

o
m

e
 C

o
m

p
o

s
t 

B
in

s
 t
o
 h

o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 i
n
 H

e
re

fo
rd

s
h
ir
e
 a

n
d
 

W
o
rc

e
s
te

rs
h
ir
e
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 2

0
0
7
/0

8
 a

n
d
 2

0
1
0
/1

1
. 

W
o
rc

e
s
te

rs
h
ir
e
 C

o
u
n
ty

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

W
P

0
2
 

A
n
n
e
x
 C

 
F

G
1
1
 

D
is

tr
ib

u
te

 1
5
,0

0
0
 H

o
m

e
 C

o
m

p
o

s
t

B
in

s
 t
o
 h

o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 i
n
 H

e
re

fo
rd

s
h
ir
e
 a

n
d
 

W
o
rc

e
s
te

rs
h
ir
e
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
 a

n
d
 2

0
1
3
/1

4
 

W
o
rc

e
s
te

rs
h
ir
e
 C

o
u
n
ty

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

W
P

0
3
 

A
n
n
e
x
 C

 
F

G
1
1
 

D
is

tr
ib

u
te

 3
5
,0

0
0
 H

o
m

e
 C

o
m

p
o

s
t

B
in

s
 t
o
 h

o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 i
n
 H

e
re

fo
rd

s
h
ir
e
 a

n
d
 

W
o
rc

e
s
te

rs
h
ir
e
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 2

0
1
4
/1

5
 a

n
d
 2

0
2
0
/2

1
 

W
o
rc

e
s
te

rs
h
ir
e
 C

o
u
n
ty

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

W
P

0
4
 

F
G

1
0
 &

 
F

G
1
1
 

S
0
6
 t

o
 S

1
0
 

S
H

R
0
5
B

 

P
ro

m
o
te

 t
h
e
 H

o
m

e
 C

o
m

p
o

s
ti

n
g

 S
c
h

e
m

e
 t
o
 e

n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 i
n
 H

e
re

fo
rd

s
h
ir
e
 

a
n
d
 W

o
rc

e
s
te

rs
h
ir
e
 t

o
 c

o
m

p
o
s
t 
m

o
re

 w
a
s
te

 a
t 
h
o
m

e
. 
P

ro
m

o
te

 t
h
e
 M

a
s
te

r 
C

o
m

p
o

s
te

r 
S

c
h

e
m

e
 t

o
 t
ra

in
 v

o
lu

n
te

e
rs

 w
h
o
 i
n
 t

u
rn

 c
a
n
 p

ro
m

o
te

 t
h
e
 H

o
m

e
 

C
o
m

p
o
s
ti
n
g

 S
c
h
e
m

e
 

W
o
rc

e
s
te

rs
h
ir
e
 C

o
u
n
ty

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

W
P

0
5
 

S
0
6
 t

o
 S

0
9
 

O
p
ti
o
n
s
 f

o
r 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 C

o
m

p
o

s
ti

n
g

 a
re

 t
o
 b

e
 j
o
in

tl
y
 i
n

v
e
s
ti
g

a
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 i
n
 c

o
n
ju

n
c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 C

o
m

p
o
s
ti
n
g
 N

e
tw

o
rk

 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 

s
m

a
ll 

s
c
a
le

 l
o
c
a
l 
c
o
m

p
o
s
ti
n
g
 s

it
e
s
 f

o
r 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 u

s
e
 

A
ll 

C
o
u
n
c
ils

 
C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 C

o
m

p
o
s
ti
n
g

 
N

e
tw

o
rk

 

W
P

0
6
 

S
1
3
 

T
h
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 t
o
 p

ro
m

o
te

 t
h
e
 W

a
s
te

 R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 A

c
ti
o
n
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
 (

W
R

A
P

) 
L

o
v
e
 F

o
o

d
 H

a
te

 W
a
s
te

 i
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
 l
o
c
a
lly

 i
n
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 e

n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 l
e
s
s
 w

a
s
ta

g
e
 o

f 
fo

o
d
  

in
 t

h
e
 h

o
m

e
. 
A

ll 
c
o
u
n
c
ils

 t
o
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 r
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 i
n
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 t

h
is

. 

A
ll 

C
o
u
n
c
ils

 
W

R
A

P
 

W
P

0
7
 

S
1
3
 

T
h
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 t
o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 
a
 F

o
o

d
 W

a
s
te

 P
re

v
e
n

ti
o

n
 m

a
rk

e
ti
n
g

 
p
la

n
 i
n
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 o
f 

a
n
d
 i
n
 a

d
d
it
io

n
 t

o
 t
h
e
 L

o
v
e
 F

o
o

d
 H

a
te

 W
a
s
te

 i
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
. 
A

ll 
c
o
u
n
c
ils

 t
o
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 r
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 i
n
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 t

h
is

. 
A

ll 
C

o
u
n
c
ils

 

W
P

0
8
 

S
1
3
 

A
c
h
ie

v
e
 a

 P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 t
a
rg

e
t 
to

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

'c
o

m
m

it
te

d
 f

o
o

d
 w

a
s
te

 
re

d
u

c
e
rs

' 
to

 3
0
%

 b
y
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
. 
B

a
s
e
lin

e
 o

f 
2
3
%

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 

in
it
ia

ti
v
e
 i
n
 s

p
ri
n
g

 2
0
0
9
. 
T

a
rg

e
t 
to

 b
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 a

n
n
u
a
lly

. 
 

A
ll 

C
o
u
n
c
ils

 

W
P

0
9
 

S
1
3
 

M
a
s
te

r 
C

o
m

p
o
s
te

rs
 w

ill
 b

e
 t
ra

in
e
d
 t

o
 p

ro
m

o
te

 t
h
e
 L

o
v
e
 F

o
o
d
 H

a
te

 W
a
s
te

 i
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
 

in
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 o
f 

A
c
ti
o
n
s
 W

P
0
2
A

, 
W

P
0
2
B

 &
 W

P
0
2
C

. 
R

e
s
o
u
rc

in
g
 t

o
 b

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 b

y
 

W
o
rc

e
s
te

rs
h
ir
e
 C

o
u
n
ty

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
 H

e
re

fo
rd

s
h
ir
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il.

 
W

o
rc

e
s
te

rs
h
ir
e
 C

o
u
n
ty

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

 

92



A
n

n
e

x
 I

 -
 A

c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n
 

J
o

in
t 

M
u

n
ic

ip
a

l 
W

a
s
te

 M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 f
o

r 
H

e
re

fo
rd

s
h

ir
e

 a
n

d
 W

o
rc

e
s
te

rs
h

ir
e

 2
0

0
4
 –

 2
0

3
4

, 
F

ir
s
t 

R
e

v
ie

w
 N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

0
9
 

 
5

 o
f 

2
4

WASTE PREVENTION 

A
c

ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 
R

e
fe

re
n

c
e
 

R
e
fe

re
n

c
e
(s

) 
fr

o
m

 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 

A
c

ti
o

n
 R

e
q

u
ir

e
d

  
(K

e
y
 T

a
s
k
s
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
d
) 

R
e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 O

rg
a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

 
(L

o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

, 
G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

O
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
, 
G

ro
u
p
, 
e
tc

)

W
P

1
0
 

S
1
2
 &

 S
1
3
 

T
h
e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 t
o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 
a
 S

m
a
rt

 S
h

o
p

p
in

g
 m

a
rk

e
ti
n
g

 p
la

n
. 

T
h
is

 i
s
 t

o
 e

n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 p

e
o
p
le

 t
o
 t
h
in

k
 a

b
o
u
t 

w
h
a
t 

w
a
s
te

 w
ill

 b
e
 g

e
n
e
ra

te
d
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 

th
in

g
s
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
y
 b

u
y
 a

n
d
 t
o
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 

a
lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 p

ro
d
u
c
e
 l
e
s
s
 w

a
s
te

. 
 A

ll 
c
o
u
n
c
ils

 t
o
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 r
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 i
n
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 t

h
is

. 

A
ll 

C
o
u
n
c
ils

 

W
P

1
1
 

S
2
1
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 
a
 J

u
n

k
 M

a
il
 m

a
rk

e
ti
n
g

 p
la

n
. 

A
ll 

c
o
u
n
c
ils

 i
n
 t
h
e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 
a
re

 e
x
p
e
c
te

d
 t
o
 h

e
lp

 p
ro

m
o
te

 t
h
is

 s
c
h
e
m

e
 b

u
t 

it
 s

h
a
ll 

b
e
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
d
 b

y
 

W
o
rc

e
s
te

rs
h
ir
e
 C

o
u
n
ty

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
 H

e
re

fo
rd

s
h
ir
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

W
o
rc

e
s
te

rs
h
ir
e
 C

o
u
n
ty

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

W
P

1
2
 

S
2
1
 

In
c
re

a
s
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
e
o
p
le

 s
ig

n
in

g
 u

p
 t

o
 t

h
e
 '
M

a
il
in

g
 P

re
fe

re
n

c
e
 S

e
rv

ic
e
' 
b
y
 

1
0
,0

0
0
 p

e
r 

a
n
n
u
m

 b
e
tw

e
e
n
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
 a

n
d
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
. 
T

h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
w

ill
 b

e
 u

s
e
d
 t

o
 

m
o
n
it
o
r 

th
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
th

e
 J

u
n

k
 M

a
il
 m

a
rk

e
ti
n
g

 p
la

n
. 
T

h
e
 M

a
ili

n
g

 P
re

fe
re

n
c
e
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 t

o
 s

u
p
p
ly

 d
a
ta

. 

W
o
rc

e
s
te

rs
h
ir
e
 C

o
u
n
ty

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

W
P

1
3
 

S
1
4
 t

o
 S

1
7
 

P
ro

v
is

io
n
 o

f 
s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
o

 r
e
u

s
e
 o

rg
a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

s
 t
h
ro

u
g

h
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 o

f 
a
d
v
ic

e
 a

n
d
 

g
u
id

a
n
c
e
 b

y
 t
h
e
 W

a
s
te

 M
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 
T

e
a
m

s
 a

t 
H

e
re

fo
rd

s
h
ir
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
 

W
o
rc

e
s
te

rs
h
ir
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il.

 

W
o
rc

e
s
te

rs
h
ir
e
 C

o
u
n
ty

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

H
e
re

fo
rd

s
h
ir
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

W
P

1
4
 

S
1
7
 

C
o
n
ti
n
u
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 W

a
s
te

 &
 R

e
c
y
c
li

n
g

 F
o

ru
m

 (
S

E
W

A
R

) 
to

 e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 

n
e
tw

o
rk

in
g

 a
n
d
 s

h
a
ri
n
g
 o

f 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 e

x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
s
 f
ro

m
 v

a
ri
o
u
s
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 

in
v
o

lv
e
d
 w

it
h
 r

e
u
s
e
  

W
o
rc

e
s
te

rs
h
ir
e
 C

o
u
n
ty

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

W
P

1
5
 

S
1
7
 

H
e
re

fo
rd

s
h
ir
e
 a

n
d
 W

o
rc

e
s
te

rs
h
ir
e
 C

o
u
n
ty

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

to
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 R

e
-u

s
e
 C

re
d

it
s
 p

a
id

 
to

 3
rd
 S

e
c
to

r 
to

 7
5
0
 t

o
n

n
e
s
 b

y
 2

0
1
3
/1

4
. 

W
o
rc

e
s
te

rs
h
ir
e
 C

o
u
n
ty

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

H
e
re

fo
rd

s
h
ir
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

W
P

1
6
 

S
1
4
 

S
1
5
 

S
1
7
 

In
v
e
s
ti
g

a
te

 o
p
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 G

ra
n

t 
F

u
n

d
in

g
 f
o
r 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 r

e
-u

s
e
 a

n
d
 r

e
c
y
c
lin

g
 

s
c
h
e
m

e
s
. 
T

o
 b

e
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
d
 b

y
 a

ll 
c
o
u
n
c
ils

. 
A

ll 
C

o
u
n
c
il 

W
P

1
7
 

F
G

0
1
 

S
1
4
 t

o
 S

1
7
 

S
H

R
0
9
A

K
 

P
ro

m
o
te

 r
e
-u

s
e
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 t
h
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 o

f 
th

e
 R

e
-u

s
e
 g

u
id

e
. 
T

h
is

 w
ill

 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 c
o
u
n
c
il 

re
-u

s
e
 i
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 b

u
t 

a
ls

o
 p

ro
m

o
te

 o
th

e
r 

re
-u

s
e
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
. 
T

o
 b

e
 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
d
 b

y
 H

e
re

fo
rd

s
h
ir
e
 a

n
d
 W

o
rc

e
s
te

rs
h
ir
e
 C

o
u
n
c
ils

. 
W

o
rc

e
s
te

rs
h
ir
e
 C

o
u
n
ty

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

W
P

1
8
 

S
1
7
 

E
x
p
a
n
d
 a

n
d
 p

ro
m

o
te

 R
e
-u

s
e
 s

c
h

e
m

e
s
 a

t 
H

o
u

s
e
h

o
ld

 W
a
s
te

 S
it

e
s

b
y
 o

n
e
 

a
d

d
it

io
n

a
l 
s
it

e
 p

e
r 

a
n

n
u

m
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
 a

n
d
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
 t

o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 t

h
e
 a

m
o
u
n
t 

o
f 

w
a
s
te

 r
e
u
s
e
d
 b

y
 1

0
 t

o
n
n
e
s
 p

e
r 

a
n
n
u
m

, 
b
e
tw

e
e
n
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
 a

n
d
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
. 
 T

o
 b

e
 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 W

a
s
te

 D
is

p
o
s
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 a

n
d
 a

d
m

in
is

te
re

d
 b

y
 W

o
rc

e
s
te

rs
h
ir
e
 

C
o
u
n
ty

 C
o
u
n
c
il.

 

W
o
rc

e
s
te

rs
h
ir
e
 C

o
u
n
ty

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

93



A
n

n
e

x
 I

 -
 A

c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n
 

J
o

in
t 

M
u

n
ic

ip
a

l 
W

a
s
te

 M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 f
o

r 
H

e
re

fo
rd

s
h

ir
e

 a
n

d
 W

o
rc

e
s
te

rs
h

ir
e

 2
0

0
4
 –

 2
0

3
4

, 
F

ir
s
t 

R
e

v
ie

w
 N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

0
9
 

 
6

 o
f 

2
4

WASTE PREVENTION 

A
c

ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 
R

e
fe

re
n

c
e
 

R
e
fe

re
n

c
e
(s

) 
fr

o
m

 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 

A
c

ti
o

n
 R

e
q

u
ir

e
d

  
(K

e
y
 T

a
s
k
s
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
d
) 

R
e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 O

rg
a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

 
(L

o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

, 
G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

O
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
, 
G

ro
u
p
, 
e
tc

)

W
P

1
9
 

S
1
7
 

T
h
e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 i
s
 t

o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 s

c
h
e
m

e
s
 f

o
r

re
-u

s
e
 o

f 
b

u
lk

y
 w

a
s
te

 f
ro

m
c
o
u
n
c
il 

c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
. 
T

h
e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 p
la

n
s
 t
o
 b

u
ild

 o
n
 t
h
e
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 

o
p
e
ra

te
d
 b

y
 H

e
re

fo
rd

s
h
ir
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 r

e
-u

s
e
 f
ro

m
 b

u
lk

y
 c

o
lle

c
ti
o
n
s
 b

y
 

1
0
 t

o
n
n
e
s
 p

e
r 

a
n
n
u
m

 (
w

ill
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
 o

n
e
 d

is
tr

ic
t 

p
e
r 

a
n
n
u
m

 t
o
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
e
 r

e
-u

s
e
).

  
A

ll 
c
o
u
n
c
ils

 t
o
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 r
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 i
n
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 t

h
is

. 

A
ll 

C
o
u
n
c
ils

 

W
P

2
0
 

S
1
4
 t

o
 S

1
7
 

S
H

R
0
9
A

K
 

T
h
e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 t
o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 
a
 R

e
-u

s
e
/R

e
p

a
ir

/H
ir

e
 M

a
rk

e
ti

n
g

 P
la

n
in

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 r

e
-u

s
e
 i
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 d

e
ta

ile
d
 i
n
 W

P
0
4
A

 t
o
 W

P
0
4
G

. 
 A

ll 
c
o
u
n
c
ils

 i
n
 t

h
e
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 a
re

 e
x
p
e
c
te

d
 t

o
 i
n
p
u
t 
to

 t
h
is

 b
u
t 
re

s
o
u
rc

e
d
 b

y
 H

C
 a

n
d
 W

C
C

 
W

o
rc

e
s
te

rs
h
ir
e
 C

o
u
n
ty

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

W
P

2
1
 

 
T

h
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
ill

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t

o
 p

ro
m

o
te

 o
th

e
r 

w
a
s
te

 p
re

v
e
n
ti
o
n
 i
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 

F
o

o
d

 W
a
s
te

 D
is

p
o

s
e
rs

, 
R

e
a
l 

N
a
p

p
ie

s
 a

n
d

 H
o

m
e
 S

h
re

d
d

in
g

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
. 

A
ll 

C
o
u
n
c
ils

 

W
P

2
2
 

S
H

R
0
9
A

G
 

S
H

R
0
9
B

E
 

S
H

R
1
0
P

 

T
h
e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
ill

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 w

a
te

r 
in

d
u

s
tr

y
 i
n
 a

n
y
 r

e
s
e
a
rc

h
 i
n
to

 t
h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
ts

 
o
f 

fo
o

d
 w

a
s
te

 d
is

p
o

s
e
rs

. 
A

s
 t

h
e
 s

u
b
s
id

y
 f

o
r 

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

 t
o
 i
n
s
ta

ll 
th

e
m

 t
h
e
 

im
p
a
c
ts

 a
re

 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o
 b

e
 l
o
w

. 
  

A
ll 

C
o
u
n
c
ils

 

W
P

2
3
 

F
G

0
8
 

S
1
2
, 

S
1
3
 &

 
S

1
8
 

S
H

R
0
2
B

 

T
h
ro

u
g

h
 t
h
e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

’s
 F

o
ru

m
 G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n

t 
A

g
e
n

c
ie

s
 w

il
l 
b

e
 l
o

b
b

ie
d

 t
o
 

e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 a

c
ti
o
n
 t
o
 c

o
m

b
a
t 
th

e
 p

ro
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
u
n
n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 P
a
c
k
a
g

in
g

 W
a
s
te

.
J
o
in

t 
M

e
m

b
e
r 

W
a
s
te

 R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
 

M
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

F
o
ru

m
  

W
P

2
4
 

L
o
c
a
l 
C

o
u
n
c
ils

 (
W

a
s
te

 C
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 A

u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
) 

to
 p

u
t 

in
 p

la
c
e
 m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 t

o
 r

e
s
tr

ic
t 

re
s
id

u
a
l 
w

a
s
te

 p
re

s
e
n

te
d

. 
A

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 b

y
 r

e
d
u
c
in

g
 c

o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 f
re

q
u
e
n
c
y
 a

n
d
/o

r 
lim

it
in

g
 c

o
n
ta

in
e
r 

c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 a

n
d
 n

o
t 

a
c
c
e
p
ti
n
g

 s
id

e
 w

a
s
te

. 
R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
d
 b

y
 W

C
A

s
. 

L
o
c
a
l 
C

o
u
n
c
ils

 (
W

a
s
te

 
C

o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 A

u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
) 

W
P

2
5
 

F
G

0
1
 

In
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t
o
 t

h
e
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 i
n
d
ic

a
te

d
 a

 n
e
e
d
 t

o
 p

ro
m

o
te

 t
h

e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
re

-u
s
e
 w

e
b

s
it

e
s
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 F

re
e
c
y
c
le

. 
T

h
is

 w
ill

 b
e
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
d
 b

y
 H

e
re

fo
rd

s
h
ir
e
 a

n
d
 

W
o
rc

e
s
te

rs
h
ir
e
 C

o
u
n
c
ils

 w
it
h
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 f
ro

m
 a

ll 
o
th

e
r 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 m
e
m

b
e
rs

. 
A

ll 
C

o
u
n
c
ils

 

94



A
n

n
e

x
 I

 -
 A

c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n
 

J
o

in
t 

M
u

n
ic

ip
a

l 
W

a
s
te

 M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 f
o

r 
H

e
re

fo
rd

s
h

ir
e

 a
n

d
 W

o
rc

e
s
te

rs
h

ir
e

 2
0

0
4
 –

 2
0

3
4

, 
F

ir
s
t 

R
e

v
ie

w
 N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

0
9
 

 
7

 o
f 

2
4

RECYCLING AND COMPOSTING 

A
c

ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 
R

e
fe

re
n

c
e
 

R
e
fe

re
n

c
e
(s

) 
fr

o
m

 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 

A
c

ti
o

n
 R

e
q

u
ir

e
d

  
(K

e
y
 T

a
s
k
s
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
d
) 

R
e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 O

rg
a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

 
(L

o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

, 
G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

O
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
, 
G

ro
u
p
, 
e
tc

)

W
R

C
0
1
 

F
G

0
4
 

S
0
4
 

T
o
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 t

h
e
 n

e
w

 E
n

v
ir

o
S

o
rt

 f
a
c
ili

ty
 p

ri
o
r 

to
 t
h
e
 l
a
u
n
c
h
 o

f 
m

ix
e
d
 d

ry
 

re
c
y
c
lin

g
 k

e
rb

s
id

e
 c

o
lle

c
ti
o
n
s
 b

y
 L

o
c
a
l 
C

o
u
n
c
ils

. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 b

y
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
9
 a

t 
th

e
 l
a
te

s
t.
 R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 f
ro

m
 W

o
rc

e
s
te

rs
h
ir
e
 C

o
u
n
ty

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
 

H
e
re

fo
rd

s
h
ir
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

W
o
rc

e
s
te

rs
h
ir
e
 C

o
u
n
ty

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

W
R

C
0
2
 

F
G

0
4
 

S
0
4
 

S
0
5
 

L
o
c
a
l 
C

o
u
n
c
ils

 (
W

a
s
te

 C
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 A

u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
) 

to
 p

ro
v
id

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 t

o
 c

o
ll

e
c
t 

s
a
m

e
 

k
e
rb

s
id

e
 r

e
c
y
c
la

b
le

 m
a
te

ri
a
ls

 (
e
x
c
e
p
t 

s
a
c
k
 c

o
lle

c
ti
o
n
s
 w

h
e
re

 g
la

s
s
 w

ill
 n

o
t 

b
e
 

a
c
c
e
p
ta

b
le

) 
a
n
d
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 r

e
c
y
c
lin

g
 c

a
p
a
c
it
y
. 
T

o
 b

e
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
d
 b

y
 L

o
c
a
l 
C

o
u
n
c
ils

. 

L
o
c
a
l 
C

o
u
n
c
ils

 (
W

a
s
te

 
C

o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 A

u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
) 

W
R

C
0
3
 

S
0
4
 

S
H

R
0
9
A

S
 

T
h
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
ill

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
a
lly

 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g

a
te

 o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

in
c
re

a
s
in

g
 t

h
e
 r

a
n

g
e
 

o
f 

m
a
te

ri
a
ls

 a
c
c
e
p

te
d

 f
o

r 
re

c
y
c
li

n
g

, 
th

ro
u
g

h
 k

e
rb

s
id

e
 c

o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 o

r 
a
t 

b
ri
n
g
 

re
c
y
c
lin

g
 s

it
e
s
. 

W
R

C
0
4
 

F
G

0
6
 

S
O

2
 

L
o
c
a
l 
C

o
u
n
c
ils

 t
o
 e

x
p
a
n
d
 c

o
v
e
ra

g
e
 o

f 
th

e
ir
 k

e
rb

s
id

e
 r

e
c
y
c
li

n
g

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t

o
 a

ll
 

h
o

u
s
e
h

o
ld

s
 a

s
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 W

a
s
te

 R
e
c
y
c
li

n
g

 A
c
t 

(2
0
0
3
).

 T
o
 b

e
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
d
 b

y
 

L
o
c
a
l 
C

o
u
n
c
ils

. 

L
o
c
a
l 
C

o
u
n
c
ils

 (
W

a
s
te

 
C

o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 A

u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
) 

W
R

C
0
5
 

S
1
1
 

S
H

R
1
0
L

 

W
h
e
re

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 g

a
rd

e
n

 w
a
s
te

 c
o

m
p

o
s
ti

n
g

 c
o

ll
e
c
ti

o
n

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 b

y
 

L
o
c
a
l 
C

o
u
n
c
ils

 a
t 

a
 c

h
a
rg

e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 H

o
u

s
e
h

o
ld

e
r.

 C
o
u
n
c
ils

 t
o
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 

fe
e
d
b
a
c
k
 

fr
o
m

 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
re

 s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 n

o
 c

h
a
rg

e
 t
o
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

. 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 

a
n
d
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

in
g

 t
o
 b

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 b

y
 L

o
c
a
l 
C

o
u
n
c
ils

. 

L
o
c
a
l 
C

o
u
n
c
ils

 (
W

a
s
te

 
C

o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 A

u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
) 

W
R

C
0
6
 

S
H

R
0
9
A

Q
 

S
H

R
1
0
L

 

T
h
e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

n
d
 p

ro
m

o
te

 a
 c

o
n
s
is

te
n
t 
te

x
ti

le
 c

o
ll

e
c
ti

o
n

 s
e
rv

ic
e

a
c
ro

s
s
 a

ll 
c
o
u
n
c
ils

, 
w

o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 T

h
ir
d
 S

e
c
to

r 
w

h
e
re

 p
o
s
s
ib

le
. 
T

e
x
ti
le

s
 a

re
 n

o
t 

to
 b

e
 a

c
c
e
p
te

d
 i
n
 n

e
w

 k
e
rb

s
id

e
 r

e
c
y
c
lin

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
, 

A
ll 

c
o
u
n
c
ils

 t
o
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
 

a
lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
s
. 

A
ll 

C
o
u
n
c
ils

 

W
R

C
0
7
 

S
H

R
0
1
A

 
S

H
R

0
8
G

 
S

H
R

1
5
A

 

T
h
e
 o

p
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

p
ro

v
id

in
g

 c
o

m
m

e
rc

ia
l 
w

a
s
te

 r
e
c
y
c
li

n
g

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t
o
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

tr
a
d
e
 

c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 c

u
s
to

m
e
rs

 a
re

 t
o
 b

e
 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g

a
te

d
. 

A
s
 t
h
is

 i
s
 a

 p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 i
s
s
u
e
 i
t 
is

 t
o
 b

e
 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
d
 b

y
 a

ll 
c
o
u
n
c
ils

. 
 

A
ll 

C
o
u
n
c
ils

 

W
R

C
0
8
 

H
e
re

fo
rd

s
h
ir
e
 a

n
d
 W

o
rc

e
s
te

rs
h
ir
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

(W
a
s
te

 D
is

p
o
s
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
) 

w
ill

 
in

v
e
s
ti
g

a
te

 t
h
e
 o

p
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

re
c
y
c
li

n
g

 a
n

d
/o

r 
re

c
o

v
e
ry

 o
f 

s
tr

e
e
t 

s
w

e
e
p

in
g

s
 i
n
 

o
rd

e
r 

to
 d

iv
e
rt

 t
h
is

 w
a
s
te

 f
ro

m
 l
a
n
d
fi
ll.

 

W
o
rc

e
s
te

rs
h
ir
e
 C

o
u
n
ty

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

H
e
re

fo
rd

s
h
ir
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

W
R

C
0
9
 

 

A
 n

e
w

 H
o

u
s
e
h

o
ld

 W
a
s
te

 S
it

e
 i
s
 t
o
 b

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 i
n
 K

in
g

to
n

 (
H

e
re

fo
rd

s
h
ir
e
).

 N
o
 

s
it
e
 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 c

o
n
v
e
n
ie

n
tl
y
 l
o
c
a
te

d
 f

o
r 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

 o
f 

th
is

 a
re

a
 t
o
 d

e
p
o
s
it
 t
h
e
ir
 

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

 w
a
s
te

. 
C

ro
s
s
 b

o
rd

e
r 

s
h
a
ri
n
g

 o
f 
th

e
 f

a
c
ili

ty
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g

a
te

d
 w

it
h
 

P
o
w

y
s
. 

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
d
 b

y
 H

e
re

fo
rd

s
h
ir
e
 a

n
d
 W

o
rc

e
s
te

rs
h
ir
e
 C

o
u
n
c
ils

. 

W
o
rc

e
s
te

rs
h
ir
e
 C

o
u
n
ty

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

H
e
re

fo
rd

s
h
ir
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

95



A
n

n
e

x
 I

 -
 A

c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n
 

J
o

in
t 

M
u

n
ic

ip
a

l 
W

a
s
te

 M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 f
o

r 
H

e
re

fo
rd

s
h

ir
e

 a
n

d
 W

o
rc

e
s
te

rs
h

ir
e

 2
0

0
4
 –

 2
0

3
4

, 
F

ir
s
t 

R
e

v
ie

w
 N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

0
9
 

 
8

 o
f 

2
4

RECYCLING AND COMPOSTING 
A

c
ti

o
n

 P
la

n
 

R
e
fe

re
n

c
e
 

R
e
fe

re
n

c
e
(s

) 
fr

o
m

 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 

A
c

ti
o

n
 R

e
q

u
ir

e
d

  
(K

e
y
 T

a
s
k
s
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
d
) 

R
e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 O

rg
a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

 
(L

o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

, 
G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

O
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
, 
G

ro
u
p
, 
e
tc

)

W
R

C
1
0
 

 
R

e
b
ra

n
d
 H

o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

 W
a
s
te

 S
it
e
s
 a

s
 H

o
u

s
e
h

o
ld

 R
e
c

y
c
li

n
g

 C
e
n

tr
e
s
 t

o
 

e
m

p
h
a
s
is

e
 t
h
e
ir
 r

e
c
y
c
lin

g
 e

le
m

e
n
t.
  
T

o
 b

e
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
d
 b

y
 H

e
re

fo
rd

s
h
ir
e
 a

n
d
 

W
o
rc

e
s
te

rs
h
ir
e
 C

o
u
n
c
ils

 
W

o
rc

e
s
te

rs
h
ir
e
 C

o
u
n
ty

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

W
R

C
1
1
 

T
h
e
 H

o
u

s
e
h

o
ld

 W
a
s
te

 S
it

e
 a

t 
T

e
n

b
u

ry
 i
s
 t

o
 b

e
 r

e
d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d

 p
e
n
d
in

g
 

s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
. 
T

o
 b

e
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
d
 b

y
 H

e
re

fo
rd

s
h
ir
e
 a

n
d
 

W
o
rc

e
s
te

rs
h
ir
e
 C

o
u
n
ty

 C
o
u
n
c
ils

. 
W

o
rc

e
s
te

rs
h
ir
e
 C

o
u
n
ty

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

W
R

C
1
2
 

F
G

0
5
 

F
e
a
s
ib

ili
ty

 o
f 

p
e
d

e
s
tr

ia
n

 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 H

o
u

s
e
h

o
ld

 W
a
s
te

 S
it

e
s
 i
s
 t
o
 b

e
 

in
v
e
s
ti
g

a
te

d
 b

o
th

 c
u
rr

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 f
u
tu

re
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
. 

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 f
ro

m
 

in
v
e
s
ti
g

a
ti
o
n
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 b

e
fo

re
 a

c
ti
o
n
 i
s
 t

a
k
e
n
. 

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
d
 b

y
 

H
e
re

fo
rd

s
h
ir
e
 a

n
d
 W

o
rc

e
s
te

rs
h
ir
e
 C

o
u
n
c
ils

. 

W
o
rc

e
s
te

rs
h
ir
e
 C

o
u
n
ty

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

W
R

C
1
3
 

S
0
1
 

T
h
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 t
o
 p

ro
d
u
c
e
 c

le
a
r 

g
u

id
a
n

c
e
 o

n
 w

h
a
t 

m
a
te

ri
a
ls

 c
a
n

 b
e
 a

c
c
e
p

te
d

fo
r 

re
c
y
c
lin

g
 b

y
 L

o
c
a
l 
C

o
u
n
c
il 

C
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 s

c
h
e
m

e
s
 

A
ll 

C
o
u
n
c
ils

 

W
R

C
1
4
 

F
G

0
3
 

H
e
re

fo
rd

s
h
ir
e
 a

n
d
 W

o
rc

e
s
te

rs
h
ir
e
 C

o
u
n
c
ils

 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 

c
u

s
to

m
e
r 

c
a
re

 f
ro

m
 s

ta
ff

 a
t 

H
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

 W
a
s
te

 S
it
e
s
. 

L
o
c
a
l 
C

o
u
n
c
ils

 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 

c
u
s
to

m
e
r 

c
a
re

 o
f 

c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 c

re
w

s
. 

W
o
rc

e
s
te

rs
h
ir
e
 C

o
u
n
ty

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

L
o
c
a
l 
C

o
u
n
c
ils

 

W
R

C
1
5
 

F
G

0
2
 

S
0
3
 

S
H

R
0
5
B

 

T
h
e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 i

n
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n

 o
n

 w
h

a
t 

h
a
p

p
e
n

s
 t

o
 w

a
s
te

 a
n
d
 

re
c
y
c
lin

g
 o

n
c
e
 i
t 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 c

o
lle

c
te

d
. 
T

h
is

 w
ill

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 o

n
 t
h
e
 n

e
w

 
E

n
v
ir
o
S

o
rt

 f
a
c
ili

ty
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 f

in
a
l 
d
e
s
ti
n
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
re

c
y
c
la

b
le

s
 a

n
d
 r

e
s
id

u
a
l 
w

a
s
te

. 
F

u
n
d
in

g
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 f

ro
m

 W
R

A
P

 t
o
 p

ro
d
u
c
e
 g

u
id

e
 a

n
d
 p

u
b
lic

it
y
 m

a
te

ri
a
ls

. 

A
ll 

C
o
u
n
c
ils

 

W
R

C
1
6
 

F
G

0
7
 

T
h
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 t
o
 u

s
e
 a

n
 e

d
u

c
a
ti

o
n

 r
a
th

e
r 

th
a
n

 e
n

fo
rc

e
m

e
n

t 
a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 t
o
 

e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 p

e
o
p
le

 t
o
 r

e
c
y
c
le

 m
o
re

. 
 

L
o
c
a
l 
C

o
u
n
c
ils

 (
W

a
s
te

 
C

o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 A

u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
) 

 

W
R

C
1
7
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 a

s
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 t
o
 c

o
m

p
ly

 w
it
h
 t

h
e
 B

a
tt

e
ri

e
s
 D

ir
e
c
ti

v
e

W
o
rc

e
s
te

rs
h
ir
e
 C

o
u
n
ty

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

96



A
n

n
e

x
 I

 -
 A

c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n
 

J
o

in
t 

M
u

n
ic

ip
a

l 
W

a
s
te

 M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 f
o

r 
H

e
re

fo
rd

s
h

ir
e

 a
n

d
 W

o
rc

e
s
te

rs
h

ir
e

 2
0

0
4
 –

 2
0

3
4

, 
F

ir
s
t 

R
e

v
ie

w
 N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

0
9
 

 
9

 o
f 

2
4

ENERGY RECOVERY 
A

c
ti

o
n

 P
la

n
 

R
e
fe

re
n

c
e
 

R
e
fe

re
n

c
e
(s

) 
fr

o
m

 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 

A
c

ti
o

n
 R

e
q

u
ir

e
d

  
(K

e
y
 T

a
s
k
s
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
d
) 

R
e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 O

rg
a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

 
(L

o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

, 
G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

O
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
, 
G

ro
u
p
, 
e
tc

)

E
R

0
1
 

S
2
2
 &

 S
2
3
 

S
u
it
a
b
le

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

la
n
d
 t

o
 b

e
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 t

e
c
h
n
o
lo

g
y
 t

o
 b

e
 u

s
e
d
 t

o
 t

re
a
t 

th
e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 r

e
s
id

u
a
l 
w

a
s
te

 t
o
 b

e
 d

e
c
id

e
d
. 
W

o
rk

 t
o
 b

e
 c

o
n
d
u
c
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 P

F
I 

C
o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 
to

 b
e
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
d
 b

y
 H

e
re

fo
rd

s
h
ir
e
 a

n
d
 W

o
rc

e
s
te

rs
h
ir
e
 C

o
u
n
c
ils

. 
  

P
F

I 
W

a
s
te

 D
is

p
o
s
a
l 
C

o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 

E
R

0
2
 

F
G

1
6
 

P
F

I 
C

o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 
to

 c
o
m

p
le

te
 a

 p
re

-a
p

p
li
c
a
ti

o
n

(s
) 

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a
ti

o
n

 p
ri
o
r 

to
 s

u
b
m

is
s
io

n
 

o
f 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
. 
T

h
is

 c
o
u
ld

 i
n
fl
u
e
n
c
e
 t
h
e
 f
in

a
l 
d
e
s
ig

n
 o

f 
th

e
 t
re

a
tm

e
n
t 

fa
c
ili

ty
. 

T
o
 b

e
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
d
 b

y
 H

e
re

fo
rd

s
h
ir
e
 a

n
d
 W

o
rc

e
s
te

rs
h
ir
e
 C

o
u
n
c
ils

. 
P

F
I 
W

a
s
te

 D
is

p
o
s
a
l 
C

o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 

E
R

0
3
 

 
F

o
llo

w
in

g
 s

u
b
m

is
s
io

n
 t
h
e
 a

p
p

li
c
a
ti

o
n

(s
) 

w
il
l 
b

e
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
d

 b
y
 t
h
e
 r

e
le

v
a
n
t 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

. 
H

e
re

fo
rd

s
h
ir
e
/W

o
rc

e
s
te

rs
h
ir
e
 

P
la

n
n
in

g
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 

E
R

0
4
 

S
u
b
je

c
t 
to

 p
la

n
n
in

g
 c

o
n
s
e
n
t(

s
) 

th
e
 P

F
I 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 
w

ill
 c

o
n

s
tr

u
c
t 

a
n

d
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 

th
e
 f

a
c
il
it

y
 t

o
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
 r

e
s
id

u
a
l 
w

a
s
te

 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

. 
T

o
 b

e
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
d
 b

y
 

H
e
re

fo
rd

s
h
ir
e
 a

n
d
 W

o
rc

e
s
te

rs
h
ir
e
 C

o
u
n
c
ils

. 
P

F
I 
W

a
s
te

 D
is

p
o
s
a
l 
C

o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 

E
R

0
5
 

S
E

A
0
3
A

 
P

F
I 

C
o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 
to

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t

o
 u

ti
li
s
e
 l
a
n

d
fi

ll
 g

a
s

fo
r 

p
o

w
e
r 

g
e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
 a

t 
H

ill
 &

 
M

o
o
r 

L
a
n
d
fi
ll 

S
it
e
 n

e
a
r 

P
e
rs

h
o
re

. 
N

o
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
 i
m

p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 f

o
r 

th
e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

. 
P

F
I 
W

a
s
te

 D
is

p
o
s
a
l 
C

o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 

E
R

0
6
 

S
2
2
 

S
E

A
0
3
B

 
H

e
re

fo
rd

s
h
ir
e
 a

n
d
 W

o
rc

e
s
te

rs
h
ir
e
 C

o
u
n
c
ils

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 P

F
I 

C
o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 
to

 p
ro

m
o

te
 

e
n

e
rg

y
 r

e
c
o

v
e
ry

 o
p

ti
o

n
s
 w

h
e
n
 d

e
c
id

in
g

 t
h
e
 r

e
s
id

u
a
l 
tr

e
a
tm

e
n
t 
s
o
lu

ti
o
n
. 

H
e
re

fo
rd

s
h
ir
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

W
o
rc

e
s
te

rs
h
ir
e
 C

o
u
n
ty

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

P
F

I 
 W

a
s
te

 D
is

p
o
s
a
l 
C

o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 

E
R

0
7
 

S
H

R
0
6
A

 
P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 t
o
 c

o
n
ta

c
t 
S

h
ro

p
s
h
ir
e
 C

C
 t
o
 a

s
c
e
rt

a
in

 f
e
a
s
ib

ili
ty

 o
f 

tr
a
n

s
p

o
rt

in
g

 
w

a
s
te

 b
y
 r

iv
e
r 

(T
h
e
 S

e
v
e
rn

) 
to

 p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
in

c
in

e
ra

ti
o
n
 f

a
c
ili

ty
 a

t 
Ir

o
n
b
ri
d
g

e
. 
 

A
ll 

C
o
u
n
c
ils

 

97



A
n

n
e

x
 I

 -
 A

c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n
 

J
o

in
t 

M
u

n
ic

ip
a

l 
W

a
s
te

 M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 f
o

r 
H

e
re

fo
rd

s
h

ir
e

 a
n

d
 W

o
rc

e
s
te

rs
h

ir
e

 2
0

0
4
 –

 2
0

3
4

, 
F

ir
s
t 

R
e

v
ie

w
 N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

0
9
 

 
1

0
 o

f 
2

4FINAL 
DISPOSAL 

A
c

ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 
R

e
fe

re
n

c
e
 

R
e
fe

re
n

c
e
(s

) 
fr

o
m

 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 

A
c

ti
o

n
 R

e
q

u
ir

e
d

  
(K

e
y
 T

a
s
k
s
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
d
) 

R
e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 O

rg
a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

 
(L

o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

, 
G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

O
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
, 
G

ro
u
p
, 
e
tc

)

W
D

0
1
 

P
F

I 
C

o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 
to

 p
ro

v
id

e
 s

u
it

a
b

le
 l

a
n

d
fi

ll
 f

a
c
il
it

ie
s
 a

s
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
d
 f
o
r 

fi
n
a
l 
d
is

p
o
s
a
l 

o
f 

w
a
s
te

 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

. 
T

o
 b

e
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
d
 b

y
 H

e
re

fo
rd

s
h
ir
e
 a

n
d
 

W
o
rc

e
s
te

rs
h
ir
e
 C

o
u
n
c
ils

.
P

F
I 
W

a
s
te

 D
is

p
o
s
a
l 
C

o
n
tr

a
c
to

r

W
D

0
2
 

S
H

R
0
8
J
 

S
H

R
1
0
L

 

T
h
e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

n
d
 p

ro
m

o
te

 a
 c

o
n

s
is

te
n

t 
a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 t
o

 c
li

n
ic

a
l 
w

a
s
te

c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 d

is
p
o
s
a
l.
 C

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 a

rr
a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 v
a
ry

 a
c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

. 
G

re
a
te

r 
c
o
n
s
is

te
n
c
y
 c

o
u
ld

 l
e
a
d
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 e

ff
ic

ie
n
c
ie

s
. 

A
ll 

C
o
u
n
c
ils

 

OTHER STRATGEY ACTIONS 

A
c

ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 
R

e
fe

re
n

c
e
 

R
e
fe

re
n

c
e
(s

) 
fr

o
m

 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 

A
c

ti
o

n
 R

e
q

u
ir

e
d

  
(K

e
y
 T

a
s
k
s
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
d
) 

R
e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 O

rg
a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

 
(L

o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

, 
G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

O
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
, 
G

ro
u
p
, 
e
tc

)

O
S

A
0
1
 

S
H

R
0
9
A

A
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 c
o
u
n
c
ils

 t
o
 g

a
th

e
r 

d
a
ta

 t
o
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

 b
a
s
e
lin

e
 f

o
r 

N
I1

8
5
, 
N

I1
8
6
 a

n
d
 

N
I1

8
8
 a

n
d
 s

e
t 
C

li
m

a
te

 C
h

a
n

g
e
 T

a
rg

e
t 

(T
a
rg

e
t 

1
).

 
A

ll 
C

o
u
n
c
ils

 

O
S

A
0
2
 

T
h
e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 t
o
 r

e
d

u
c
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
n

 c
li
m

a
te

 c
h

a
n

g
e
 t

o
 h

e
lp

 m
e
e
t 
th

e
 C

lim
a
te

 
C

h
a
n
g

e
 T

a
rg

e
t 
th

ro
u
g

h
 o

p
ti
m

is
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
L
o
c
a
l 
C

o
u
n
c
il 

re
fu

s
e
 c

o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 r

o
u
n
d
s
 a

n
d
 

w
a
s
te

 t
ra

n
s
fe

r 
m

o
v
e
m

e
n
ts

. 
A

ll 
c
o
u
n
c
ils

 w
ill

 b
e
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 f

o
r 

th
is

 a
n
d
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
 a

s
 

n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

. 

A
ll 

C
o
u
n
c
ils

 

O
S

A
0
3
 

 
P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 M
e
m

b
e
rs

 t
o
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
a
lly

 m
o

n
it

o
r 

th
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 o

f 
th

e
ir
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 t

o
 

e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
e
y
 a

re
 p

e
rf

o
rm

in
g
 a

s
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 a

n
d
 i
n
 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
. 

T
h
is

 w
ill

 b
e
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
d
 b

y
 a

ll 
c
o
u
n
c
ils

. 
A

ll 
C

o
u
n
c
ils

 

O
S

A
0
4
 

P
ro

v
id

e
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 t

o
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 c
o
n
c
e
rn

in
g

 t
h
e
 l
in

k
s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n

 C
li
m

a
te

 C
h

a
n

g
e
 

a
n

d
 W

a
s
te

 M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
P

ra
c
ti
s
e
s
. 

P
la

c
e
 g

re
a
te

r 
e
m

p
h
a
s
is

 o
n
 t

h
e
 s

u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

 
o
b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 o

f 
w

a
s
te

 m
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
. 

A
ll 

C
o
u
n
c
ils

 

O
S

A
0
5
 

 

T
h
e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
ill

 p
ro

d
u
c
e
 a

 s
u

m
m

a
ry

 d
o

c
u

m
e
n

t 
fo

r 
th

e
 J

M
W

M
S

 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 

fi
n
a
l 
e
n
d
o
rs

e
m

e
n
t 
b
y
 a

ll 
P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 m
e
m

b
e
rs

. 
T

h
is

 w
ill

 s
u
m

m
a
ri
s
e
 t

h
e
 m

o
s
t 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
a
im

s
 a

n
d
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 o

f 
th

e
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 f

o
r 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

, 
e
le

c
te

d
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

 a
n
d
 

a
n
y
 o

th
e
r 

in
te

re
s
te

d
 p

a
rt

ie
s
. 

A
ll 

C
o
u
n
c
ils

 

98



A
n

n
e

x
 I

 -
 A

c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n
 

J
o

in
t 

M
u

n
ic

ip
a

l 
W

a
s
te

 M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 f
o

r 
H

e
re

fo
rd

s
h

ir
e

 a
n

d
 W

o
rc

e
s
te

rs
h

ir
e

 2
0

0
4
 –

 2
0

3
4

, 
F

ir
s
t 

R
e

v
ie

w
 N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

0
9
 

 
1

1
 o

f 
2

4

O
S

A
0
6
 

A
ll 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 m
e
m

b
e
rs

 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

c
c
u

ra
te

 a
n

d
 t

im
e
ly

 w
a
s
te

 d
a
ta

 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 f

o
r 

re
p
o
rt

in
g
 o

f 
a
ll 

w
a
s
te

 N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
In

d
ic

a
to

rs
. 
T

h
is

 w
ill

 b
e
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
d
 b

y
 a

ll 
c
o
u
n
c
ils

. 
A

ll 
C

o
u
n
c
ils

 

O
S

A
0
7
 

F
G

1
3
 

F
G

1
4
 

S
2
0
 

T
h
e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 i
s
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 g

o
o

d
 i

n
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n

 a
b

o
u

t 
th

e
 r

a
n

g
e
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

th
a
t 

a
re

 a
v
a
il

a
b

le
 t

o
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ts
 a

n
d
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e
 o

n
 h

o
w

 t
o
 u

s
e
 t
h
e
m

, 
in

 a
 v

a
ri
e
ty

 o
f 

m
e
d
ia

 f
o
rm

a
ts

. 
T

h
e
 g

re
a
te

r 
c
o
n
s
is

te
n
c
y
 o

f 
a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 b

y
 a

ll 
c
o
u
n
c
ils

 m
e
a
n
s
 t

h
a
t 
th

is
 

c
a
n
 b

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

. 
 

A
ll 

C
o
u
n
c
ils

 

O
S

A
0
8
 

T
h
is

 A
c
ti

o
n

 P
la

n
 w

il
l 

b
e
 a

n
n

u
a
ll
y
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d

 b
y
 t
h
e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 a

c
ro

s
s
 a

ll 
c
o
u
n
c
ils

 i
n
 t
h
e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

. 
 I
t 
w

ill
 b

e
 u

p
d
a
te

d
 

a
s
 n

e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 t
o
 a

m
e
n
d
 t
a
rg

e
ts

 a
n
d
 a

d
d
re

s
s
 a

n
y
 n

e
w

 c
h
a
lle

n
g

e
s
 t

h
a
t 
m

a
y
 a

ri
s
e
. 

A
ll 

C
o
u
n
c
ils

 

O
S

A
0
9
 

 
T

h
e
 J

o
in

t 
M

u
n
ic

ip
a
l W

a
s
te

 M
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 f

o
r 

H
e
re

fo
rd

s
h
ir
e
 a

n
d
 

W
o
rc

e
s
te

rs
h
ir
e
 w

il
l 
b

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 i
n

 2
0
1
4
. 

A
ll 

c
o
u
n
c
ils

 t
o
 

p
ro

v
id

e
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 t

o
 d

o
 t
h
is

. 
A

ll 
C

o
u
n
c
ils

 

OTHER STRATGEY ACTIONS 

A
c

ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 
R

e
fe

re
n

c
e
 

R
e
fe

re
n

c
e
(s

) 
fr

o
m

 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 

A
c

ti
o

n
 R

e
q

u
ir

e
d

  
(K

e
y
 T

a
s
k
s
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
d
) 

R
e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 O

rg
a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

 
(L

o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

, 
G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

O
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
, 
G

ro
u
p
, 
e
tc

)

O
S

A
1
0
 

F
G

0
4
 

S
H

R
0

9
N

 
T

h
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 i
s
 t

o
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

W
a
s
te

 M
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

p
ra

c
ti
s
e
s
 f
ro

m
 e

ls
e
w

h
e
re

 a
n
d
 

c
o

n
s
id

e
r 

a
d

o
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
b

e
s
t 

p
ra

c
ti

s
e
.

A
ll 

C
o
u
n
c
ils

O
S

A
1
1
 

F
G

1
2
 

L
o
c
a
l 
C

o
u
n
c
ils

 (
W

a
s
te

 C
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 A

u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
) 

w
ill

 r
e
s
o
u
rc

e
 &

 p
ro

v
id

e
 a

 r
a
n
g

e
 o

f 
s
u
it
a
b
le

 a
s
s
is

te
d

 c
o

ll
e
c
ti

o
n

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t
o
 a

llo
w

 a
s
 m

a
n
y
 p

e
o
p
le

 t
o
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
te

 i
n
 

re
c
y
c
lin

g
 c

o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 s

c
h
e
m

e
s
 a

s
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
. 

L
o
c
a
l 
C

o
u
n
c
ils

 (
W

a
s
te

 
C

o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 A

u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
) 

 

O
S

A
1
2
 

S
H

R
1
0
L

 
T

h
e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 i
s
 t

o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 a

 c
o
n
s
is

te
n
t 
a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 t

o
 d

e
a
li
n

g
 w

it
h

 f
ly

 t
ip

p
in

g
a
c
ro

s
s
 b

o
th

 H
e
re

fo
rd

s
h
ir
e
 a

n
d
 W

o
rc

e
s
te

rs
h
ir
e
. 
T

h
is

 w
ill

 t
a
c
k
le

 n
o
t 
o
n
ly

 h
o
w

 f
ly

 t
ip

s
 

a
re

 r
e
m

o
v
e
d
 a

n
d
 r

e
c
o
rd

e
d
 b

u
t 
a
ls

o
 e

n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 
a
c
ti
o
n
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 t

a
k
e
n
. 

A
ll 

C
o
u
n
c
ils

 
E

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

A
g

e
n
c
y
 

O
S

A
1
3
 

S
1
9
 

Im
p
ro

v
e
 e

n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n

t 
m

e
a
s
u

re
s
 f

o
r 

fl
y
 t

ip
p
in

g
 a

n
d
 l
it
te

r 
o
ff

e
n
c
e
s
. 
  

W
a
s
te

 C
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 A

u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
. 

O
S

A
1
4
 

 
P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 s

c
h

o
o

ls
 a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

e
d

u
c
a
ti

o
n

a
l 

e
s
ta

b
li
s
h

m
e
n

ts
 (

fo
r 

e
x
a
m

p
le

 B
is

h
o
p
s
 W

o
o
d
 E

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
E

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 C

e
n
tr

e
) 

w
it
h
 u

p
 t
o
 d

a
te

 
in

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 o
n

 w
a
s
te

 m
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 i
n
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 o
f 
th

e
ir
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
. 

A
ll 

C
o
u
n
c
ils

 

99



A
n

n
e

x
 I

 -
 A

c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n
 

J
o

in
t 

M
u

n
ic

ip
a

l 
W

a
s
te

 M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 f
o

r 
H

e
re

fo
rd

s
h

ir
e

 a
n

d
 W

o
rc

e
s
te

rs
h

ir
e

 2
0

0
4
 –

 2
0

3
4

, 
F

ir
s
t 

R
e

v
ie

w
 N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

0
9
 

 
1

2
 o

f 
2

4

O
S

A
1
5
 

T
h
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
ill

 d
e
v
e

lo
p
 w

a
y
s
 o

f 
p

u
b

li
c
is

in
g

/i
n

fo
rm

in
g

 t
h

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 o

n
 

o
u

r 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 a

n
d
 i
ts

 d
e
liv

e
ry

. 
  

A
ll 

C
o
u
n
c
ils

 

100



A
n

n
e

x
 I

 -
 A

c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n
 

J
o

in
t 

M
u

n
ic

ip
a

l 
W

a
s
te

 M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 f
o

r 
H

e
re

fo
rd

s
h

ir
e

 a
n

d
 W

o
rc

e
s
te

rs
h

ir
e

 2
0

0
4
 –

 2
0

3
4

, 
F

ir
s
t 

R
e

v
ie

w
 N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

0
9
 

 
1

3
 o

f 
2

4

A
c

ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 P
a
rt

 B
 (

R
e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
) 

101



A
n

n
e

x
 I

 -
 A

c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n
 

J
o

in
t 

M
u

n
ic

ip
a

l 
W

a
s
te

 M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 f
o

r 
H

e
re

fo
rd

s
h

ir
e

 a
n

d
 W

o
rc

e
s
te

rs
h

ir
e

 2
0

0
4
 –

 2
0

3
4

, 
F

ir
s
t 

R
e

v
ie

w
 N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

0
9
 

 
1

4
 o

f 
2

4

WASTE PREVENTION 

A
c

ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 
R

e
fe

re
n

c
e
 

A
c

ti
o

n
 S

u
m

m
a
ry

 
D

e
li

v
e
ry

 D
a
te

R
e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 

a
ll

o
c
a
te

d
 a

n
d

 
s
ig

n
if

ic
a
n

c
e
 o

f 
c
o

s
t 

D
e
p

e
n

d
e
n

c
e
s
 &

 R
is

k
s
 

M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 M
e
c
h

a
n

is
m

 

W
P

0
1
 

D
is

tr
ib

u
te

 2
5
,0

0
0
 c

o
m

p
o
s
t 

b
in

s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 2

0
0
7
/0

8
 a

n
d
 

2
0
1
0
/1

1
 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
1
 

Y
e
s
 

M
o
d
e
ra

te
 

C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 
b
o
th

 l
o
c
a
lly

 a
n
d
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
lly

 b
y
 a

ll 
c
o
u
n
c
ils

, 
W

R
A

P
 a

n
d
 I

E
P

 
R

IS
K

S
: 

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 J

M
W

R
M

F
 

R
e
p
o
rt

W
P

0
2
 

D
is

tr
ib

u
te

 1
5
,0

0
0
 c

o
m

p
o
s
t 

b
in

s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
 a

n
d
 

2
0
1
3
/1

4
  

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
4
 

Y
e
s

M
o
d
e
ra

te

C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 
b
o
th

 l
o
c
a
lly

 a
n
d
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
lly

 b
y
 a

ll 
c
o
u
n
c
ils

, 
W

R
A

P
 a

n
d
 I

E
P

 
R

IS
K

S
: 

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 J

M
W

R
M

F
 

R
e
p
o
rt

W
P

0
3
 

D
is

tr
ib

u
te

 3
5
,0

0
0
 c

o
m

p
o
s
t 

b
in

s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 2

0
1
4
/1

5
 a

n
d
 

2
0
2
0
/2

1
 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
2
1
 

Y
e
s

M
o
d
e
ra

te

C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 
b
o
th

 l
o
c
a
lly

 a
n
d
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
lly

 b
y
 a

ll 
c
o
u
n
c
ils

, 
W

R
A

P
 a

n
d
 I

E
P

 
R

IS
K

S
: 

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 J

M
W

R
M

F
 

R
e
p
o
rt

W
P

0
4
 

P
ro

m
o
te

 H
o
m

e
 

C
o
m

p
o
s
ti
n
g

 a
n
d
 M

a
s
te

r 
C

o
m

p
o
s
te

rs
 S

c
h
e
m

e
 

O
n

g
o

in
g

 
Y

e
s

L
o
w

 
C

o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 L

o
c
a
l 

S
u
p
p
o
rt

  
 

R
IS

K
S

: 
F

in
a
n

c
ia

l 
Q

u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 J

M
W

R
M

F
 

R
e
p
o
rt

W
P

0
5
 

In
v
e
s
ti
g

a
te

 o
p
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 C

o
m

p
o
s
ti
n
g
 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
4
 

Y
e
s

L
o
w

 
S

u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 w

it
h
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 g

ro
u
p
s
 

R
IS

K
S

: 
F

in
a
n

c
ia

l

A
n
n
u
a
l 
R

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
J
M

W
M

S
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
  

W
P

0
6
 

P
ro

m
o
te

 W
R

A
P

 L
o
v
e
 F

o
o
d
 

H
a
te

 W
a
s
te

 (
L
F

H
W

) 
In

it
ia

ti
v
e
 l
o
c
a
lly

 
O

n
g

o
in

g
 

Y
e
s

M
o
d
e
ra

te
 

C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 c

o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t 
to

 W
a
s
te

 
P

re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 T

e
a
m

 &
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
u
s
e
 

o
f 

fu
n
d
in

g
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
  

R
IS

K
S

: 
F

in
a
n

c
ia

l

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 J

M
W

R
M

F
 

R
e
p
o
rt

W
P

0
7
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 &

 I
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 

F
o
o
d
 W

a
s
te

 P
re

v
e
n
ti
o
n
 

m
a
rk

e
ti
n
g
 p

la
n
 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
0
 

Y
e
s

L
o
w

 

C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 c

o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t 
to

 W
a
s
te

 
P

re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 T

e
a
m

&
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
u
s
e
 

o
f 

fu
n
d
in

g
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
  
 

R
IS

K
S

: 
F

in
a
n

c
ia

l

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 J

M
W

R
M

F
 

R
e
p
o
rt

W
P

0
8
 

T
a
rg

e
t 
to

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

c
o
m

m
it
te

d
 f

o
o
d
 w

a
s
te

 
re

d
u
c
e
rs

 t
o
 3

0
%

 b
y
 

2
0
1
1
/1

2
 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
2
 

Y
e
s

L
o
w

 
C

o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 c

o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t 
to

 W
a
s
te

 
P

re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 T

e
a
m

 
R

IS
K

S
: 

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 J

M
W

R
M

F
 

R
e
p
o
rt

102



A
n

n
e

x
 I

 -
 A

c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n
 

J
o

in
t 

M
u

n
ic

ip
a

l 
W

a
s
te

 M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 f
o

r 
H

e
re

fo
rd

s
h

ir
e

 a
n

d
 W

o
rc

e
s
te

rs
h

ir
e

 2
0

0
4
 –

 2
0

3
4

, 
F

ir
s
t 

R
e

v
ie

w
 N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

0
9
 

 
1

5
 o

f 
2

4

W
P

0
9
 

T
ra

in
 M

a
s
te

r 
C

o
m

p
o
s
te

rs
 

to
 p

ro
m

o
te

 L
F

H
W

 
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
0
 

Y
e
s

L
o
w

 
C

o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 c

o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t 
to

 W
a
s
te

 
P

re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 T

e
a
m

 
R

IS
K

S
: 

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 J

M
W

R
M

F
 

R
e
p
o
rt

103



A
n

n
e

x
 I

 -
 A

c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n
 

J
o

in
t 

M
u

n
ic

ip
a

l 
W

a
s
te

 M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 f
o

r 
H

e
re

fo
rd

s
h

ir
e

 a
n

d
 W

o
rc

e
s
te

rs
h

ir
e

 2
0

0
4
 –

 2
0

3
4

, 
F

ir
s
t 

R
e

v
ie

w
 N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

0
9
 

 
1

6
 o

f 
2

4

WASTE PREVENTION 

A
c

ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 
R

e
fe

re
n

c
e
 

A
c

ti
o

n
 S

u
m

m
a
ry

 
D

e
li

v
e
ry

 D
a
te

R
e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 

a
ll

o
c
a
te

d
 a

n
d

 
s
ig

n
if

ic
a
n

c
e
 o

f 
c
o

s
t 

D
e
p

e
n

d
e
n

c
e
s
 &

 R
is

k
s
 

M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 M
e
c
h

a
n

is
m

 

W
P

1
0
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 &

 I
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 

S
m

a
rt

 S
h
o
p
p
in

g
 m

a
rk

e
ti
n
g
 

p
la

n
 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
1
 

Y
e
s
 

L
o
w

C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 c

o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t 
to

 W
a
s
te

 
P

re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 T

e
a
m

 
R

IS
K

S
: 

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 J

M
W

R
M

F
 

R
e
p
o
rt

 

W
P

1
1
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 &

 I
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 

J
u
n
k
 

M
a

il 
m

a
rk

e
ti
n
g

 p
la

n
 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
1
 

Y
e
s

L
o
w

C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 c

o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t 
to

 W
a
s
te

 
P

re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 T

e
a
m

 
R

IS
K

S
: 

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 J

M
W

R
M

F
 

R
e
p
o
rt

 

W
P

1
2
 

In
c
re

a
s
e
 s

ig
n
 u

p
 t

o
 t

h
e
 

'M
a
ili

n
g

 P
re

fe
re

n
c
e
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
' b

y
 1

0
,0

0
0
 p

e
r 

a
n
n
u
m

 b
e
tw

e
e
n
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
 

a
n
d
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
. 
  

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
2
 

Y
e
s

L
o
w

C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 c

o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t 
to

 W
a
s
te

 
P

re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 T

e
a
m

 
R

IS
K

S
: 

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 J

M
W

R
M

F
 

R
e
p
o
rt

 

W
P

1
3
 

P
ro

v
is

io
n
 o

f 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 t
o
 

re
u
s
e
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 

O
n

g
o

in
g

 
Y

e
s

L
o
w

C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 c

o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t 
to

 W
a
s
te

 
P

re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 T

e
a
m

 
R

IS
K

S
: 

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l

A
n
n
u
a
l 
R

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
J
M

W
M

S
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 

W
P

1
4
 

C
o
n
ti
n
u
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 W

a
s
te

 
&

 R
e
c
y
c
lin

g
 F

o
ru

m
  

(S
E

W
A

R
) 

O
n

g
o

in
g

 
Y

e
s

L
o
w

C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 c

o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t 
to

 W
a
s
te

 
P

re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 T

e
a
m

 
R

IS
K

S
: 

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 J

M
W

R
M

F
 

R
e
p
o
rt

 

W
P

1
5
 

In
c
re

a
s
e
 t

o
n
n
a
g

e
 o

f 
R

e
u
s
e
 

c
re

d
it
s
 p

a
id

 t
o
 3

rd
 S

e
c
to

r 
to

 
7
5
0
 t

o
n

n
e
s

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
4
 

Y
e
s

L
o
w

C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 c

o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t 
to

 W
a
s
te

 
P

re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 T

e
a
m

 
R

IS
K

S
: 

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l

A
n
n
u
a
l 
R

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
J
M

W
M

S
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 

W
P

1
6
 

O
ff

e
r 

G
ra

n
t 
F

u
n
d
in

g
 f
o
r 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 R

e
-u

s
e
 a

n
d
 

R
e
c
y
c
lin

g
 S

c
h
e
m

e
s
 

O
n

g
o

in
g

 
Y

e
s

L
o
w

C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 c

o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t 
to

 W
a
s
te

 
P

re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 T

e
a
m

 
R

IS
K

S
: 

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l

A
n
n
u
a
l 
R

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
J
M

W
M

S
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 

W
P

1
7
 

P
ro

m
o
te

 R
e
u
s
e
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 

th
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 o

f 
th

e
 R

e
-u

s
e
 

g
u
id

e
 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
0
 

Y
e
s

L
o
w

C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 c

o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t 
to

 W
a
s
te

 
P

re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 T

e
a
m

 
R

IS
K

S
: 

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l

A
n
n
u
a
l 
R

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
J
M

W
M

S
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 

104



A
n

n
e

x
 I

 -
 A

c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n
 

J
o

in
t 

M
u

n
ic

ip
a

l 
W

a
s
te

 M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 f
o

r 
H

e
re

fo
rd

s
h

ir
e

 a
n

d
 W

o
rc

e
s
te

rs
h

ir
e

 2
0

0
4
 –

 2
0

3
4

, 
F

ir
s
t 

R
e

v
ie

w
 N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

0
9
 

 
1

7
 o

f 
2

4

W
P

1
8
 

E
x
p
a
n
d
 a

n
d
 p

ro
m

o
te

 r
e
-

u
s
e
 s

c
h
e
m

e
s
 a

t 
H

o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

 
W

a
s
te

 S
it
e
s
 1

0
 t
o
n
n
e
s
 p

e
r 

a
n
n
u
m

 b
e
tw

e
e
n
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
 

a
n
d
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
2
 

Y
e
s

L
o
w

C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 c

o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t 
to

 W
a
s
te

 
P

re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 T

e
a
m

 
R

IS
K

S
: 

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l

A
n
n
u
a
l 
R

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
J
M

W
M

S
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 

105



A
n

n
e

x
 I

 -
 A

c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n
 

J
o

in
t 

M
u

n
ic

ip
a

l 
W

a
s
te

 M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 f
o

r 
H

e
re

fo
rd

s
h

ir
e

 a
n

d
 W

o
rc

e
s
te

rs
h

ir
e

 2
0

0
4
 –

 2
0

3
4

, 
F

ir
s
t 

R
e

v
ie

w
 N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

0
9
 

 
1

8
 o

f 
2

4

WASTE PREVENTION 

A
c

ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 
R

e
fe

re
n

c
e
 

A
c

ti
o

n
 S

u
m

m
a
ry

 
D

e
li

v
e
ry

 D
a
te

R
e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 

a
ll

o
c
a
te

d
 a

n
d

 
s
ig

n
if

ic
a
n

c
e
 o

f 
c
o

s
t 

D
e
p

e
n

d
e
n

c
e
s
 &

 R
is

k
s
 

M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 M
e
c
h

a
n

is
m

 

W
P

1
9
 

P
ro

m
o
te

 f
u
rn

it
u
re

 r
e
-u

s
e
 

fo
r 

b
u
lk

y
 w

a
s
te

 c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 

O
n

g
o

in
g

 
Y

e
s
 

L
o
w

C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 c

o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t 
to

 W
a
s
te

 
P

re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 T

e
a
m

 
R

IS
K

S
: 

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 J

M
W

R
M

F
 

R
e
p
o
rt

 

W
P

2
0
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 &

 I
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 

a
 

M
a
rk

e
ti
n
g
 P

la
n
 f
o
r 

R
e
-

u
s
e
/R

e
p
a
ir
/H

ir
e
 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
1
 

Y
e
s

L
o
w

C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 c

o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t 
to

 W
a
s
te

 
P

re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 T

e
a
m

 
R

IS
K

S
: 

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 J

M
W

R
M

F
 

R
e
p
o
rt

 

W
P

2
1
 

P
ro

m
o
te

 o
th

e
r 

w
a
s
te

 
re

d
u
c
ti
o
n
 (

e
.g

. 
fo

o
d
 w

a
s
te

 
d
is

p
o
s
e
rs

, 
R

e
a
l 
N

a
p
p
ie

s
 

a
n
d
 H

o
m

e
 S

h
re

d
d
in

g
) 

O
n

g
o

in
g

 
Y

e
s

L
o
w

C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 c

o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t 
to

 W
a
s
te

 
P

re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 T

e
a
m

 
R

IS
K

S
: 

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 J

M
W

R
M

F
 

R
e
p
o
rt

 

W
P

2
2
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 w
a
te

r 
in

d
u

s
tr

y
re

s
e
a
rc

h
 o

n
 i
m

p
a
c
ts

 o
f 

fo
o

d
 w

a
s
te

 d
is

p
o

s
e
rs

. 
O

n
g

o
in

g
 

Y
e
s

L
o
w

C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 c

o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t 
to

 W
a
s
te

 
P

re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 T

e
a
m

 
R

IS
K

S
: 

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l

A
n
n
u
a
l 
R

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
J
M

W
M

S
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 

W
P

2
3
 

L
o
b
b
y
 g

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
to

 d
o
 

m
o
re

 t
o
 c

o
m

b
a
t 
th

e
 

p
ro

d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
e
x
c
e
s
s
 w

a
s
te

 
m

a
te

ri
a
l 

O
n

g
o

in
g

 
Y

e
s

L
o
w

C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 c

o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t 
to

 J
o
in

t 
M

e
m

b
e
rs

 W
a
s
te

 R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
 

M
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

F
o
ru

m
 

R
IS

K
S

: 
F

in
a
n

c
ia

l

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 J

M
W

R
M

F
 

R
e
p
o
rt

 

W
P

2
4
 

P
u
t 

in
 p

la
c
e
 m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 t

o
 

re
s
tr

ic
t 

re
s
id

u
a
l 
w

a
s
te

 
p

re
s
e
n

te
d

. 

A
ll

 C
o

u
n

c
il

s
 

b
y
 A

p
ri

l 
2
0
1
1
 

Y
e
s
 

M
o
d
e
ra

te
 

A
g

re
e
m

e
n
t 
fr

o
m

 a
ll 

c
o
u
n
c
ils

 
R

IS
K

S
: 

P
o

li
ti

c
a
l 
a
n

d
 P

u
b

li
c
 

A
c

c
e
p

ta
n

c
e

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 J

M
W

R
F

 R
e
p
o
rt

 

W
P

2
5
 

P
ro

m
o

te
 t

h
e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
re

-
u

s
e
 w

e
b

s
it

e
s
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 

F
re

e
c
y
c
le

. 
 

W
it

h
 R

e
-u

s
e
 

G
u

id
e
 M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
0
 

Y
e
s

L
o
w

 
C

o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 c

o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t 
to

 W
a
s
te

 
P

re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 T

e
a
m

 
R

IS
K

S
: 

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l
Q

u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 J

M
W

R
F

 R
e
p
o
rt

 

106



A
n

n
e

x
 I

 -
 A

c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n
 

J
o

in
t 

M
u

n
ic

ip
a

l 
W

a
s
te

 M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 f
o

r 
H

e
re

fo
rd

s
h

ir
e

 a
n

d
 W

o
rc

e
s
te

rs
h

ir
e

 2
0

0
4
 –

 2
0

3
4

, 
F

ir
s
t 

R
e

v
ie

w
 N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

0
9
 

 
1

9
 o

f 
2

4

RECYCLING AND COMPOSTING 

A
c

ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 
R

e
fe

re
n

c
e
 

A
c

ti
o

n
 S

u
m

m
a
ry

 
D

e
li

v
e
ry

 D
a
te

R
e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 a

ll
o

c
a
te

d
 

a
n

d
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

c
e
 o

f 
c
o

s
t 

D
e
p

e
n

d
e
n

c
e
s
 &

 R
is

k
s
 

M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 M
e
c
h

a
n

is
m

 

W
R

C
0
1
 

T
o
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 t

h
e
 n

e
w

 
E

n
v
ir

o
S

o
rt

 f
a
c
ili

ty
 

N
o

v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
9
 

Y
e
s
 

H
ig

h
 

C
o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 o

f 
w

o
rk

s
, 
re

c
ru

it
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

a
n
d
 i
n
s
ta

lla
ti
o
n
 o

f 
e
q

u
ip

m
e
n
t.
 

R
IS

K
S

: 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t
Q

u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 J

M
W

R
F

 R
e
p
o
rt

 

W
R

C
0
2
 

L
o
c
a
l 
C

o
u
n
c
ils

 t
o
 c

o
ll
e
c
t 

s
a
m

e
 k

e
rb

s
id

e
 

re
c

y
c
la

b
le

 m
a
te

ri
a
ls

A
ll

 C
o

u
n

c
il

s
 

b
y
 A

p
ri

l 
2
0
1
1
 

Y
e
s
 

H
ig

h
 

A
g

re
e
m

e
n
t 
fr

o
m

 a
ll 

c
o
u
n
c
ils

 
R

IS
K

S
: 

P
o

li
ti

c
a
l 
a
n

d
 P

u
b

li
c
 

A
c

c
e
p

ta
n

c
e

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 J

M
W

R
F

 R
e
p
o
rt

 

W
R

C
0
3
 

In
v
e
s
ti
g

a
te

 o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 

fo
r 

in
c
re

a
s
in

g
 t

h
e
 r

a
n

g
e
 

o
f 

m
a
te

ri
a
ls

 a
c
c
e
p

te
d

 f
o

r 
re

c
y
c
li

n
g

O
n

g
o

in
g

 
Y

e
s

L
o
w

 
A

v
a
ila

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 

R
e
c
y
c
lin

g
/P

re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

 t
im

e
  

R
IS

K
S

: 
F

in
a
n

c
ia

l
Q

u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 J

M
W

R
F

 R
e
p
o
rt

 

W
R

C
0
4
 

L
o
c
a
l 
C

o
u
n
c
ils

 t
o
 e

x
p
a
n
d
 

re
c

y
c
li

n
g

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t

o
 a

ll
 

h
o

u
s
e
h

o
ld

s
  

A
ll

 C
o

u
n

c
il

s
 

b
y
 A

p
ri

l 
2
0
1
2
 

Y
e
s
 

H
ig

h
 

A
g

re
e
m

e
n
t 
fr

o
m

 a
ll 

c
o
u
n
c
ils

 a
n
d
 

a
v
a
ila

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s
. 

R
IS

K
S

: 
P

o
li
ti

c
a
l 
a
n

d
 P

u
b

li
c
 

A
c

c
e
p

ta
n

c
e

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 J

M
W

R
F

 R
e
p
o
rt

 

W
R

C
0
5
 

W
h
e
re

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 g

a
rd

e
n

 
w

a
s
te

 c
o

m
p

o
s
ti

n
g

 
c
o

ll
e
c
ti

o
n

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d
 a

t 
a
 c

h
a
rg

e

O
p

ti
o

n
a
l 

Y
e
s
 

M
o
d
e
ra

te
/ 

H
ig

h

D
e
p
e
n
d
a
n
t 

o
n
 d

e
m

a
n
d
 a

n
d
 u

p
ta

k
e
 

A
g

re
e
m

e
n
t 
fr

o
m

 a
ll 

c
o
u
n
c
ils

 
R

IS
K

S
: 

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l,
 P

o
li
ti

c
a
l 

a
n

d
 

P
u

b
li

c
 A

c
c
e
p

ta
n

c
e

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 J

M
W

R
F

 R
e
p
o
rt

 

W
R

C
0
6
 

T
h
e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 

a
n
d
 p

ro
m

o
te

 a
 c

o
n
s
is

te
n
t 

te
x
ti

le
 c

o
ll
e
c
ti

o
n

 s
e
rv

ic
e
  

A
ll

 C
o

u
n

c
il

s
 

b
y
 A

p
ri

l 
2
0
1
2
 

Y
e
s
 

L
o
w

N
e
e
d
 t

o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 s
u
it
a
b
le

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 

p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 a
t 
a
c
c
e
p
ta

b
le

 c
o
s
t.
  

R
IS

K
S

: 
F

in
a
n

c
ia

l
Q

u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 J

M
W

R
F

 R
e
p
o
rt

 

W
R

C
0
7
 

In
v
e
s
ti
g

a
te

 o
p
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

p
ro

v
id

in
g

 c
o

m
m

e
rc

ia
l 

w
a
s
te

 r
e
c
y
c
li

n
g

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
  

A
ll

 C
o

u
n

c
il

s
 

b
y
 A

p
ri

l 
2
0
1
2
 

Y
e
s
 

L
o
w

D
e
m

a
n
d
 a

n
d
 a

b
ili

ty
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 
c
o
m

p
e
ti
ti
v
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
, 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s
  

R
IS

K
S

: 
F

in
a
n

c
ia

l,
 P

o
li
ti

c
a
l 

a
n

d
 

P
u

b
li

c
 A

c
c
e
p

ta
n

c
e

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 J

M
W

R
F

 R
e
p
o
rt

 

W
R

C
0
8
 

In
v
e
s
ti
g

a
te

 o
p
ti
o
n
s
 

re
c

y
c
li

n
g

 a
n

d
 r

e
c
o

v
e
ry

 
o

f 
s
tr

e
e
t 

s
w

e
e
p

in
g

s
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
1
 

Y
e
s
 

L
o
w

A
v
a
ila

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s
  

R
IS

K
S

: 
F

in
a
n

c
ia

l
Q

u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 J

M
W

R
F

 R
e
p
o
rt

 

W
R

C
0
9
 

N
e
w

 H
o

u
s
e
h

o
ld

 W
a
s
te

 
S

it
e
 t
o
 b

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 i
n
 

K
in

g
to

n
 (

H
e
re

fo
rd

s
h
ir
e
).

  

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
0
 

Y
e
s

H
ig

h
C

o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 o

f 
w

o
rk

s
, 
re

c
ru

it
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

a
n
d
 i
n
s
ta

lla
ti
o
n
 o

f 
e
q

u
ip

m
e
n
t.
 

R
IS

K
S

: 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t

W
a
s
te

 D
is

p
o
s
a
l 
C

o
n
tr

a
c
t 

M
e
e
ti
n
g

 

107



A
n

n
e

x
 I

 -
 A

c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n
 

J
o

in
t 

M
u

n
ic

ip
a

l 
W

a
s
te

 M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 f
o

r 
H

e
re

fo
rd

s
h

ir
e

 a
n

d
 W

o
rc

e
s
te

rs
h

ir
e

 2
0

0
4
 –

 2
0

3
4

, 
F

ir
s
t 

R
e

v
ie

w
 N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

0
9
 

 
2

0
 o

f 
2

4

RECYCLING AND COMPOSTING 

A
c

ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 
R

e
fe

re
n

c
e
 

A
c

ti
o

n
 S

u
m

m
a
ry

 
D

e
li

v
e
ry

 D
a
te

R
e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 

a
ll

o
c
a
te

d
 a

n
d

 
s
ig

n
if

ic
a
n

c
e
 o

f 
c
o

s
t 

D
e
p

e
n

d
e
n

c
e
s
 &

 R
is

k
s
 

M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 M
e
c
h

a
n

is
m

 

W
R

C
1
0
 

R
e
b
ra

n
d
 H

o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

 W
a
s
te

 
S

it
e
s
 a

s
 H

o
u

s
e
h

o
ld

 
R

e
c

y
c
li

n
g

 C
e
n

tr
e
s

A
ll

 S
it

e
s
 b

y
 

A
p

ri
l 

2
0
1
1
 

Y
e
s

M
o
d
e
ra

te
A

v
a
ila

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s
  

R
IS

K
S

: 
F

in
a
n

c
ia

l
Q

u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 J

M
W

R
F

 R
e
p
o
rt

 

W
R

C
1
1
 

H
o

u
s
e
h

o
ld

 W
a
s
te

 S
it

e
 a

t 
T

e
n

b
u

ry
 i
s
 t

o
 b

e
 

re
d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d

  
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
2
 

Y
e
s

H
ig

h
C

o
n
d
it
io

n
a
l 
o
n
 o

b
ta

in
in

g
 n

e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 
c
o
n
s
e
n
ts

 p
ri
o
r 

to
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

R
IS

K
S

: 
P

la
n

n
in

g
 &

 D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t

W
a
s
te

 D
is

p
o
s
a
l 
C

o
n
tr

a
c
t 

M
e
e
ti
n
g

 

W
R

C
1
2
 

F
e
a
s
ib

ili
ty

 o
f 

p
e
d

e
s
tr

ia
n

 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 H

o
u

s
e
h

o
ld

 
W

a
s
te

 S
it

e
s
 i
s
 t
o
 b

e
 

in
v
e
s
ti
g

a
te

d
 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
0
 

Y
e
s

L
o
w

A
llo

c
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
O

ff
ic

e
rs

 t
im

e
 t

o
 

p
ro

je
c
t.
 P

u
b
lic

 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

R
IS

K
S

: 
F

in
a
n

c
ia

l,
 P

o
li
ti

c
a
l 

a
n

d
 

P
u

b
li

c
 A

c
c
e
p

ta
n

c
e

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 J

O
W

R
M

F
 

M
e
e
ti
n
g

 

W
R

C
1
3
 

P
ro

d
u

c
e

 c
le

a
r 

g
u

id
a

n
c

e
 

o
n

 m
a

te
ri

a
ls

 a
c

c
e

p
te

d
fo

r 
re

c
y
c
lin

g
 

O
n

g
o

in
g

 
Y

e
s

L
o
w

 
A

v
a
ila

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 

R
e
c
y
c
lin

g
/P

re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

 t
im

e
  

R
IS

K
S

: 
F

in
a
n

c
ia

l
Q

u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 J

M
W

R
F

 R
e
p
o
rt

 

W
R

C
1
4
 

Im
p

ro
v
e
 c

u
s
to

m
e
r 

c
a
re

a
t 

H
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

 W
a
s
te

 S
it
e
s
 

a
n
d
 o

n
 c

o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 r

o
u
n
d
s
. 
 

O
n

g
o

in
g

 
Y

e
s

L
o
w

A
llo

c
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
O

ff
ic

e
rs

 t
im

e
 t

o
 

p
ro

je
c
t.
 C

o
n
tr

a
c
to

rs
 a

c
c
e
p
ta

n
c
e
 

R
IS

K
S

: 
F

in
a
n

c
ia

l

In
d
iv

id
u
a
l 
C

o
u
n
c
il 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 M

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

M
e
e
ti
n
g

s
 

W
R

C
1
5
 

T
h
e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 t
o
 

p
ro

v
id

e
 i

n
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n

 o
n

 
w

h
a
t 

h
a
p

p
e
n

s
 t

o
 w

a
s
te

  

A
ll

 C
o

u
n

c
il

s
 

b
y
 A

p
ri

l 
2
0
1
0
 

Y
e
s

L
o
w

A
v
a
ila

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 

R
e
c
y
c
lin

g
/P

re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

 t
im

e
  

R
IS

K
S

: 
F

in
a
n

c
ia

l
Q

u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 J

M
W

R
F

 R
e
p
o
rt

 

W
R

C
1
6
 

U
s
e
 a

n
 e

d
u

c
a
ti

o
n

 r
a
th

e
r 

th
a
n

 e
n

fo
rc

e
m

e
n

t 
a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

O
n

g
o

in
g

 
Y

e
s

L
o
w

A
v
a
ila

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 

R
e
c
y
c
lin

g
/P

re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

 t
im

e
  

R
IS

K
S

: 
F

in
a
n

c
ia

l
Q

u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 J

M
W

R
F

 R
e
p
o
rt

 

W
R

C
1
7
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 i
n
 

a
c
c
o
rd

a
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 B

a
tt

e
ri

e
s
 

D
ir

e
c
ti

v
e

F
e
b

ru
a
ry

 
2
0
1
0
 

N
o

 
L
o
w

 
A

v
a
ila

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s
  

R
IS

K
S

: 
F

in
a
n

c
ia

l
W

a
s
te

 D
is

p
o
s
a
l 
C

o
n
tr

a
c
t 

M
e
e
ti
n
g

 

108



A
n

n
e

x
 I

 -
 A

c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n
 

J
o

in
t 

M
u

n
ic

ip
a

l 
W

a
s
te

 M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 f
o

r 
H

e
re

fo
rd

s
h

ir
e

 a
n

d
 W

o
rc

e
s
te

rs
h

ir
e

 2
0

0
4
 –

 2
0

3
4

, 
F

ir
s
t 

R
e

v
ie

w
 N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

0
9
 

 
2

1
 o

f 
2

4

ENERGY RECOVERY 

A
c

ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 
R

e
fe

re
n

c
e
 

A
c

ti
o

n
 S

u
m

m
a
ry

 
D

e
li

v
e
ry

 D
a
te

R
e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 

a
ll

o
c
a
te

d
 a

n
d

 
s
ig

n
if

ic
a
n

c
e
 o

f 
c
o

s
t 

D
e
p

e
n

d
e
n

c
e
s
 &

 R
is

k
s
 

M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 M
e
c
h

a
n

is
m

 

E
R

0
1
 

Id
e
n
ti
fy

 l
a
n
d
 a

n
d
 

te
c
h
n
o
lo

g
y
 t
o
 b

e
 u

s
e
d
 t

o
 

tr
e
a
t 

th
e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 

re
s
id

u
a
l 
w

a
s
te

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
9
 

Y
e
s
 

H
ig

h
 

A
v
a
ila

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
L
a
n
d
, 
P

o
lit

ic
a
l 
a
n
d
 

O
ff

ic
e
r 

a
g

re
e
m

e
n
t,
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t 

n
e
g

o
ti
a
ti
o
n
s
 

R
IS

K
S

: 
F

in
a
n

c
ia

l,
 P

la
n

n
in

g
, 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t,
 P

o
li
ti

c
a
l 
a
n

d
 

P
u

b
li

c
 A

c
c
e
p

ta
n

c
e

J
o
in

t 
R

e
v
ie

w
 B

o
a
rd

 

E
R

0
2
 

P
F

I 
C

o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 
to

 c
o
m

p
le

te
 

a
 p

re
-a

p
p

li
c
a
ti

o
n

(s
) 

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a
ti

o
n

  
E

a
rl

y
 2

0
1
0

 
Y

e
s

M
o
d
e
ra

te
 

M
u
s
t 

fi
rs

t 
o
b
ta

in
 l
a
n
d
 a

n
d
 d

e
c
id

e
 

te
c
h
n
o
lo

g
y 

R
IS

K
S

: 
P

la
n

n
in

g
, 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t,
 

P
o

li
ti

c
a
l 
a
n

d
 P

u
b

li
c
 A

c
c
e
p

ta
n

c
e

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 J

M
W

R
F

 R
e
p
o
rt

 

E
R

0
3
 

A
p

p
li

c
a
ti

o
n

(s
) 

w
il
l 

b
e
 

d
e
te

rm
in

e
d

 b
y
 t
h
e
 

re
le

v
a
n
t 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

. 

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
1
 

Y
e
s

M
o
d
e
ra

te
 

S
u
b
m

is
s
io

n
 o

f 
ro

b
u
s
t 
p
la

n
n
in

g
 

a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 f

o
r 

s
u
it
a
b
le

 s
it
e
. 
 

R
IS

K
S

: 
F

in
a
n

c
ia

l,
 P

la
n

n
in

g
, 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t,
 P

o
li
ti

c
a
l 
a
n

d
 

P
u

b
li

c
 A

c
c
e
p

ta
n

c
e

J
o
in

t 
R

e
v
ie

w
 B

o
a
rd

 

E
R

0
4
 

C
o

n
s
tr

u
c
t 

a
n

d
 

c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
 t

h
e
 f

a
c
il
it

y
to

 r
e
c
e
iv

e
 r

e
s
id

u
a
l 
w

a
s
te

. 
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
4
 

Y
e
s

H
ig

h
 

E
n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n
t 
w

it
h
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
to

r,
 

c
o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 o

f 
w

o
rk

s
, 
re

c
ru

it
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

a
n
d
 i
n
s
ta

lla
ti
o
n
 o

f 
e
q

u
ip

m
e
n
t.
 

R
IS

K
S

: 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t

J
o
in

t 
R

e
v
ie

w
 B

o
a
rd

 

E
R

0
5
 

P
F

I 
C

o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 
to

 u
ti

li
s
e
 

la
n

d
fi

ll
 g

a
s

fo
r 

p
o

w
e
r 

g
e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
O

n
g

o
in

g
 

Y
e
s

L
o
w

 
E

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n
t 
w

it
h
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 
R

IS
K

S
: 

P
la

n
n

in
g

J
o
in

t 
R

e
v
ie

w
 B

o
a
rd

 

E
R

0
6
 

P
ro

m
o

te
 e

n
e
rg

y
 r

e
c
o

v
e

ry
 

o
p

ti
o

n
s
 w

h
e
n
 d

e
c
id

in
g

 t
h
e
 

re
s
id

u
a
l 
tr

e
a
tm

e
n
t 
s
o
lu

ti
o
n
. 

O
n

g
o

in
g

 
Y

e
s

L
o
w

 

E
n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n
t 
w

it
h
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
to

r,
 

te
c
h
n
o
lo

g
y
 t
y
p
e
 a

n
d
 l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
re

s
id

u
a
l 
tr

e
a
tm

e
n
t 
fa

c
ili

ty
 

R
IS

K
S

: 
P

o
li
ti

c
a
l 
a
n

d
 P

u
b

li
c
 

A
c

c
e
p

ta
n

c
e

J
o
in

t 
R

e
v
ie

w
 B

o
a
rd

 

E
R

0
7
 

In
v
e
s
ti
g

a
te

 t
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

 o
f 

w
a
s
te

 b
y
 r

iv
e
r

N
o

v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
9
 

Y
e
s

L
o
w

 

F
e
a
s
ib

ili
ty

 n
e
e
d
s
 t

o
 b

e
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 

R
IS

K
S

: 
F

in
a
n

c
ia

l,
 P

la
n

n
in

g
, 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t,
 P

o
li
ti

c
a
l 
a
n

d
 

P
u

b
li

c
 A

c
c
e
p

ta
n

c
e

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 J

M
W

R
F

 R
e
p
o
rt

 

109



A
n

n
e

x
 I

 -
 A

c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n
 

J
o

in
t 

M
u

n
ic

ip
a

l 
W

a
s
te

 M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 f
o

r 
H

e
re

fo
rd

s
h

ir
e

 a
n

d
 W

o
rc

e
s
te

rs
h

ir
e

 2
0

0
4
 –

 2
0

3
4

, 
F

ir
s
t 

R
e

v
ie

w
 N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

0
9
 

 
2

2
 o

f 
2

4FINAL 
DISPOSAL

A
c

ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 
R

e
fe

re
n

c
e
 

A
c

ti
o

n
 S

u
m

m
a
ry

 
D

e
li

v
e
ry

 D
a
te

R
e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 

a
ll

o
c
a
te

d
 a

n
d

 
s
ig

n
if

ic
a
n

c
e
 o

f 
c
o

s
t 

D
e
p

e
n

d
e
n

c
e
s
 &

 R
is

k
s
 

M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 M
e
c
h

a
n

is
m

 

W
D

0
1
 

P
F

I 
C

o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 
to

 p
ro

v
id

e
 

s
u

it
a
b

le
 l
a
n

d
fi

ll
 f

a
c
il
it

ie
s

O
n

g
o

in
g

 
Y

e
s

H
ig

h
 

E
n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n
t 
w

it
h
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 
R

IS
K

S
: 

P
la

n
n

in
g

, 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t,
 

P
o

li
ti

c
a
l 
a
n

d
 P

u
b

li
c
 A

c
c
e
p

ta
n

c
e

J
o
in

t 
R

e
v
ie

w
 B

o
a
rd

 

W
D

0
2
 

P
ro

m
o
te

 a
 c

o
n

s
is

te
n

t 
a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 t
o

 c
li
n

ic
a
l 

w
a
s
te

 c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
  

A
ll

 C
o

u
n

c
il

s
 

b
y
 A

p
ri

l 
2
0
1
1
 

Y
e
s

L
o
w

 

C
ro

s
s
 p

a
rt

y
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n
t 
fr

o
m

 
P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 m
e
m

b
e
rs

 
R

IS
K

S
: 

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l,
 P

o
li
ti

c
a
l 

A
c

c
e
p

ta
n

c
e

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 J

O
W

R
M

F
 

M
e
e
ti
n
g

 

110



A
n

n
e

x
 I

 -
 A

c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n
 

J
o

in
t 

M
u

n
ic

ip
a

l 
W

a
s
te

 M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 f
o

r 
H

e
re

fo
rd

s
h

ir
e

 a
n

d
 W

o
rc

e
s
te

rs
h

ir
e

 2
0

0
4
 –

 2
0

3
4

, 
F

ir
s
t 

R
e

v
ie

w
 N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

0
9
 

 
2

3
 o

f 
2

4

OTHER STRATEGY ACTIONS 

A
c

ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 
R

e
fe

re
n

c
e
 

A
c

ti
o

n
 S

u
m

m
a
ry

 
D

e
li

v
e
ry

 D
a
te

R
e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 a

ll
o

c
a
te

d
 

a
n

d
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

c
e
 o

f 
c
o

s
t 

D
e
p

e
n

d
e
n

c
e
s
 &

 R
is

k
s
 

M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 M
e
c
h

a
n

is
m

 

O
S

A
0
1
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 c
o
u
n
c
ils

 t
o
 

g
a
th

e
r 

d
a
ta

 a
n
d
 s

e
t 

C
li

m
a
te

 C
h

a
n

g
e
 T

a
rg

e
t 

 
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
0
 

Y
e
s
 

L
o
w

 

C
ro

s
s
 p

a
rt

y
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n
t 
fr

o
m

 
P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 m
e
m

b
e
rs

 
R

IS
K

S
: 

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l,
 P

o
li
ti

c
a
l 

A
c

c
e
p

ta
n

c
e

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 J

M
W

R
F

 R
e
p
o
rt

 

O
S

A
0
2
 

T
h
e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 t
o
 r

e
d

u
c
e
 

im
p

a
c
t 

o
n

 c
li
m

a
te

 
c
h

a
n

g
e
  

O
n

g
o

in
g

 
Y

e
s

H
ig

h
 

C
ro

s
s
 p

a
rt

y
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n
t 
fr

o
m

 
P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 m
e
m

b
e
rs

 
R

IS
K

S
: 

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l,
 P

o
li
ti

c
a
l 

A
c

c
e
p

ta
n

c
e

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 J

M
W

R
F

 R
e
p
o
rt

 

O
S

A
0
3
 

C
o
n
ti
n
u
a
lly

 m
o

n
it

o
r 

th
e
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 o

f 
th

e
ir
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
  

O
n

g
o

in
g

 
Y

e
s

L
o
w

 
A

v
a
ila

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s
  

R
IS

K
S

: 
F

in
a
n

c
ia

l
Q

u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 J

M
W

R
F

 R
e
p
o
rt

 

O
S

A
0
4
 

P
ro

v
id

e
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 

c
o
n
c
e
rn

in
g

 t
h
e
 l
in

k
s
 

b
e
tw

e
e
n

 C
li
m

a
te

 C
h

a
n

g
e
 

a
n

d
 W

a
s
te

 M
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 
 

O
n

g
o

in
g

 
Y

e
s

L
o
w

 
A

v
a
ila

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s
  

R
IS

K
S

: 
F

in
a
n

c
ia

l
Q

u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 J

M
W

R
F

 R
e
p
o
rt

 

O
S

A
0
5
 

T
h
e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
ill

 
p
ro

d
u
c
e
 a

 s
u

m
m

a
ry

 
J
M

W
M

S
 d

o
c
u

m
e
n

t 
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
0
 

Y
e
s

L
o
w

 
A

v
a
ila

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s
  

R
IS

K
S

: 
F

in
a
n

c
ia

l
Q

u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 J

M
W

R
F

 R
e
p
o
rt

 

O
S

A
0
6
 

A
ll 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 m
e
m

b
e
rs

 
to

 p
ro

v
id

e
 a

c
c
u

ra
te

 a
n

d
 

ti
m

e
ly

 w
a
s
te

 d
a
ta

 
O

n
g

o
in

g
 

Y
e
s

L
o
w

 
A

v
a
ila

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s
  

R
IS

K
S

: 
F

in
a
n

c
ia

l
Q

u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 J

M
W

R
F

 R
e
p
o
rt

 

O
S

A
0
7
 

P
ro

v
id

e
 g

o
o

d
 i

n
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n

 
o
n
 r

a
n
g

e
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

 t
o
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 
O

n
g

o
in

g
 

Y
e
s

L
o
w

 
A

v
a
ila

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s
  

R
IS

K
S

: 
F

in
a
n

c
ia

l

In
d
iv

id
u
a
l 
C

o
u
n
c
il 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

M
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

M
e
e
ti
n
g

s
 

O
S

A
0
8
 

A
c

ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 t
o

 b
e
 

a
n

n
u

a
ll

y
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d

  
N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

A
n

n
u

a
ll

y
 

Y
e
s

L
o
w

 
A

v
a
ila

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s
  

R
IS

K
S

: 
F

in
a
n

c
ia

l
Q

u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 J

M
W

R
F

 R
e
p
o
rt

 

O
S

A
0
9
 

T
h
e
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 w

il
l 
b

e
 

re
v
ie

w
e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 i
n

 2
0
1
4
. 
 

A
ll

 C
o

u
n

c
il

s
 

b
y
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

Y
e
s

M
o
d
e
ra

te
 

A
v
a
ila

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s
  

R
IS

K
S

: 
F

in
a
n

c
ia

l
Q

u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 J

M
W

R
F

 R
e
p
o
rt

 

111



A
n

n
e

x
 I

 -
 A

c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n
 

J
o

in
t 

M
u

n
ic

ip
a

l 
W

a
s
te

 M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 f
o

r 
H

e
re

fo
rd

s
h

ir
e

 a
n

d
 W

o
rc

e
s
te

rs
h

ir
e

 2
0

0
4
 –

 2
0

3
4

, 
F

ir
s
t 

R
e

v
ie

w
 N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

0
9
 

 
2

4
 o

f 
2

4

OTHER STRATEGY ACTIONS 

A
c

ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 
R

e
fe

re
n

c
e
 

A
c

ti
o

n
 S

u
m

m
a
ry

 
D

e
li

v
e
ry

 D
a
te

R
e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 

a
ll

o
c
a
te

d
 a

n
d

 
s
ig

n
if

ic
a
n

c
e
 o

f 
c
o

s
t 

D
e
p

e
n

d
e
n

c
e
s
 &

 R
is

k
s
 

M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 M
e
c
h

a
n

is
m

 

O
S

A
1
0
 

M
o
n

it
o
r 

a
n
d
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 

B
e
s
t 

P
ra

c
ti

s
e
 e

ls
e
w

h
e
re

O
n

g
o

in
g

 
Y

e
s

L
o
w

 
A

b
ili

ty
 t

o
 g

a
th

e
r 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 f
ro

m
 

o
th

e
r 

lo
c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 

R
IS

K
S

: 
F

in
a
n

c
ia

l

In
d
iv

id
u
a
l 
C

o
u
n
c
il 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

M
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

M
e
e
ti
n
g

s
 

O
S

A
1
1
 

P
ro

v
id

e
 s

u
it
a
b
le

 a
s
s
is

te
d

 
c
o

ll
e
c
ti

o
n

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

O
n

g
o

in
g

 
Y

e
s

M
o
d
e
ra

te
 

A
v
a
ila

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s
  

R
IS

K
S

: 
F

in
a
n

c
ia

l

In
d
iv

id
u
a
l 
C

o
u
n
c
il 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

M
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

M
e
e
ti
n
g

s

O
S

A
1
2
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 c

o
n

s
is

te
n

t 
a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 t
o

 F
ly

-T
ip

p
in

g
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
1
 

Y
e
s

L
o
w

 
A

v
a
ila

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s
  

R
IS

K
S

: 
F

in
a
n

c
ia

l

In
d
iv

id
u
a
l 
C

o
u
n
c
il 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

M
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

M
e
e
ti
n
g

s

O
S

A
1
3
 

Im
p
ro

v
e
 e

n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n

t 
m

e
a
s
u

re
s
 f
o
r 

fl
y
 t

ip
p
in

g
 

a
n
d
 l
it
te

r 
o
ff

e
n
c
e
s
 

O
n

g
o

in
g

 
Y

e
s

L
o
w

 
A

v
a
ila

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s
  

R
IS

K
S

: 
F

in
a
n

c
ia

l

In
d
iv

id
u
a
l 
C

o
u
n
c
il 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

M
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

M
e
e
ti
n
g

s

O
S

A
1
4
 

P
ro

v
id

e
 s

c
h

o
o

ls
 w

it
h

 
w

a
s
te

 m
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
e
d

u
c
a
ti

o
n

 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 

O
n

g
o

in
g

 
Y

e
s

L
o
w

 
A

v
a
ila

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s
  

R
IS

K
S

: 
F

in
a
n

c
ia

l

In
d
iv

id
u
a
l 
C

o
u
n
c
il 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

M
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

M
e
e
ti
n
g

s

O
S

A
1
5
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 w

a
y
s
 t

o
 p

u
b

li
c
is

e
 

o
u

r 
s
tr

a
te

g
y

O
n

g
o

in
g

 
Y

e
s

L
o
w

 
A

v
a
ila

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s
  

R
IS

K
S

: 
F

in
a
n

c
ia

l

In
d
iv

id
u
a
l 
C

o
u
n
c
il 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

M
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

M
e
e
ti
n
g

s

112


	Agenda
	
	4 Connexions: New Management and Delivery Arrangements
	xxxAppendix 1
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 3

	5 Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy for Herefordshire and Worcestershire
	HEADLINE  DOCUMENT
	Annex H Consultation Process & Outcomes
	Annex I - Action Plan


